
DW
BANC 1ORP INC

2OO Annual por

IL of
IL



vs ci Bmc 01 Inc capitalized on trc endous oppot tunities and uncici took

ti ancfoi inatioital cit ingec during 2009 ni ikine tour eommu nirs bank stronwr

than ever md positlonine it foi continued grossth

II imans dramatic transformation gan ss ith Ilk mci cer ot Towei B.neoi

Inc and Gi cione financial oi on March 31 2009 which esuhed ii hank

molding comp5.n it that time ss ith total of 25 hianches 81 billion in assets

51.0 billion li_I deposits

Ow ex insion ustmn cod tlsi otvhout the sea cli mc en our long tei its st rateg

01 oanmc gross th In 2009 ste opened Ovo nest offices in lLabethtost and

is won md ste plan to open thre wore bc ations in illsburg State College

mnd iano\ er in 2010 of seaoeiid 2009 total assets ss crc appm oxiniatels 815

ilion md depositc sserc 0.2 billion Imiouchout the yemr we sass dramatic

uipros went is ow elf it ieno ratio as we outinuc ci tIlt merger integration

ss ith eductio trom 72 37o is the hird quartet to 790o in the

ourth go irter 2009

owem uicoi Inc net income inc msed 780o how 2008 to 53 million in

2009 Reflect uig the inc tease in hares outstanding loin our public offei in of

vnniois stoc ss hich it ultcl in net pioceecls of 851 million0th net incomc

dilute share scas St 72 in 2009 compared to S0.76 in 2008 We also ontinued

to pat
50 78 per

share cpu lam quartei 15 dividend thioughout 7009

Other pocitis
financial indicators foi the ai inc ludecl total isk-basccl capital

atio of 1453 at ecemhc 31 2009 ste11 above the regulators iequireinents for

King xi 11 capitalized \Ve also continue to see the alidatg of our disc iplineci

credit ma sageument piocecs st ith nonperfhtminc issets to total acscts at eu end

aug ste11 belt st vii pcei at 05 30o

\n iclcl ition ml oppoi tu its foi sien if leant gross isas ret ognized ncai the end

7009 ss hen ste announced ou aw cement to acquire
liist hesrei Coun

hop oration and list Nate naI Bank of lsestei CotinB This icqinsirion is

expected to pi os idle uc St ith st tong press nec in sci atti actis Southeastern and

cut ral Pennslx ania mai kcts sclule maintaining ste11 apitalizcd regulators

ipit atios and being significantls act retivc to earnings Pending ret empt of

equ red sI ai solder and it gtilator appros alt it is expected that completion of

lime cfuisitioim
still rcstllt in in institution ts ith approxiism5itel 2.7 billion in total

mcsetc 52 hill on in deiessitc incl sO hi mnch offices

Ii

Sf
lit

it Ii

mc ii

ci

if

ils

t1 is 11

ii cisc

xc Inc is ii

it is ii Ire

ii os is

II 110 cc

mid iii sc is if

i51c ii 111111

\Vc ii

Si ii 15 ccc

sk xso

II ills ccc

lo Ow 8hirelsolclc is

Its

p1c

it ci

IS



he sompan gr twth has also iiw luded ow sh ireholders Today out 5tock is

moi ascessible than eser to hroadei it ra of itis estot In Apt ii 2009 when

Tower Baisoip listed on tlts HAl/\Q Global MatH iVsrae riadiiig volums

was less thin 3000 sh sies pci da I3\ lsceinber 2009 aserags solume grew to
Posutve fnanea

or irIs 30000 shares iilv following Tower Bansorps addition to the Rusel1 3000

and ABA NAbDAQ mniunit Bank indices as wrIl as mi liiglil cestol rndieators for th veir

follow on rock olfcrnw with net proceeds if 5l6 million Ilte compln

market sapitaliration is also mi rca ed since our NADAQ listing front ahotii

142 million in 2009 to mole titan 190 million as of ths wi itinti of this letter
based apta ratw of

Achics ing
these nhicstones combined with piotitahlr growth credit cjualits 14 b3% wth ion

and exceptional prospects is aatnering interest and attention ft om the nations

professional nvestnient conimuniti hi cc rc speC ted ecluiB analysts were ross ring perfornunq assets to tota

the stock the end ot 2009 and institutional ow nership grcsv front less than

in the first half of the vcai to oser 20o in the fourth qiiai ret

As we begin 2010 iheic ste still mans esonotuic questions looming at the nation il

OU peers at O53%

les ci How ci er we ate confident about what Tow ci Bancoi will as hies in 2010

md heiond We ire for used oil grow ing core deposits organi loan origin mtion

md fee ins oins is well is managing intel est tate risk and maintaining credit

c1sialit In banking ciii ironisment where niatp mstitutions aie lookuig inwaid

we ire excited to be on the otfenw md sir this pet iod of time as one of great

opportuilil\

thank so oui slmaieholrlr rs toi yout ronti nsied support and lo alty to Lower

BanLot would also like to recognize out board of directoi for theii commitment banking
and

ssipp it tlsrouglmosit this past ye ir Additionall tIme time and effort of our

mplosees oser time pair eai mas bc en nothing short of remat kablc Vitim

contnmucil focus on positiss impacting tIme lives of othleis atmd strong arts ntion

to time esr in let mt of our mpioyees csistomei shareholdet atmd otminmu nit ies

we are onfident that 2010 will be an outstanding sear nward we exuted to be

Wirimm Rigaids
on th offense and vrew

thrs perrod of Ume as one

Oman nm tim nmd Ghiet xccutivc Offircr

Tower l3atmcorp mc



6RAV5TON BANK VSRN

Iownrown St ire olIc Bianch

oIIec Brandi sn1cs Center

noB Corpor ite and kperation entLr

CanT Branch

Meiah dlece Branch

Do nto\i ari ishnr Bi inch

Buiincis nici

iugIeiroin Bran

lBr the htoiii BiinJi

phrara Brmih

Oraniri Run Branch

aiiiarer Buinet Center

Mcadoirhrook Bianrh

mon Bi anch

ehanon Butinc Ccntci

IilRhuig Bi amli

York Branch

Hanover I3ianh Octohcr 2010

TOWUI BANK DVISWN

hamherhurg Branch

OreeniatIe Branch

Bniini enrei

aurnh Etaret Bramh

Linioln Way Far Branch

Mcii erbri rg
Branch

Quinc Bramh

Ronzeri ilL Branih

Wa 1ichro Branrh

hxpret Ccnrer Brani

Mckonnellthurg Branch Butinets

Center

Ncednioi Bi inih

ii

nrcrn BouIe an Branch

lancork Branch

Mauigant At enue branch

Pittsburgh

Philadelphia

Baltimore

Washington DC



Boil Cat pe IC md tlme ii ill Ilild die it tranhiie /ith tho motto oc

ii tC hip1 i\CL th it ill 0IllC of the beit tall lIt 10

ni iii in md Mailand I- eitlminp tatti \lth ow enmploees htotld

io Ic idw ihip odd and authent management ii oc neothta md

oroinote nhplo\e ki lop mient and ems lu Ii mO noti nd Ii illen ing

Iii ii 111h1 01 Cli atm IhItIhle hew Ieadl ii ale ii uI iL uitaln dde

iij ti Ii ìnta 1C

nC the wopa p1101 mi mi -anon ha IICCII lii ned lie

tl Be1 PIaCI to Yorl Ill Pci \1 am mCI iCC mliii to PC the einpk ICI

Ch 01 top tal lit IlL lmmarkC WC iLl VI. omnion th ieaI that tIel 0111

111 it Ill gCthCl ii tim it C\Cl Opi CC liii liiiCO1 to ICI\C 0111 oiHtOlIlCO

in ii mo non ollaboi ii ai Cl team COO ie pmo IL to mChIC\ ow

doll- iiil ii in IC to kC\i III lICe ii

011 Illi 11 to hdp pI aClmiCi till II dieanii mino on thn 10011011

LI ild CO Ill 1110101 ml CCei foi liii litolliC Ii 11101 01 JIaiton

Ba an To oei Pm ilL lii ICl ow ill offcl ml alnoIlCIre anCl ClnConlplonmiin

llt1 lit to \CC on il 110 nCr iij also PC ICC ill iddmn \alue

1C itional in ri CLI anCI ac lCd that pl oin lI Cli isor iok to Olli

tC Cl LIII iscati il

pait ol 0111 IClitionillp miikin mo hal

ml oo CCI 10 CC ie pkaie to enjo soliCl inkin rel 11101 1hp

ith ii lCnd an nen liboi 111 ftnil pCOple that io CC knoii ml umd

11 if CC 10 led to pr 11 id ui iith pC tionil attention

inCh Nt ndinx ito IIC icli he inip the C\tr mile to enwi th it 01

a11 lime Ii lIanCllCd mp ChIC nth pi femionall Wi Ii the iuppoi of

Too er ink 11 IC ihle tC tel oi at 001 ti IC fferine our CNtonICti an invltin

nell atm pu and ettC ih pllo e\petlelIC dIe phoNed IC liii JC\CCl

Pam out II anelal pat 111Cr te im pa piP oho ialue anCh suppol

mu low
Bauv KllnC

Pam tilL

vmpiCpi df LC-

II



LI

it us ion llunk nor ic/art fOunt rtoa /anui Ont of tI it fi it

flt lilt of ft an enti epic
netli ii lit p1 ut IN to lo itineti ii ith pLof

oiio tie timiiai aloe to uttule 11 mint Vh \it lot nit niiuiit

in Z0O net iiith lanak inn md teit but to tt up lint of tO hc

titre mttrttttd in not oni nit htitn ett pl in lint mote inmpoi unth IN itintit

ph ilotoph V1i tie ot htt anks tao ni iew uitei putt it0 Jut ak uid Otci

tao it oppot tutilt\ and preat hutmeti at tnt r0ii oat fort

Rot ii beti tu Ited at ia lit out alum to Je to ii akm

det mont etonuct eatiei out cart and batik nieroet iatei Ja toll

out olftte to tt 11 nie tim it he and \ndito 0an uti hid lot med tt innmtinitv Ha ii

toLtuted on impr tin th qtiaittt lift in nti Peiuimoli inia ht utiio

it am Jtitt
ahotit nm in ttn moth Ito at ihout

pi opie Wt itat ttd tO pai ci ik

hit atttrnoon to nuove out act otirt to Urti tone Oni aitit and ii ii tom

iii it in pent tt aiinnutnt the it moon oat easy
oat LIt nt hat io in it

iout lie tt am ndei mdi tile mi ooii tO tht tt top tIN tilt alto thtt

to tile area niti the ankt thIN haie partnti
ed itO

Jim Mo intt

alt itt /t c/ Oil tOn Of it

intorp Ito ratet tinder mimt unlin print ipit that thai ci ml dii

i-to mm dd is tie lelentit tly ptirttit our iiii oon to pttitl\ ei nnp-tt
hi et Ii long

topic it ii itVt thei te mu Ott goal it to he in iic top /Oo on it Otto

in lit foiioo mm pet tornmant men itt- Rtttn on ttimO
10 On itti 10t it

Oioo th tian Ottttt mnthngt now mh tfitientv Rn Non intt it lntt inc

age \tett an Net ntert it Margm

HOWMfl

Put of ot eonipani pimiltoopimi it nOt di1 tt ri ice to tmtn innt omit

Ztn niploicet hit and work in the ttimintmittei th tr diti tel Nit it

oum rmp nol ihiti to stippoit tht ktal ten itt tntl tharmtal it igani mitt ni will in

the ttinmnmtmnities tie tie tiiiotmah otir tinit tnti in mat ciai d1 lIn \li

it itir off item am asked to lit comm ito ti to it leatt thute lot ito mi ion intl

hold it Oem tlnp potition in tint sif tlitni In adtlitt in cit Ii hr nil 1i holtlt

in mnnuual tomintnmtt\ intoittinent prottt that ntfitt rut ctltttnilit/nl ta



ASSETS 2009

DEPOSTS 2009

NET LOANS 2009

NET NCOME 2009

1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q 1Q 2Q 30 40

1Q 2Q 30 40



XFCUIJVL NAEMENT

Andrecv Sarnuc

le/frel Renninca.er

Janak Atcian

II

Mat Merrill

lane Ic mpkan

li

atl unclHacl

Jetfrc hank

11

BOARD OF DREtTOR

Anclrecc Mmcael

hitlec Pcaton 3a

rederic Iredet ic

larr Jolcaicton

Haca Shah

.Ietfac\ elianan

Ieftre\ Shank

ohn IaSanto

/1

Kenneth ehanan

KI re ScanJet land

Marcuc Uitact

II

Mark Ia man

Michael Peck

111

Patrtc ia .arhauCh

Rohert Poole la

Ic

Stephc tc Beck

Teat Randall

1a



VIDFND NV N1 SlO tiE HAS PLN

osser Bans ot Inc pros ids hai holdet record the oppot ton ity
to

purr
has shares of losset Bansot ins sommon stock throii2h ow Dir idend

Rs inSestens nt md tok Put chass Pins nOr ths Plan son has tlss

oppot ton itS to uss \05t1 ash dir isis nds as or II 1tionil oh is inents to

rhase additional sharcs of somno stork To pit tisipate in ths Plan on

must sonsplcte sita and snisinit an enrolinsi nt lot ni lonnd at nit tsoe ant ot

write to the Plan \ent

15

F09M 10 KA\INUAL iE0P

Tosset Bans orp Inc

ID Market Stiect

Ian ishnip PA 101

866 42 9786

\\\\\\ inssethtnroricons

ANNE SHARFHOLDEFVS MEETtNEi

Ma 2a 2010

930 ii

West 8hois Counti dub

100 I3rentsiter Road

ins Hill PA 1701 L099

Apies of this annual eport orin 10 and other in format ion at is iiahlc

on the sompans wet site it sot iusib ins lrJ.culn itt ontas tinp ow investor

Relations lOis

Tosser Bans ot Inc is listed on he NA8 \Q lolal Mat ken

nibol TOI3C

Please direst row resins sts tot ins estoi

infi iii mon for lorrer Baneot Ins to

11

ii

INDEFENDF1I LUB RI /30000IIANIS

KPMG LI

30 Not th 3rd bti eel its 00

Ii mriishnr PA 17101

JOCK 1IANSFLR AND

U30KiTRAR AEN1

Repistr it and ransfer oinpatp

10 onimetse Drise

aitfoid NJ 07s5lu

800 368 948

rrsvs\rtss 50155



UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON DC 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31 2009

or

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Commission File Number 001-34277

TOWER
BANCORP INC

Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter

Pennsylvania
25-1445946

State or other jurisdiction
IRS Employer

of incorporation
Identification Number

112 Market Street Harrisburg Pennsylvania
17101

Address of principal executive office Zip Code

717 231-2700

Registrants telephone number including area code

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12b of the Act

Title of each class
Name of exchange on which registered

Common Stock No Par Value The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12g of the Act None

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is well-known seasoned issuer as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act Yes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15d of the Act Yes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports and has been subject to such filing

requirements for the past 90 days Yes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site if any every Interactive Data File

required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T 232.405 of this chapter during the preceding 12 months or for such

shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files Yes No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein and will not he contained to

the best of registrants knowledge in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form ID-K or any

amendment to this Form 10-K

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is large accelerated filer an accelerated filer non-accelerated filer or smaller reporting company

See the definitions of large accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 2b-2 of the Exchange Act Check One

Large accelerated filed
Accelerated filer

Non-accelerated tiler
Smaller reporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is shell company as defined in Rule l2b-2 of the Act Yes No

Aggregate market value of the Common Stock held by non-affiliates computed by reference to the price at which the common equity was last sold on

June 30 2009 determined using per
share closing price on that date of $35.15 as quoted on the NASDAQ Stock Market was $116590652

Number of shares outstanding of the registrants common stock as of February 28 2010 7129660

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrants Definitive Proxy Statement for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders are incorporated by reference in Part III of this

Report



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Description Page

PART

Item Business

Item 1A Risk Factors

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments 16

Item Properties 17

Item Legal Proceedings 17

Item Reserved 17

PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Equity Securities 18

Item Selected Financial Data 21

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 22

Quarterly Consolidated Results of Operations unaudited 43

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 47

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 55

Consolidated Balance Sheets 57

Consolidated Statements of Operations 58

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity and Comprehensive Income Loss 59

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 60

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 62

Management Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 100

Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 101

Item 9A Controls and Procedures 101

Item 9B Other Information 101

PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance 102

Item 11 Executive Compensation 102

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters 102

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence 102

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services 102

PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules 103

Signatures
106

Exhibit Index 108



PART

The information in this Form 10-K includes certain forward-looking statements including statements relating to

Towers financial condition results of operations asset quality and trends in its business that involve risks and

uncertainties Towers actual results may differ materially from the results discussed in these forward-looking

statements Factors that might cause such difference include those discussed in Item Business

Item JA Risk Factors Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations as well as those discussed elsewhere in this Form 10-K

ITEM BUSINESS

History and Business

Tower Bancorp Inc the Company or Tower is Pennsylvania business corporation with principal

executive offices at 112 Market Street Harrisburg Pennsylvania We were incorporated in 1983 and registered

as bank holding company under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 as amended As bank holding

company we are subject to regulation and supervision by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System

On March 31 2009 the Company merged with Graystone Financial Corp Graystone privately held

non-reporting corporation and registered bank holding company under the Bank Holding Company Act of

1956 as amended the Merger Pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger between the Company and

Graystone the Merger Agreement the Company remains the surviving bank holding company and the First

National Bank of Greencastle merged with and into Graystone Bank the wholly-owned subsidiary of Graystone

with Graystone Bank as the surviving institution under the name Graystone Tower Bank the Bank Merger

Graystone Tower Bank the Bank operates as the sole subsidiary of the Company through two divisions

Graystone Bank division of Graystone Tower Bank consisting of the former Graystone Bank branches and

Tower Bank division of Graystone Tower Bank consisting of the former branches of The First National

Bank of Greencastle

Our sole subsidiary bank Graystone Tower Bank was originally incorporated on September 2005 as

Pennsylvania-chartered bank and commenced operations on November 10 2005 As state chartered bank the

Bank is subject to regulation by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation FDIC and the Pennsylvania

Department of Banking and undergoes periodic examinations by these regulatory authorities

Graystone Tower Bank is full-service community bank operating twenty-seven offices in Centre Cumberland

Dauphin York Fulton Franklin Lancaster and Lebanon Counties of Pennsylvania and Washington County of

Maryland Through the Bank we offer complete range of financial products to consumers businesses and

not-for-profit customers through various delivery channels The principal component of earnings for the Bank is

net interest income which is the difference between the yield on interest-earning assets and the cost of interest-

bearing liabilities The net interest margin which is the ratio of net interest income to average earning assets is

affected by several factors including market interest rates economic conditions loan and lease demand and

deposit activity The Bank seeks to maintain steady net interest margin and consistent growth of net interest

income The Bank offeres residential mortgage services through mortgage banking subsidiary Graystone

Mortgage LLC in which the Bank holds 90% membership interest Graystone Tower Bank also maintains

20% interest in Dellinger Dolan McCurdy and Phillips Investment Advisors LLC which offers investment

advisory services to high net worth individuals and not-for-profit entities and 40 1k plans for business clients

In addition to acquisition growth our growth strategy focuses on organic loan and deposit growth through

de-novo branch office expansion and investment in technology and teams of experienced community bankers

We have opened eleven de-novo branch offices since the Bank was incorporated in September 2005 During

2009 the Bank opened two de-novo branch offices in Lancaster and Lebanon Counties PA and as of

December 31 2009 the Bank had regulatory approval for three additional de-novo branch offices located in



York and Centre Counties PA The de-novo branch office in Centre County PA was opened in February 2010

and two York County PA de-novo branch offices are expected to open later in 2010 Also we are committed to

investing in the latest technology to support continued growth and attracting and retaining experienced

commercial and retail bankers that are passionate about our community banking relationship model

On December 27 2009 we entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger the FCEC Merger Agreement

with First Chester County Corporation First Chester pursuant to which First Chester will merge with and into

the Company the FCEC Merger with the Company being the surviving corporation in the FCEC Merger

Expected to close in mid-2010 pending required regulatory and shareholder approvals and the satisfaction of

other conditions the FCEC Merger will broaden our geographic markets into demographically attractive and

contiguous markets predominantly located in the Pennsylvania counties of Chester and Delaware When

completed the FCEC Merger will result in the addition of approximately $1.3 billion in assets including over

$950 million in
gross

loans held for investment $980 million in deposits and 23 branches in southeastern

Pennsylvania Additional information related to the FCEC Merger can be found in the Companys Current

Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 28 2009

Employees

As of December 31 2009 we had 286 full-time and 36 part-time employees

Supervision and Regulation

We are subject to extensive regulation under federal and Pennsylvania banking laws regulations and policies

including prescribed standards relating to capital earnings dividends the repurchase or redemption of shares

loans or extensions of credit to affiliates and insiders internal controls information systems internal audit

systems loan documentation credit underwriting asset growth impaired assets and loan-to-value ratios The

bank regulatory framework is intended primarily for the protection of depositors federal deposit insurance funds

and the banking systems as whole and not for the protection of security holders

The following summary sets forth certain of the material elements of the regulatory framework applicable to

bank holding companies their subsidiaries and provides certain specific information about us and our

subsidiaries It does not describe all of the provisions of the statutes regulations and policies that are identified

To the extent that the following information describes statutory and regulatory provisions it is qualified in its

entirety by express
reference to each of the particular statutory and regulatory provisions change in applicable

statutes regulations or regulatory policy may have material effect on the business of the Company

Bank Holding Company Regulation

As bank holding company the Company is subject to regulation and examination by the Pennsylvania

Department of Banking and the Federal Reserve Board We are required to file with the Federal Reserve Board

an annual report and such additional information as the Federal Reserve Board may require pursuant to the Bank

Holding Company Act of 1956 as amended the BHC Act The BHC Act requires each bank holding

company to obtain the approval of the Federal Reserve Board before it may acquire substantially all the assets of

any bank or before it may acquire ownership or control of any voting shares of any
bank if after such

acquisition it would own or control directly or indirectly more than five percent of the voting shares of such

bank Such transaction may also require approval of the Pennsylvania Department of Banking Pennsylvania

law permits Pennsylvania bank holding companies to control an unlimited number of banks

Pursuant to provisions of the BHC Act and regulations promulgated by the Federal Reserve Board thereunder

Tower may only engage in or own companies that engage in activities deemed by the Federal Reserve Board to



be so closely related to the business of banking or managing or controlling banks as to be proper
incident

thereto and the holding company must obtain permission from the Federal Reserve Board prior to engaging in

most new business activities

bank holding company and its subsidiaries are subject to certain restrictions imposed by the BHC Act on any

extensions of credit to the bank or any of its subsidiaries investments in the stock or securities thereof and on

the taking of such stock or securities as collateral for loans to any
borrower bank holding company and its

subsidiaries are also prevented from engaging in certain tie-in arrangements in connection with any
extension of

credit lease or sale of property or furnishing of services

Under Federal Reserve Board regulations bank holding company is required to serve as source of financial

and managerial strength to its subsidiary banks and may not conduct its operations in an unsafe or unsound

manner In addition it is the Federal Reserve Boards policy that in serving as source of strength to its

subsidiary banks bank holding company should stand ready to use available resources to provide adequate

capital funds to its subsidiary banks during periods of financial stress or adversity and should maintain the

financial flexibility and capital-raising capacity to obtain additional resources for assisting its subsidiary banks

bank holding companys failure to meet its obligations to serve as source of strength to its subsidiary banks will

generally be considered by the Federal Reserve Board to be an unsafe and unsound banking practice or

violation of the Federal Reserve Board regulations or both This doctrine is commonly known as the source of

strength doctrine

The Federal banking regulators have adopted risk-based capital guidelines for bank holding companies

Currently the required minimum ratio of total capital to risk-weighted assets including off-balance sheet

activities such as standby letters of credit is 8% At least half of the total capital is required to be Tier capital

consisting principally of common shareholders equity non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock limited

amount of cumulative perpetual preferred stock and minority interests in the equity accounts of consolidated

subsidiaries less goodwill The remainder Tier capital may consist of limited amount of subordinated debt

and intermediate-term preferred stock certain hybrid capital instruments and other debt securities perpetual

preferred stock and limited amount of the general loan loss allowance

In addition to the risk-based capital guidelines the federal banking regulators established minimum leverage

ratio Tier capital to total assets guidelines for bank holding companies These guidelines provide for

minimum leverage
ratio of 3% for those bank holding companies which have the highest regulatory examination

ratings and are not contemplating or experiencing significant growth or expansion All other bank holding

companies are required to maintain leverage ratio of at least 4%

Regulation of Gravstone Tower Bank

Graystone Tower Bank is Pennsylvania-chartered banking institution and is subject to regulation supervision

and regular examination by the Pennsylvania Department of Banking and the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation FDIC Federal and state banking laws and regulations govern among other things the scope
of

banks business the investments bank may make the reserves against deposits bank must maintain the loans

bank makes and collateral it takes the maximum interest rates bank may pay on deposits the activities of

bank with respect to mergers and consolidations and the establishment of branches and management practices

and other aspects
of banking operations

Dividend Restrictions

Tower is legal entity separate and distinct from Graystone Tower Bank Declaration and payment of cash

dividends depends upon cash dividend payments to Tower by Graystone Tower Bank which is our primary

source of revenue and cash flow Accordingly the right of Tower and consequently the right of our creditors and



shareholders to participate in any distribution of the assets or earnings of
any subsidiary is necessarily subject to

the prior claims of creditors of the subsidiary except to the extent that claims of Tower in its capacity as

creditor may be recognized

As state chartered bank Graystone Tower Bank is subject to regulatory restrictions on the payment and

amounts of dividends under the Pennsylvania Banking Code Further the ability of banking subsidiaries to pay

dividends is also subject to their profitability financial condition capital expenditures and other cash flow

requirements See Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements included at Item of this Report

The payment of dividends by Graystone Tower Bank and Tower may also be affected by other factors such as

the requirement to maintain adequate capital above regulatory guidelines The federal banking agencies have

indicated that paying dividends that deplete depository institutions capital base to an inadequate level would be

an unsafe and unsound banking practice Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of

1991 depository institution may not pay any dividend if payment would cause it to become undercapitalized or

if it already is undercapitalized Moreover the federal agencies have issued policy statements that provide that

bank holding companies and insured banks should generally only pay dividends out of current operating

earnings Federal banking regulators have the authority to prohibit banks and bank holding companies from

paying dividend if the regulators deem such payment to be an unsafe or unsound practice

Capital Adequacy and Operations

In December 1991 the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 FDICIA was

enacted FDICIA contains provisions limiting activities and business methods of depository institutions FDICIA

requires the primary federal banking regulators to promulgate regulations setting forth standards relating to

among other things internal controls and audit systems credit underwriting and loan documentation interest rate

exposure and other off-balance sheet assets and liabilities and compensation of directors and officers FDICIA

also provides for expanded regulation of depository institutions and their affiliates including parent holding

companies by such institutions primary federal banking regulator Each primary federal banking regulator is

required to specify by regulation capital standards for measuring the capital adequacy of the depository

institutions it supervises and depending upon the extent to which depository institution does not meet such

capital adequacy measures the primary federal banking regulator may prohibit such institution from paying

dividends or may require such institution to take other steps to become adequately capitalized

FDICIA establishes five capital tiers ranging from well capitalized to critically undercapitalized

depository institution is well capitalized if it significantly exceeds the minimum level required by regulation for

each relevant capital measure Under FDICIA an institution that is not well capitalized is generally prohibited

from accepting brokered deposits and offering interest rates on deposits higher than the prevailing rate in its

market in addition pass through insurance coverage may not be available for certain employee benefit

accounts FDICIA also requires an undercapitalized depository institution to submit an acceptable capital

restoration plan to the appropriate federal bank regulatory agency One requisite element of such plan is that the

institutions parent holding company must guarantee compliance by the institution with the plan subject to

certain limitations In the event of the parent holding companys bankruptcy the guarantee and any other

commitments that the parent holding company has made to federal bank regulators to maintain the capital of its

depository institution subsidiaries would be assumed by the bankruptcy trustee and entitled to priority in

payment

At December 31 2009 Graystone Tower Bank qualified as well capitalized under these regulatory capital

standards See Note 19 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included at Item of this Report

Community Reinvestment Act

Under the Community Reinvestment Act of 1977 CRA the FDIC is required to assess the record of all

financial institutions regulated by it to determine if these institutions are meeting the credit needs of the

community including low and moderate income neighborhoods which they serve CRA performance



evaluations are based on four-tiered rating system Outstanding Satisfactory Needs to Improve and Substantial

Noncompliance CRA performance
evaluations are considered in evaluating applications for such things as

mergers acquisitions and applications to open branches Graystone Tower Bank has CRA rating of

Satisfactory

Restrictions on Transactions with Affiliates and Insiders

Graystone Tower Bank also is subject to the restrictions of Sections 23A 23B 22g and 22h of the Federal

Reserve Act and Regulation adopted by the Federal Reserve Board Section 23A requires that loans or

extensions of credit to an affiliate purchases of securities issued by an affiliate purchases of assets from an

affiliate except as may be exempted by order or regulation the acceptance of securities issued by an affiliate as

collateral and the issuance of guarantee acceptance of letters of credit on behalf of an affiliate collectively

Covered Transactions be on terms and conditions consistent with safe and sound banking practices

Section 23A also imposes quantitative restrictions on the amount of and collateralization requirements on such

transactions Section 23B requires that all Covered Transactions and certain other transactions including the sale

of securities or other assets to an affiliate and the payment of money or the furnishing of services to an affiliate

be on terms comparable to those prevailing for similar transactions with non-affiliates

Section 22g and 22h of the Federal Reserve Act impose similar limitations on loans and extensions of credit

from the bank to its executive officers directors and principal shareholders and any of their related interests The

limitations restrict the terms and aggregate amount of such transactions Regulation implements the provisions

of Sections 22g and 22h and requires maintenance of records of such transactions by the bank and regular

reporting of such transactions by insiders The FDIC also requires the bank upon request to disclose publicly

loans and extensions of credit to insiders in excess of certain amounts

Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008

In response to the financial crises affecting the banking system and financial markets and going concern threats

to investment banks and other financial institutions on October 2008 the Emergency Economic Stabilization

Act of 2008 the EESA was signed into law Pursuant to the EESA the U.S Treasury has the authority to

among other things purchase up to $700 billion of mortgages mortgage-backed securities and certain other

financial instruments from financial institutions On October 14 2008 Secretary Paulson after consulting with

the Federal Reserve and the FDIC announced that the Department of the Treasury would purchase equity stakes

in wide variety of banks and thrifts Under this program known as the Troubled Asset Relief Program

TARP Capital Purchase Program from the $700 billion authorized by the EESA the Treasury made up to

$250 billion of capital available to U.S financial institutions in the form of preferred stock In conjunction with

the purchase of preferred stock the Treasury would receive warrants to purchase common stock with an

aggregate
market price equal to 15% of the preferred investment Participating financial institutions will be

required to adopt the Treasurys standards for executive compensation and corporate governance
for the period

during which the Treasury holds equity issued under TARP Capital Purchase Program Tower determined not to

participate in the TARP Capital Purchase Program

Deposit Insurance and Premiums

The deposits of Graystone Tower Bank are insured up to applicable limits per
insured depositor by the FDIC In

October 2008 the FDIC increased FDIC deposit insurance coverage per separately insured depositor for all

account types to $250000 While initially stipulated to be in effect through December 31 2009 this increase has

been subsequently extended through December 31 2013 at which point it will revert to $100000 thereafter for

most accounts other than IRAs and certain other types of retirement accounts up to maximum of $250000 if

not extended by Congress Additionally through the Banks participation in the FDICs Transaction Account

Guarantee Program all non-interest bearing deposit transaction accounts are fully guaranteed through June 2010

regardless of the amount on deposit



As an FDIC-insured bank Graystone Tower Bank is also subject to FDIC insurance assessments which are

imposed based upon the risk the institution poses to the Deposit Insurance Fund DIF Under this assessment

system risk is defined and measured using an institutions supervisory ratings with certain other risk measures

including certain financial ratios The annual rates for institutions in 2009 range from 12 basis points for well

managed well capitalized banks with the highest ratings to 45 basis points for institutions posing the most

risk to the DIF The FDIC may raise or lower these assessment rates on quarterly basis based on various factors

to achieve reserve ratio which the FDIC currently has set at .25 percent of insured deposits Due to recent

bank failures and contingent loss reserves established by the FDIC against potential future bank failures the

reserve ratio is currently significantly below its target balance Thus in February 2009 the FDIC adopted Final

Rule on Assessments under which the quarterly initial base assessment rates increased substantially beginning in

the second quarter of 2009 The FDIC then adopted Final Rule on Special Assessment in May 2009 which

imposed basis point special assessment on each institutions assets minus Tier capital as reported on the

report of condition as of June 30 2009 but capped the special assessment at 10 basis points times the

institutions assessment base for the second quarter 2009 risk-based assessment On November 12 2009 the

FDIC adopted final rule that required insured depository institutions to prepay on December 30 2009 their

estimated quarterly risk-based assessments for the fourth quarter of 2009 and for all of 2010 2011 and 2012

along with their quarterly risk-based assessment for the third quarter of 2009 The continued decline in the DIF

balance may convince the FDIC to impose additional special emergency assessments in the future that could

have significant impact on Graystone Tower Banks capital levels and earnings During 2009 the increase in

FDIC annual rates insured deposit growth and the special assessment at 10 basis points impacted our pretax

earnings The special assessment totaled $580 thousand The prepayment for Graystone Tower Banks quarterly

assessments amounted to $6.3 million and will be recognized as expense over year period

In addition to DIF assessments the FDIC assesses all insured deposits special assessment to fund the

repayment of debt obligations of the Financing Corporation FICO FICO is government-sponsored entity

that was formed to borrow the money necessary to carry out the closing and ultimate disposition of failed thrift

institutions by the Resolution Trust Corporation in the 990s As of January 2010 the annualized rate

established by the FDIC for the FICO assessment was 1.06 basis points per $100 of insured deposits

FDIC Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program

In October 2008 the FDIC introduced the Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program TLGP which is designed

to improve the functions of the credit markets and to strengthen confidence in the financial system The TLGP
has two components both of which involve participation fees to be paid by the participating institution

transaction account guarantee program providing full guaranty through June 2010 of noninterest-bearing

deposit transaction accounts such as business payroll accounts regardless of the amount on deposit the

Transaction Account Guarantee Program and ii debt guarantee program providing guarantee of certain

newly issued senior unsecured debt of FDIC-insured institutions and their holding companies the Debt

Guarantee Program Graystone Tower Bank has elected to participate in the transaction account guarantee

program The Bank elected to not participate in the Debt Guarantee Program However we elected to participate

in the Transaction Account Guarantee Program

Other Federal Laws and Regulations

State usury and credit laws limit the amount of interest and various other charges collected or contracted by

bank on loans the Banks loans are also subject to federal laws applicable to credit transactions such as the

following

Federal Truth-In-Lending Act which
governs disclosures of credit terms to consumer borrowers

Home Mortgage Disclosure Act requiring financial institutions to provide information to enable public

officials to determine whether financial institution is fulfilling its obligations to meet the housing

needs of the community it serves



Equal Credit Opportunity Act prohibiting
discrimination on the basis of race creed or other prohibitive

factors in extending credit

Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act which requires lenders to disclose certain information

regarding the nature and cost of real estate settlements and prohibits certain lending practices as well

as limits escrow account amounts in real estate transactions

Fair Credit Reporting Act governing the manner in which consumer debts may be collected by

collection agencies and

Various rules and regulations of various federal agencies charged with the implementation of such

federal laws

Additionally our operations are subject to additional federal laws and regulations applicable to financial

institutions including without limitation

Privacy provisions
of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act and related regulations which require us to

maintain privacy policies intended to safeguard customer financial information to disclose the policies

to our customers and to allow customers to opt out of having their financial service providers

disclose their confidential financial information to non-affiliated third parties subject to certain

exceptions

Right to Financial Privacy Act which imposes duty to maintain confidentiality of consumer financial

records and prescribes procedures for complying with administrative subpoenas of financial records

Consumer protection rules for the sale of insurance products by depository institutions adopted

pursuant to the requirements of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act and

USA Patriot Act which requires financial institutions to take certain actions to help prevent detect and

prosecute
international money laundering and the financing of terrorism

Effective July 2010 new federal banking rule under the Electronic Fund Transfer Act will prohibit financial

institutions from charging consumers fees for paying overdrafts on automated teller machines ATM and

one-time debit card transactions unless consumer consents or opts in to the overdraft service for those type of

transactions If consumer does not opt in any
ATM transaction or debit that overdraws the consumers account

will be denied Overdrafts on the payment of checks and regular electronic bill payments are not covered by this

new rule Before opting in the consumer must be provided notice that explains the financial institutions

overdraft services including the fees associated with the service and the consumers choices Financial

institutions must provide consumers who do not opt in with the same account terms conditions and features

including pricing that they provide to consumers who do opt in

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

On July 30 2002 President Bush signed into law the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 The Sarbanes-Oxley Act

represents comprehensive revision of laws affecting corporate governance accounting obligations and

corporate reporting The Sarbanes-Oxley Act is applicable to all companies with equity securities registered or

that file reports
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 including publicly held bank holding companies such

as Tower In particular the Sarbanes-Oxley Act establishes requirements for audit committees including

independence expertise and responsibilities ii additional responsibilities regarding financial statements for the

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the reporting company iiistandards for auditors and

regulation of audits iv increased disclosure and reporting obligations for the reporting company and its

directors and executive officers and new and increased civil and criminal penalties for violations of the

securities laws Many of the provisions were effective immediately while other provisions become effective over

period of time and are subject to rulemaking by the SEC



Governmental Policies

Our earnings are significantly affected by the monetary and fiscal policies of governmental authorities including

the Federal Reserve Board Among the instruments of monetary policy used by the Federal Reserve Board to

implement these objectives are open-market operations in U.S Government securities and federal funds changes

in the discount rate on member bank borrowings and changes in reserve requirements against member bank

deposits These instruments of monetary policy are used in varying combinations to influence the overall level of

bank loans investments and deposits and the interest rates charged on loans and paid for deposits The Federal

Reserve Board frequently uses these instruments of monetary policy especially its open-market operations and

the discount rate to influence the level of interest rates and to affect the strength of the economy the level of

inflation or the price of the dollar in foreign exchange markets The monetary policies of the Federal Reserve

Board have had significant effect on the operating results of banking institutions in the past and are expected to

continue to do so in the future It is not possible to predict the nature of future changes in monetary and fiscal

policies or the effect which they may have on our business and earnings

Other Legislative Initiatives

Proposals may be introduced in the United States Congress and in the Pennsylvania Legislature and before

various bank regulatory authorities which would alter the powers of and restrictions on different types of

banking organizations and which would restructure part or all of the existing regulatory framework for banks

bank holding companies and other providers of financial services Moreover other bills may be introduced in

Congress which would further regulate deregulate or restructure the financial services industry including

proposals to substantially reform the regulatory framework It is not possible to predict whether these or any

other proposals will be enacted into law or even if enacted the effect which they may have on our business and

earnings

Competition

Graystone Tower Banks principal market area consists of Centre Cumberland Dauphin York Fulton Franklin

Lancaster and Lebanon Counties of Pennsylvania and Washington County of Maryland It services substantial

number of depositors in this market area with the greatest concentration within radius of Greencastle

Harrisburg and Lancaster Pennsylvania

The Bank like other depository institutions has been subjected to competition from less heavily regulated

entities such as credit unions brokerage firms money market funds consumer finance and credit card

companies and other commercial banks many of which are larger than the Bank The principal methods of

competing effectively in the financial services industry include improving customer service through the quality

and range of services provided improving efficiencies and pricing services competitively The Bank is

competitive with the financial institutions in its service areas with respect to interest rates paid on time and

savings deposits service charges on deposit accounts and interest rates charged on loans

The Bank continues to implement strategic initiatives focused on expanding our core businesses and to explore

on an ongoing basis acquisition divestiture and joint venture opportunities We analyze each of our products

and businesses in the context of customer demands competitive advantages industry dynamics and growth

potential

Additional Information

Our common stock is listed for quotation on the Global Market of The NASDAQ Stock Market under the symbol

TOBC Additional information about us can be found on the internet at www.towerbancorp.com Electronic

copies of the Companys 2009 Annual Report on Form 10-K are available free of charge by visiting the SEC
Filings section of www.towerbancorp.com Electronic copies of quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current

reports on Form 8-K are also available at this internet address These reports are posted as soon as reasonably

practicable after they are electronically filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC



Item 1A Risk Factors

An investment in the Companys common stock is subject to risks inherent to the Companys business The

material risks and uncertainties that management believes affect the Company are described below Before

making an investment decision you should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties described below

together with all of the other information included or incorporated by reference in this report The risks and

uncertainties described below are not the only ones facing the Company Additional risks and uncertainties that

management is not aware of or focused on or that management currently deems immaterial may also impair the

Companys business operations This report is qualified in its entirety by these risk factors

If any of the following risks actually occur the Companys financial condition and results of operations could be

materially and adversely affected If this were to happen the value of the Companys common stock could

decline significantly and you could lose all or part of your investment

Risks Related to Our Business

Growing By Acquisition Entails Certain Risks

On March 31 2009 we completed merger with Graystone Financial Corp and on December 27 2009 we

entered into an agreement providing for the acquisition of First Chester County Corporation which transaction is

expected to close in mid-2010 pending receipt of required regulatory and shareholder approvals and the

satisfaction of other conditions Growth by acquisition involves risks The success of our acquisitions may

depend on among other things our ability to realize anticipated cost savings and to combine the businesses of

the acquired company with our businesses in manner that does not result in decreased revenues resulting from

disruption of existing customer relationships of the acquired company If we are not able to achieve these

objectives the anticipated benefits of an acquisition may not be realized fully or at all or may take longer to

realize than planned

Further the asset quality or other financial characteristics of company we plan to acquire may deteriorate

between the date merger or other acquisition agreement is entered into and the transaction is completed

Depending upon the terms we negotiate in the related merger or acquisition agreement the deterioration may not

allow us to fail to close the proposed transaction such that we may be required to close the proposed transaction

with such company to the detriment of our future financial condition

Additionally if pending acquisition is not completed due to the failure to satisfy certain conditions or

otherwise expenses
incurred in connection therewith could have material adverse impact on our financial

condition because we would not have realized the expected benefits

Legislative and regulatory actions taken now or in the future to address the current liquidity and credit crisis

in the financial industry may significantly affect our financial condition results of operations liquidity or

stock price

Current economic conditions particularly in the financial markets have resulted in government regulatory

agencies and political bodies placing
increased focus and scrutiny on the financial services industry The U.S

Government has intervened on an unprecedented scale enacting and implementing numerous programs and

actions targeted at the financial markets generally and the financial services industry in particular In June 2009

the U.S Department of the Treasury released financial regulatory reform plan that would if enacted represent

the most sweeping reform of financial regulation and financial services in decades

These programs and proposals subject us and other financial institutions to additional restrictions oversight and

costs that may have an adverse impact on our business financial condition results of operations or the price of

our common stock If enacted the Treasury Departments financial reform plan would substantially increase



regulation of the financial services industry and impose restrictions on the operations and general ability of firms

within the industry to conduct business consistent with historical practices Federal and state regulatory agencies

also frequently adopt changes to their regulations or change the manner in which existing regulations are applied

or enforced We cannot predict the substance or impact of pending or future legislation regulation or the

application thereof Compliance with such current and potential regulation and scrutiny may significantly

increase our costs impede the efficiency of our internal business processes require us to increase our regulatory

capital and limit our ability to pursue business opportunities in an efficient manner

continuation of recent turmoil in the financial markets particularly if economic conditions worsen more

than expected could have an adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations

In recent periods United States and global markets as well as general economic conditions have been disrupted

and are volatile This situation is continuing and since the beginning of the third quarter of 2008 has worsened

significantly The impact of this situation together with concerns regarding the financial strength of financial

institutions has led to distress in credit markets and liquidity issues for financial institutions Some financial

institutions around the world have failed others have been forced to seek acquisition partners The United States

and other governments have taken unprecedented steps to try to stabilize the financial system including investing

in financial institutions Our business and our financial condition and results of operations could be adversely

affected by continued or accelerated disruption and volatility in financial markets continued capital and

liquidity concerns regarding financial institutions generally and our counterparties specifically limitations

resulting from further governmental action in an effort to stabilize or provide additional regulation of the

financial system or recessionary conditions that are deeper or last longer than currently anticipated

substantial decline in the value of our Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh common stock may adversely

affect our financial condition

We own common stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh or FHLB in order to qualify for

membership in the Federal Home Loan Bank system which enables us to borrow funds under the Federal Home

Loan Bank advance program The carrying value and fair market value of our FHLB common stock was

$6.1 million as of December 31 2009

Published reports indicate that certain member banks of the Federal Home Loan Bank system may be subject to

asset quality risks that could result in materially lower regulatory capital levels In December 2008 the FHLB
had notified its member banks that it had suspended dividend payments and the repurchase of capital stock until

further notice is provided In an extreme situation it is possible that the capitalization of Federal Home Loan

Bank including the FHLB could be substantially diminished or reduced to zero Consequently given that there

is no market for the FHLB common stock we believe that there is risk that this investment could be deemed

other than temporarily impaired at some time in the future If this occurs it may adversely affect our results of

operations and financial condition

Increases in FDIC insurance premiums may have material adverse effect on our results of operations

During 2008 and 2009 higher levels of bank failures have dramatically increased resolution costs of the Federal

Deposit Insurance Corporation or FDIC and depleted the deposit insurance fund In addition the FDIC and the

U.S Congress have taken action to increase federal deposit insurance coverage placing additional stress on the

deposit insurance fund In order to maintain strong funding position and restore reserve ratios of the deposit

insurance fund the FDIC increased assessment rates of insured institutions uniformly by seven cents for every

$100 of deposits beginning with the first quarter of 2009 with additional changes beginning April 2009 which

require riskier institutions to pay larger share of premiums by factoring in rate adjustments based on secured

liabilities and unsecured debt levels

To further support the rebuilding of the deposit insurance fund the FDIC imposed special assessment on each

insured institution equal to five basis points of the institutions total assets minus Tier capital as of June 30
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2009 For Graystone Tower Bank this represented charge of approximately $580 thousand which was

recorded as pre-tax charge during the second quarter
of 2009 The FDIC has indicated that future special

assessments are possible although it has not determined the magnitude or timing of any future assessments

Additionally on November 12 2009 the FDIC adopted final rule that required insured depository institutions

to prepay on December 30 2009 their estimated quarterly risk-based assessments for the fourth quarter of 2009

and for all of 2010 2011 and 2012 along with their quarterly risk-based assessment for the third quarter of

2009 The amount of the prepayment attributable to the fourth quarter of 2009 and all of 2010 is based upon

banks total base assessment rate in effect on September 30 2009 which would be increased by basis points for

2011 and 2012 In order to determine the amount of the prepayment the assessment rate as adjusted is applied

to the assessment base for the third quarter of 2009 increased quarterly to reflect an estimated percent annual

growth rate through 2012

Under U.S GAAP accounting rules prepaid assessments unlike special assessments do not immediately affect

bank earnings although the prepayment reduced Graystone Tower Bankss liquid assets by approximately $6.3

million Banks record the entire amount of its prepaid assessment as prepaid expense asset as of

December 30 2009 the date of payment and will record an expense charge to earnings for its regular

quarterly assessment and an offsetting credit to the prepaid assessment until the asset is exhausted

We are generally unable to control the amount of premiums that we are required to pay for FDIC insurance If

there are additional bank or financial institution failures we may be required to pay even higher FDIC premiums

Our expenses for the year ended December 31 2009 have been significantly and adversely affected by these

increased and prepaid premiums and the special assessment These increases and assessment and any future

increases in insurance premiums or additional special assessments may materially adversely affect our results of

operations

The soundness of other financial services institutions may adversely affect our credit risk

We rely on other financial services institutions through trading clearing counterparty and other relationships

We maintain limits and monitor concentration levels of our counterparties as specified in our internal policies

Our reliance on other financial services institutions exposes us to credit risk in the event of default by these

institutions or counterparties These losses could adversely affect our results of operations and financial

condition

Changes in interest rates could adversely impact our financial condition and results of operations

Our ability to make profit like that of most financial institutions substantially depends upon our net interest

income which is the difference between the interest income earned on interest earning assets such as loans and

investment securities and the interest expense paid on interest-bearing liabilities such as deposits and

borrowings Changes in interest rates can increase or reduce net interest income and net income

Different types of assets and liabilities may react differently and at different times to changes in market interest

rates When interest-bearing liabilities mature or reprice more quickly than interest-earning assets in period an

increase in market rates of interest could reduce net interest income When interest-earning assets mature or

reprice more quickly than interest-bearing liabilities falling interest rates could reduce net interest income

Changes in market interest rates are affected by many factors beyond our control including inflation

unemployment money supply international events and events in the United States and other financial markets

We attempt to manage risk from changes in market interest rates in part by controlling the mix of interest rate

sensitive assets and interest rate sensitive liabilities However interest rate risk management techniques are not

exact and rapid increase or decrease in interest rates could adversely affect our financial performance
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Our loan portfolio includes large number and amount of commercial and industrial loans and commercial

real estate related loans which have higher degree of risk than other types of loans

We provide lending services to various types of small businesses their owners professionals and other

individuals Commercial loans are generally considered to have higher degree of risk of default or loss than

other types of loans such as residential real estate loans because repayment may be affected by general

economic conditions interest rates the quality of management of the business and other factors that may cause

borrower to be unable to repay
its obligations The current economic downturn may increase this risk of default

or loss which may adversely impact our results of operations and financial condition

The severity and duration of the current recession and the composition of our loan portfolio could impact the

level of loan charge-offs and the provision for loan losses and may affect our net income or loss

National and regional economic conditions could impact the loan portfolio of Graystone Tower Bank For

example an increase in unemployment decrease in real estate values or increases in interest rates as well as

other factors could further weaken the economies of the communities we serve Weakness in the market areas it

serves could depress our earnings and consequently our financial condition because

borrowers may not be able to repay their loans

the value of the collateral securing our loans to borrowers may decline and

the overall quality of our loan portfolio may decline

Any of these scenarios could require that we charge-off higher percentage of our loans and/or increase our

provision for loan losses which would negatively impact our results of operations

In this regard in establishing the size of our allowance for loan losses we makes various general assumptions

and judgments about the quality and collectability of our loan portfolio including the creditworthiness of

borrowers and the value of the real estate and other assets serving as collateral for the repayment of loans The

amount of our provision for loan losses and the percentage of loans we are required to charge-off may be

impacted by adverse developments in and the overall risk composition of the loan portfolio While we believe

that our allowance for loan losses as of December 2009 is sufficient to cover losses inherent in the loan

portfolio on that date we may be required to increase our loan loss provision or charge-off higher percentage of

loans due to adverse developments in or changes in the risk characteristics of the loan portfolio thereby

negatively impacting our results of operations For example decrease in real estate values could cause higher

loan losses and require higher loan loss provisions for loans that are secured by real estate

We are required to make number ofjudgments in applying accounting policies and different estimates and

assumptions in the application of these policies could result in decrease in capital and/or other material

changes to our reports offinancial condition and results of operations

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the determination of the

allowance for loan losses and reserve for unfunded lending commitments the effectiveness of derivatives and

other hedging activities the fair value of certain financial instruments securities derivatives and privately held

investments income tax assets or liabilities including deferred tax assets and any related valuation allowance

share-based compensation and accounting for acquisitions including the fair value determinations and the

analysis of goodwill impairment While we have identified those accounting policies that are considered critical

and have procedures in place to facilitate the associated judgments different assumptions in the application of

these policies could result in decrease to net income and possibly capital and may have material adverse

effect on our financial condition and results of operations

Difficulties in integrating past or future acquisitions could adversely affect our business

We have spent and may continue to spend significant resources identifying businesses to acquire The efficient

and effective integration of any businesses Tower acquires into its organization is critical to our growth Our
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completed acquisition of Graystone Financial Corp our pending acquisition of First Chester County

Corporation and any future acquisitions involve numerous risks including difficulties in integrating the culture

operations technologies and personnel of the acquired companies the diversion of managements attention from

other business concerns and the potential loss of customers Failure to successfully integrate the operations of

Graystone and First Chester could also harm our business results of operations and cash flows

We plan to pursue growth strategy and there are risks associated with rapid growth

Prior to our merger with Graystone Financial Corp Graystone had experienced rapid growth since opening in

November 2005 Towers management intends to continue to pursue growth plan which may include growth

by acquisition as well as leveraging our existing branch network and adding new branch locations in existing

and new markets

Our ability to manage growth successfully will depend on our ability to attract qualified personnel and maintain

cost controls and asset quality while attracting additional loans and deposits on favorable terms as well as on

factors beyond our control such as economic conditions and competition If we grow too quickly and are not

able to attract qualified personnel control costs and maintain asset quality this continued rapid growth could

materially adversely affect our financial performance

We may elect or need to seek additional capital in the future but that capital may not be available when

needed

We are required by federal and state regulatory authorities to maintain adequate levels of capital to support our

operations In the future we may elect or need to raise additional capital Our ability to raise additional capital if

needed will depend on conditions in the capital markets at that time which are outside our control and on our

financial performance Accordingly we cannot assure you of our ability to raise additional capital if needed on

acceptable terms If we cannot raise additional capital when needed our ability to expand our operations through

internal growth or acquisitions could be materially impaired

Future acquisitions could dilute your ownership of our common stock and may cause us to become more

susceptible to adverse economic events

We may issue shares of our common stock in connection with future acquisitions and other investments which

would dilute your ownership interest in Tower While there is no assurance that these transactions will occur or

that they will occur on terms favorable to us future business acquisitions could be material to us and the degree

of success achieved in acquiring and integrating these businesses into Tower could have material effect on the

value of our common stock In addition these acquisitions could require us to expend substantial cash or other

liquid assets or to incur debt which could cause us to become more susceptible to economic downturns and

competitive pressures

Our controls and procedures may fail or could be circumvented

Our management has implemented series of internal controls disclosure controls and procedures and corporate

governance policies and procedures in order to ensure accurate financial control and reporting However any

system of controls no matter how well designed and operated can only provide reasonable not absolute

assurance that the objectives of the system are met Any failure or circumvention of our controls andlor

procedures could have material adverse effect on our business and results of operation and financial condition

Loss of our senior executive officers or other key employees could impair our relationship with our customers

and adversely affect our business

We have assembled senior management team which has substantial background and experience in banking and

financial services in the markets it serves Loss of these key personnel could negatively impact our earnings

because of their skills customer relationships andlor the potential difficulty of promptly replacing them
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An interruption or breach in security with respect to our information systems as well as information systems

of our outsourced service providers could damage our reputation result in loss of customer business

subject us to additional regulatory scrutiny or expose us to civil litigation any of which could have material

adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations

We rely heavily on communications and information systems to conduct our business Any failure interruption

or breach in security of these systems could result in failures or disruptions in our customer relationship

management general ledger deposit loan and other systems

We continually encounter technological change

Our future success depends in part on our ability to effectively embrace technology efficiencies to better serve

customers and reduce costs Failure to keep pace with technological change could potentially have an adverse

effect on our business operations and financial condition

Strong competition within our market area may limit our growth and profitability

Competition in the banking and financial services industry is intense We compete actively with other

Pennsylvania and Maryland financial institutions many larger than us as well as with financial and non-financial

institutions headquartered elsewhere Commercial banks savings banks savings and loan associations credit

unions and money market funds actively compete for deposits and loans Such institutions as well as consumer

finance insurance companies and brokerage firms may be considered competitors with respect to one or more

services they render We will likely be generally competitive with all institutions in our service areas with respect

to interest rates paid on time and savings deposits service charges on deposit accounts interest rates charged on

loans and fees for trust and investment advisory services Many of the institutions with which we compete have

substantially greater resources and lending limits and may offer certain services that we do not or cannot provide

Our profitability depends upon our ability to successfully compete in our market area

We operate in highly regulated environment and may be adversely affected by changes in laws and

regulations

Tower and Graystone Tower Bank are subject to extensive regulation supervision and examination by certain

state and federal agencies including the FDIC as insurer of Graystone Tower Banks deposits the Federal

Reserve as regulator of Tower and the Pennsylvania Department of Banking as regulator of Pennsylvania

chartered banks Such regulation and supervision govern the activities in which an institution and its holding

company may engage and are intended primarily to ensure the safety and soundness of financial institutions

Regulatory authorities have extensive discretion in their supervisory and enforcement activities including the

imposition of restrictions on operations the classification of assets and determination of the level of the

allowance for loan losses Any change in such regulation and oversight whether in the form of regulatory policy

regulations legislation or supervisory action may have material impact on our operations

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

The price of our common stock may fluctuate significantly and this may make it difficult for you to resell

shares of common stock owned by you at times or at prices you find attractive

The price of our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market constantly changes We expect that the market

price of our common stock will continue to fluctuate and there can be no assurance about the market prices for

our common stock

Our stock price may fluctuate as result of variety of factors many of which are beyond our control These

factors include

our financial condition performance creditworthiness and prospects
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quarterly variations in our operating results or the quality of our assets

operating results that vary from the expectations of management securities analysts and investors

changes in expectations as to our future financial performance

announcements of innovations new products strategic developments significant contracts

acquisitions and other material events by us or our competitors

the operating and securities price performance of other companies that investors believe are

comparable to us

future sales of our equity or equity-related securities

the credit mortgage and housing markets the markets for securities relating to mortgages or housing

and developments with respect to financial institutions generally

changes in global financial markets and global economies and general market conditions such as

interest or foreign exchange rates stock commodity or real estate valuations or volatility and other

geopolitical regulatory or judicial events and

the relatively low trading volume of our common stock

The trading volume in our common stock is less than that of other financial services companies

Our common stock has been listed on the NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol TOBC since April

2009 The average daily trading volume for shares of our common stock is less than other financial services

companies Given the lower trading volume of our common stock the sale of significant number of these

shares or the expectation of such sales could adversely affect the market price of our stock

We may issue additional common stock or other equity securities in the future which could dilute the

ownership interest of existing shareholders

In order to maintain our capital at desired or regulatory-required levels or to replace existing capital we may

issue additional shares of common stock or securities convertible into exchangeable for or representing rights to

acquire shares of common stock We are generally not restricted from issuing such additional shares We may

sell any shares that we issue at prices below the current market price of our common stock and the sale of these

shares may significantly dilute shareholder ownership We could also issue additional shares in connection with

acquisitions of other financial institutions

Offerings of debt which would be senior to our common stock upon liquidation and/or preferred equity

securities which may be senior to our common stock for purposes of dividend distributions or upon

liquidation may adversely affect the market price of our common stock

We may attempt to increase our capital resources or if our or Graystone Tower Banks capital ratios fall below

the required minimums we or the Bank could be forced to raise additional capital by making additional offerings

of debt or preferred equity securities including medium-term notes trust preferred securities senior or

subordinated notes and preferred stock Upon liquidation holders of our debt securities and shares of preferred

stock and lenders with respect to other borrowings are likely to receive distributions of our available assets prior

to the holders of our common stock Additional equity offerings may dilute the holdings of our existing

shareholders or reduce the market price of our common stock or both Holders of our common stock are not

entitled to preemptive rights or other protections against dilution

Our board of directors is authorized to issue one or more classes or series of preferred stock from time to time

without any action on the part of the shareholders Our board of directors also has the power without shareholder

approval to set the terms of
any

such classes or series of preferred stock that may be issued including voting
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rights dividend rights and preferences over our common stock with respect to dividends or upon our dissolution

winding up and liquidation and other terms If we issue preferred stock in the future that has preference over

our common stock with respect to the payment of dividends or upon our liquidation dissolution or winding up

or if we issue preferred stock with voting rights that dilute the voting power of our common stock the rights of

holders of our common stock or the market price of our common stock could be adversely affected

Our ability to pay dividends is subject to limitations

Tower Bancorp is bank holding company and its operations are principally conducted by its subsidiary bank

Graystone Tower Bank Accordingly our ability to pay dividends depends on the receipt of dividends from

Graystone Tower Bank As state chartered bank Graystone Tower Bank is subject to regulatory restrictions on

the payment and amounts of dividends under the Pennsylvania Banking Code Further the ability of banking

subsidiaries to pay dividends is also subject to their profitability financial condition capital expenditures and

other cash flow requirements There is no assurance that our subsidiaries will be able to pay dividends in the

future or that we will generate adequate cash flow to pay dividends in the future The failure to pay dividends on

our common stock could have material adverse effect on the market price of our common stock

Our management controls substantial percentage of our stock and therefore have the ability to exercise

significant control over our affairs

Our directors and executive officers beneficially own in excess of 25% of our issued and outstanding common

stock on fully diluted basis Such persons as group will have sufficient votes to strongly influence the

outcome of matters submitted to our shareholders including the election of directors This concentration of

ownership might also have the effect of delaying or preventing change in control of Tower

Anti -takeover provisions and restrictions on ownership could negatively impact our shareholders

Provisions of Pennsylvania law and our amended and restated articles of incorporation and bylaws could make it

more difficult for third party to acquire control of us or have the effect of discouraging third party from

attempting to acquire control of us These provisions could make it more difficult for third party to acquire us

even if an acquisition might be in the best interest of our shareholders In addition the Bank Holding Company

Act of 1956 as amended or the BHCA requires any bank holding company to obtain the approval of the Federal

Reserve Board prior to acquiring more than 5% of our outstanding common stock Any person other than bank

holding company is required to obtain prior approval of the Federal Reserve Board to acquire 10% or more of our

outstanding common stock under the Change in Bank Control Act Any holder of 25% or more of our

outstanding common stock other than an individual is subject to regulation as bank holding company under

the BHCA

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None
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Item Properties

The following table summarizes the Companys branch and office properties by county as of December 31

2009

PA

PA

PA

PA

PA

PA

PA

PA

MD

14 13 27

PA

PA

PA

PA

Included in the Administrative Office Locations section of the above table is the corporate operations center for

Tower Bancorp Inc and Graystone Tower Bank located at 1828 Good Hope Road Enola Pennsylvania and our

principal executive offices located at 112 Market Street Harrisburg Pennsylvania

Item Legal Proceedings

The nature of our business generates certain amount of litigation involving matters arising in the ordinary

course of business However in the opinion of management there are no proceedings pending to which Tower is

party or to which our property is subject which if determined adversely to Tower would be material in relation

to our shareholders equity or financial condition In addition no material proceedings are pending nor are

known to be threatened or contemplated against us by governmental authorities or other parties

Item Reserved

State Owned Leased Total
County

Bank Branches

Centre

Cumberland

Dauphin

Franklin

Fulton

Lancaster

Lebanon

York

Washington

Total

Administrative Office Locations

Cumberland

Dauphin

Lebanon

Lancaster

Total
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PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases

of Equity Securities

Common Stock

As of December 31 2009 the Company had 7122683 shares of no-par value common stock outstanding held by

approximately 1389 holders of record Since April 2009 the common stock of the Company has been traded

on the Global Market of The NASDAQ Stock Market under the symbol TOBC Prior to that our common

stock was traded on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board OTCBB

The following table presents for the calendar quarters indicated per share cash dividends declared and the high

and low bid prices for our common stock as reported on the OTCBB and since April 2009 the high and low

sales prices reported on the NASDAQ Global Market in U.S dollars OTCBB quotations reflect inter-dealer

prices without markup markdown or commissions and may not represent actual transactions

Dividends paid to Tower are primarily provided from Graystone Tower Banks dividends to Tower The payment

of dividends by Graystone Tower Bank to Tower is subject to the restrictions described in Note 19 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item of this Report which information is incorporated by

reference in this Item In the merger agreement with Graystone Financial Corp we committed to maintain our

annual dividend rate of at least $1.12 per share for two years after the merger which was consummated on

March 31 2009 subject to there being sufficient funds legally available to pay the dividend and further provided

that we continue to be well capitalized on consolidated basis in accordance with applicable regulatory

guidelines following the payment of the dividend We did not repurchase any shares of our common stock during

the year ended December 31 2009

Price Range Cash Dividend

Low High Paid Per Share

2009

First Quarterl $19.00 $26.50 $1.40

Second Quarter 22.50 37.50 0.28

Third Quarter 25.26 37.00 0.28

Fourth Quarter 19.06 26.75 0.28

2008

First Quarterl $38.25 $41.50 $0.28

Second Quarterl 37.10 39.45 0.28

Third Quarterl 28.50 11.25 0.28

Fourth Quarterl 19.00 32.00 0.28

The cash dividend information included in this table for periods prior to March 31 2009 relates to dividends

declared and paid by Tower Bancorp Inc prior to the merger with Graystone Financial Corp Since the historical

information of the Company is that of Graystone Financial Corp resulting from the merger being accounted for

as reverse acquisition these dividends are not reflected within the historical financial statements or associated

footnotes

The cash dividend declared and paid by the Company during the first quarter of 2009 includes special

dividend of $1.12 per share as prescribed by the Merger Agreement
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Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table provides information about options outstanding under the Companys 2007 Stock Incentive

Plan 1995 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan and the Stock Option Plan for Outside Directors as of

December 31 2009

Number of securities

remaining available for

future issuance under

Number of securities to Weighted-average equity compensation

be issued upon exercise exercise price of plans excluding

of outstanding options outstanding options securities reflected in

Plan Category warrants and rights warrants and rights first column

Equity compensation plans approved

by security holders 179995 $25.98 155594

Equity compensation plans not

approved by security holders

Total 179995 $25.98 155594

Performance Graph

The graph below shows cumulative investment returns to shareholders based on the assumptions that an

investment of $100.00 was made on December 31 2004 in each of the following Tower Bancorp Inc

common stock ii the stock of all companies traded on the broad-market Russell 3000 Index iii the stock of

all companies included in the SNL Bank Index and iv peer group consisting of banking and financial holding

companies with total assets between $l-$5 billion that are included and tracked within the SNL Bank $IB-$5B

Index

The graph below is furnished under this Part II Item of this Form 10-K and shall not be deemed to be

soliciting material or to be filed with the Commission or subject to Regulation 14A or 14C or to the

liabilities of Section 18 of the Exchange Act of 1934 as amended
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Period Ending

Index 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

TowerBancorpInc $100.00 $111.91 $107.16 $100.85 $57.02 63.68

SNLBank $100.00 $101.36 $118.57 92.14 $52.57 52.03

Russell 3000 $100.00 $106.12 $122.80 $129.11 $80.94 $103.08

SNL Bank $IB-$5B $100.00 98.29 $113.74 82.85 $68.72 49.26

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Not Applicable

Total Return Performance

140.00

120.00

100.00

80.00

60.00

40.00

20.00

0.00

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

4-Tower Bancorp RSNL Bank Russell 3000 E-SNL Bank $1B-$5B
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Item Selected Financial Data

5-YEAR CONSOLIDATED SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESULTS1

dollars in thousands except per-share data

Period from Sept

For the Years Ended December 31 dat
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

Interest income 56383 32157 24313 10618 251

Interest expense
20428 16481 13586 5899 98

Net interest income 35955 15676 10727 4719 153

Provisionforloanlosses 5216 2550 1997 1756 400

Non-interest income 8828 3089 1592 367

Non-interest expense
31949 13800 10674 6413 1321

Merger expense
2080

Income loss before income taxes 5538 2415 352 3083 1563

Income taxes 1829 333

Netincomeloss 3709 2082 346 3083 1563

PER COMMON SHARE
Net Income Loss Per Common Share

Basic
0.72 0.76 0.19 2.88 1.54

Diluted 0.72 0.76 0.19 2.88 1.54

Dividends declared 0.84

Weighted Average Common Shares

Outstanding

Basic 5156078 2734027 1867767 1070519 1014300

Diluted 5161325 2734027 1867767 1070519 1014300

Common shares outstanding at period

end 7122683 2740325 2733663 1246700 1014300

Bookvaluepershare
23.02 19.99 19.05 11.21 14.30

Book value per share tangible 20.86 19.99 19.05 11.21 14.30

RATIOS

Return on average assets
0.32% 0.38% -0.10% -1.98% -5.48%

Return on average tangible assets 0.35% 0.38% -0.10% -1.98% -5.48%

Return on average equity
3.22% 3.90% -1.15% -21.96% -10.22%

Netinterestmargin
3.49% 2.97% 3.24% 3.10% 2.89%

Efficiency ratio
75.99% 73.54% 86.64% 126.09% 836.08%

Dividend Payout Ratio 116.67% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Average equity to average assets ratio 9.92% 9.73% 8.84% 9.0 1% 53.62%

PERIOD-END BALANCES

Total assets $1470583 641318 446412 245095 65091

Investment securities 189853 19904 27931 63734 36807

Loans net of unearned income 1146305 571046 390274 172519 25638

Allowance for Loan Losses 9695 6017 4148 2516 400

Goodwill and intangible assets 15302

Deposits and securities sold under

repurchased agreements
1223361 533854 385391 223622 40638

Borrowings 70981 43614 4430 6200 9714

Shareholders equity 163877 54785 52085 13971 14502

Due to the merger of Tower Bancorp Inc and Graystone
Financial Corp on March 31 2009 all periods prior to

March 31 2009 represent
the results of Graystone Financial Corp as the accounting acquirer in the merger
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

OVER VIEW

Managements discussion and analysis of the changes in the consolidated results of operations financial

condition and cash flows of Tower Bancorp Inc and its subsidiary is set forth below for the periods indicated

Unless the context requires otherwise the terms Tower we us and our refer to Tower Bancorp Inc

and its wholly-owned subsidiary Graystone Tower Bank Through Graystone Tower Bank we provide banking

and banking related services to our customers within our principal market areas consisting of Centre

Cumberland Dauphin Franklin Fulton Lancaster Lebanon and York Counties of Pennsylvania and

Washington County Maryland The following discussion and analysis the purpose of which is to provide

investors and others with information that we believe to be
necessary for an understanding of Towers financial

condition changes in financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the

consolidated financial statements notes and other information contained in this report

FORWARD-LOOKING STA TEMENTS

We have made and may continue to make certain forward-looking statements in this Report including

information incorporated by reference in this Report These forward-looking statements are intended to be

covered by the safe harbor for forward-looking statements provided by the Private Securities Litigation Reform

Act of 1995 Forward-looking statements are not statements of historical fact and can be identified by the use of

forward-looking terminology such as believe expect may will should project plan seek
target intend or anticipate or the negative thereof or comparable terminology Forward-looking statements

include discussions of strategy financial projections and estimates and their underlying assumptions statements

regarding plans objectives expectations or consequences of various transactions and statements about the future

performance operations products and services of Tower and our subsidiaries These forward-looking statements

are subject to various assumptions risks uncertainties and other factors including but not limited to the risk

factors discussed in this Report under Item 1A Risk Factors as well as the following market risk changes or

adverse developments in economic political or regulatory conditions continuation or worsening of the current

disruption in credit and other markets the effect of competition and interest rates on net interest margin and net

interest income investment strategy and income growth investment securities gains declines in the value of

securities which may result in charges to earnings changes in rates of deposit and loan growth asset quality and

the impact on assets from adverse changes in the economy and in credit or other markets and resulting effects on

credit risk and asset values balances of risk-sensitive assets to risk-sensitive liabilities salaries and employee

benefits and other expenses amortization of intangible assets capital and liquidity strategies and other financial

and business matters for future periods

Because of the possibility of changes in these assumptions actual results could differ materially from those

contained in any forward-looking statements We
encourage readers of this Report to understand forward-looking

statements to be strategic objectives rather than absolute targets of future performance Forward-looking

statements are qualified in their entirety by the risk factors and cautionary statements contained in this Report

and speak only as of the date they are made We do not undertake any obligation to update publicly any forward-

looking statements to reflect circumstances or events that occur after the date the forward-looking statements are

made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events except as required by law

Availability of Information

Our web-site address is www.towerbancorp.com We make available free of charge through the Investor

Relations section of our web site our Annual Reports on Form 10-K Quarterly Reports on Form l0-Q current

reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is

electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission
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Mergers and Acquisitions

On March 31 2009 Tower Bancorp Inc completed the merger with Graystone Financial Corp Graystone

in an all stock transaction valued at approximately $57.9 million The merger while considered merger of

equals is accounted for as reverse acquisition by Graystone Financial Corp of Tower Bancorp Inc using the

acquisition method of accounting and accordingly the assets and liabilities of Tower Bancorp Inc have been

recorded at their respective fair values on the date the merger was completed Furthermore the historical

financial information included in Towers consolidated financial statements and related footnotes as reported in

this Form 10-K is that of Graystone Financial Corp The merger was effected by the issuance of shares of Tower

Bancorp Inc common stock to Graystone shareholders Each share of Graystone common stock was exchanged

for 0.42 shares of Tower common stock with any fractional shares as result of the exchange paid to Graystone

shareholders in cash based on $19.78 per
share of Tower common stock

Pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger Tower Bancorp Inc is the surviving bank holding company and

its wholly-owned subsidiary The First National Bank of Greencastle merged with and into Graystones wholly

owned subsidiary Graystone Bank with Graystone Bank as the surviving institution under the name Graystone

Tower Bank the Bank The Bank operates as the sole subsidiary of Tower Bancorp Inc through two

divisions Graystone Bank division of Graystone Tower Bank consisting of the former Graystone Bank

branches and Tower Bank division of Graystone Tower Bank consisting of the former branches of The

First National Bank of Greencastle

The merger deepened Towers foundation in central Pennsylvania with expansion into Centre Cumberland

Dauphin Lancaster Lebanon and York Counties of Pennsylvania As result the Bank now serves eight

counties in Central Pennsylvania and one county in Maryland Our operating philosophy will continue to be

community-oriented financial services company with strong customer focus We believe the merger has

enhanced our business opportunities due to the Bank having greater market share market presence and the

ability to offer more diverse and more profitable products as well as broader based and geographically

diversified branch system to enhance deposit collection and the funding costs and higher legal lending limit to

originate larger and more profitable commercial loans We also believe that the merger of the two banks into one

surviving bank Graystone Tower Bank will provide greater efficiency customer service and product delivery

than it would achieve by operating under multi-bank holding company structure

On December 27 2009 Tower Bancorp Inc and First Chester County Corporation First Chester entered into

an Agreement and Plan of Merger pursuant to which Tower will acquire First Chester in an all-stock transaction

valued at approximately $65 million or $10.22 per share based on the closing price of Tower common stock at

the announcement of the Merger Agreement In the merger First Chester shareholders will receive 0.453 shares

of Tower common stock for each share of First Chester common stock they hold on the effective date of the

merger As described in the definitive merger agreement the exchange ratio is subject to upward or downward

adjustment if loan delinquencies at First Chester increase or decrease beyond specified amounts

As part of the definitive agreement Towers subsidiary bank Graystone Tower Bank agreed to increase its

lending facility with First Chester to up to $26 million as well as to purchase up to $100 million of residential

mortgage and commercial loans from First National Bank of Chester County FNB in order for FNB to satisfy

the regulatory capital requirements of the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency the 0CC As of

December 31 2009 the Bank loaned $26 million to First Chester the proceeds of which First Chester

contributed to FNB as Tier capital First Chester pledged 100% of in the capital stock of FNB to Graystone

Tower Bank to secure repayment of the loan The Bank has also purchased approximately $52 million in

performing commercial loans from FNB during December of 2009

Following the transaction based on the 0.453 exchange ratio current Tower shareholders will own

approximately 71% and First Chester shareholders will own approximately 29% of the combined companys

common stock The shareholders of both entities must approve the combination Pending final regulatory and

shareholder approvals the merger is expected to be completed during the second quarter of 2010
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RESULTS FROM OPERATIONS

Summary Financial Results

The merger of Tower Bancorp Inc and Graystone Financial Corp on March 31 2009 has had significant

impact on our results of operations The results for the year ended December 31 2009 include the operating

results of the historic Graystone for the entire year and only the operating results since March 30 2009 for the

historical Tower representing the period after consummation of the Merger which was effective before the

opening of business on March 31 2009 The year-to-date results also include pre-tax merger expenses
of

approximately $2.1 million incurred by Graystone Under the United States Generally Accepted Accounting

Principles U.S GAAP these merger expenses are reflected in the statement of operations in the period in

which the expenses are incurred In addition the prior year period and all historical information provided herein

represents the results of Graystone as the accounting acquirer in the Merger Consequently comparisons to 2008

may not be particularly meaningful The Graystone audited financial statements and footnotes for the year ended

December 31 2008 have been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC within Form 8-K/A

on June 2009

For the year ending December 31 2009 we recognized an after-tax net income of $3.7 million or $0.72 per

diluted share compared to net income of $2.1 million or $0.76 per diluted share 2008 The increase was

primarily the result of the combined operations of the mergerd banks offset by expenses related to the FDIC

special assessment of $580 thousand the recognition of pre-tax merger related expenses of approximately $2.1

million and writedown of deferred tax assets of $181 thousand When excluding these items from earnings on an

after-tax basis net income would have been $5.9 million or $1.13 per diluted share Net interest income before

loan loss provision increased $20.3 million or 129.4% during 2009 compared to the same period in 2008 In

addition to the net interest income contributed by the inclusion of the Tower Bank divisions operations which

added $12.0 million this growth was also driven by organic growth of net interest-earning assets The provision

for loan losses increased by $2.7 million as result of normal loan growth requiring additional reserves to

maintain appropriate loss coverage levels Non-interest income increased by $5.7 million due to increased service

charges on deposit accounts commissions and fees gains on sales of mortgage loans originated for sale income

generated from bank owned life insurance policies and gains recognized in connection with the satisfaction of

purchased impaired loans Non-interest expense excluding merger related expenses increased by $18.1 million

primarily due to increases in compensation costs occupancy expenses FDIC insurance premiums and data

processing expenses
incurred in order to support our continued growth of assets and deposits

Net Interest Income

Net interest income is the most significant component of our net income Net interest income increased $20.3

million or 129.4% to approximately $36.0 million for the year ended December 31 2009 as compared to

approximately $15.7 million for 2008 The $20.3 million increase in net interest income includes $12.0 million as

result of the net contribution from interest-earning assets and interest-earning liabilities from the Tower Bank

division as result of the Merger on March 31 2009 Excluding the effect of the Merger net interest income

increased by $8.3 million or 52.9% over the year ended December 31 2008

The following table provides comparative average balance sheet and net interest income analysis for 2009

compared to 2008 and 2007 Interest income and yields are presented on fully taxable-equivalent FTE basis

using 34% Federal tax rate The discussion following this table is based on these tax-equivalent amounts We

manage our risk associated with changes in interest rates through the techniques described in this Report under

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk All dollar amounts are in thousands
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For the Year Ended December 31

Interest-earning assets

Federal funds sold and

others 32565

Investment securities 88961

Loans 909476

Total interest-earning

assets

Other assets

Total assets

Interest-bearing liabilities

Interest-bearing non-maturity

deposits

Time deposits

Borrowings

Total interest-bearing

liabilities

Net interest spread

Net interest income and

interest rate margin FTE

Tax equivalent adjustment

Net interest income

453057 16481

32610

9952

53398

$549017

3.64% 285001 13586

22403

3532

30143

$341079

Ratio of average interest-

earning assets to average

interest-bearing

liabilities 110.0%
_________ _________

The average yields for investment securities available for sale are reported on fully taxable-equivalent basis

at rate of 34%

Average
Balance

2009 2008

Average Average
Interest Rate Balance Interest

2007

Average Average Average

Rate Balance Interest Rate

123

2024

54304

0.38% 8764

2.28% 27780

5.97% 492106

247

925

31026

1031002 56451

2.82% 22378

3.33% 32160

6.30% 276252

1150

1655

21512

5.14%

5.15%

7.79%

128214

$1159216

503998

365623

68053

330790 24317

10289

$341079

5.48% 528650 32198

20367

$549017

1.52% $130038 3165

2.82% 276821 11941

3.62% 46198 1375

7640

10323

2465

2.43% 86533

4.31% 171941

2.98% 26527

Demand deposits

Other liabilities

Stockholders equity 115037

937674 20428

83362

23144

3564

8792

1230

Total liabilities and

stockholders equity $1159216

4.12%

5.11%

4.64%

4.77%

2.58%3.30%

36023 3.49%

68

35955

2.45%

15717 2.97%

41

15676

10731 3.24%

10727

116.7% 116.1%
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The following table sets forth summary of changes in FTE interest income and expense resulting from changes

in average balances volumes and changes in rates

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31 2009 vs December 31 2008 vs

December 31 2008 December 31 2007

Increase Decrease Due to Increase Decrease Due to

Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total

in thousands in thousands

Interest income

Federal funds sold 230 354 124 519 384 903
Investment securities 1473 374 1099 203 527 730
Loans 25003 1725 23278 14236 4722 9514

Total interest income 26706 2453 24253 13514 5633 7881

Interest expense

Interest-bearing non-maturity deposits 6067 1592 4475 1388 1787 399
Time deposits 3193 4811 1618 4695 1546 3149

Borrowings 747 343 1090 691 546 145

Total interest expenses 10007 6061 3947 6774 3879 2895

Net interest income $16699 $3607 $20306 6740 $1754 $4986

2009 vs 2008

Interest income increased approximately $24.3 million or 75.3% This increase was caused by an approximate

$502.4 million or 95.0% increase in the average balance of interest-earning assets which resulted in

approximately $26.7 million increase to interest income This increase was partially offset by 61 basis point

reduction in average rates that resulted in reduction of interest income of approximately $2.4 million

Currently we are committed to improving the average rate on loans through the use of interest rate floors where

possible in our existing and new variable rate commercial loan portfolios

Interest income on investment securities increased approximately $1.1 million or 118.8% The average balance

of investments held by the Bank increased from $27.8 million in 2008 to $89.0 million which resulted in an

increase of approximately $1 .5 million in interest income The increase in the average balance of investment

securities relates primarily to the addition of securities acquired through the merger as well as additional

investments purchased following our common stock offering in September 2009 The capital raised through the

common stock offering was used to purchase higher-yielding collateralized mortgage obligation securities and

SBA pooled loan securitizations as well as other lower risk debt securities These investments served as an initial

way for management to deploy the acquired capital into interest earning assets until the proceeds were required

to fund future loan growth slated for the first quarter of 2010 This increase is offset by the reduction in the

interest rates earned on securities primarily due to the overall reduced interest rate environment as compared to

2008 The reduction of 105 basis points on the average rate resulted in reduction of interest income of $374

thousand

Average yields on loans decreased 33 basis points or 5.3% from 6.30% during 2008 to 5.97% during 2009 As

mentioned above the decrease is reflective of the reduced interest rate environment During 2008 the Federal

Reserve reduced the intended federal funds target rate from 4.11% at January 2008 to 2.47% at June 30 2008

and drastically cutting the rate to less than 1.00% during the middle of October 2008 During 2009 the intended

federal funds target rate saw very little change as the rate remained below 0.25% Due to the nominal levels of

the intended federal funds target rate downward pressure was placed on the prime rate and all other lending rates

further adding to the reduced interest rate environment in 2009 as compared to 2008 Average yields did not

decrease as severely as the reduction in the aforementioned rates since fixed rate loans which represent

26



approximately 25% of total loans held at December 31 2009 do not reprice when short-term rates decline

Additionally the total effect of downward loan repricing on variable rate loans will not coincide with the

decrease in the aforementioned rates due to the fact that approximately 86% of our variable rate consumer loans

at December 31 2009 contain interest rate floors

Interest expense increased $3.9 million or 24.0% during 2009 compared to 2008 This increase was caused by

approximately $484.6 million or 107.0% increase in the average balance of interest-bearing liabilities which

resulted in approximately $10.0 million increase to interest expense This increase was predominately offset by

146 basis point reduction in the average rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities which resulted in reduction of

interest expense of approximately $6.1 million This reduction in average rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities

was the result of lower rates paid on interest-bearing non-maturity deposit accounts time deposits and

borrowings

In future periods assuming prolonged flat or declining rate environment we expect an increase in the total

amount of net interest income driven by continued growth in average interest-earning assets the continued use of

floors in our variable rate commercial loan portfolio and the continued repricing of portion of our interest-

bearing time deposit portfolio into lower rate products Any significant changes such as rapid movement in

interest rates set by the Federal Reserve changes in the performance of our interest earning assets the continued

repricing of assets and the inability to move deposit rates in similar increments as earning asset rates may

mitigate this benefit in the future

The benefit associated with an increase in interest rates in the future might not be immediately realized due to the

use of interest rate floors Presumably an increase in future interest rates would cause repricing in all assets and

liabilities linked to variable rate indices however as deposit products would experience any increase on

relatively immediate basis loan products with floors in place would require rate increase such that the resulting

rate earned on the loan would exceed the floor Refer to Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About

Market Risk for more detailed discussion of interest rate risk

2008 vs 2007

Interest income increased approximately $7.9 million or 32.4% This increase was caused by approximately

$197.9 million or 59.8% increase in the average
balance of interest-earning assets which resulted in

approximately $13.5 million increase to interest income This increase was partially offset by 126 basis point

reduction in average rates that resulted in reduction of interest income of approximately $5.6 million

Average yields on loans decreased 148 basis points or 19.0% from 7.79% during 2007 to 6.30% during 2008 As

mentioned above the decrease is reflective of the reduced interest rate environment From 2007 to 2008 the

Federal Reserve reduced the intended federal funds target rate by 292 basis points from 3.06% at December 31

2007 to 0.14% at December 31 2008 This rate decrease resultantly placed downward pressure on the prime

rate and all other lending rates further adding to the reduced interest rate environment Average yields did not

decrease as severely as the reduction in the aforementioned rates since fixed rate loans which represent

approximately 20% of total loans held at December 31 2008 do not reprice when short-term rates declined

Additionally the total effect of downward loan repricing on variable rate loans will not coincide with the

decrease in the aforementioned rates due to the fact that approximately 60% of our variable rate loans at

December 31 2008 contain interest rate floors

Interest expense increased $2.9 million or 1.3% during 2008 compared to 2007 This increase was caused by

approximately $168.1 million or 59.0% increase in the average balance of interest-bearing liabilities which

resulted in approximately $6.8 million increase to interest expense This increase was predominately offset by
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113 basis point reduction in the average rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities which resulted in reduction of

interest expense of approximately $3.9 million This reduction in average rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities

was the result of lower rates paid on interest-bearing non-maturity deposit accounts time deposits and

borrowings

Provision and Allowance for Credit Losses

We account for the credit risk associated with lending activities through our allowance for credit losses and

provision for loan losses The provision is the expense recognized on the consolidated statements of operations to

adjust the allowance to its proper balance as determined through the application of our allowance methodology

procedures These procedures include the evaluation of the risk characteristics of the portfolio and documentation

in accordance with the U.S GAAP Selected Loan Loss Allowance Methodology and Documentation Issues

See the Critical Accounting Policies section of Managements Discussion for discussion of our allowance for

credit loss evaluation methodology

summary of our loan loss experience follows

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

dollars in thousands

Period from

Sept 2005

For the Years Ended December 31
Inception da

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Total loans outstanding at period end $1146305 $571046 $390274 $172519 $25638

Daily average
balance of loans net of unearned

income 909476 $492106 $276252 $105995 8626

Balance at beginning of period 6017 4148 2156 400

Provision for loan losses 5216 2550 1997 1756 400

Charge-offs

Commercial 1398 633
Consumer 193
Residential mortgages 47

Total Charge-offs 1598 681

Recoveries

Commercial 47

Consumer 13

Residential mortgages

Total Recoveries 60

Net charge-offs 1538 681

Balance at end of period 9695 6017 4148 2156 400
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CREDIT FAIR VALUE ADJUSTMENT ON PURCHASED LOANS

dollars in thousands

Period from

Sept 2005

For the Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Balance at beginning of period

Credit Fair Value Adjustment Mark 4044

Amortization 756

Charge-offs

Commercial 61
Consumer 259
Residential mortgages 236

Total Charge-offs 556

Recoveries

Commercial 86

Consumer 123

Residential mortgages

Total Recoveries 210

Net charge-offs 346

Balance at end of period 2942

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

QUALITY ASSET RATIOS

Loan loss reserve to total loans 0.85% 1.05% 1.06% 1.25% 1.56%

Credit loss reserve to total loans 1.11% 1.05% 1.06% 1.25% 1.56%

Non-accrual loans to total loans 0.41% 0.24% 0.02% nlm nlm

Net charge-offs to average loans 0.17% 0.14% 0.00% n/rn n/rn

Non-performing assets to total assets 0.53% 0.23% 0.02% n/rn n/rn

Non-performing loans to total loans 0.60% 0.26% 0.02% n/rn n/rn

Allowance for loan losses to non-performing loans 142.07% 409.32% n/rn n/rn n/rn

Allowance for credit losses to non-performing loans 185.18% 409.32% n/rn n/rn n/rn

n/rn not meaningful

Total loans excludes the impaired loans purchased as part of the Merger
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The following table presents the aggregate amount of non-accrual and past due loans and other real estate owned

NON PERFORMiNG ASSETS

dollars in thousands

Non-accrual loans

Commercial

Consumer

Residential mortgages

Total non-accrual loans

Accruing loans greater than 90 days past due

Commercial

Consumer

Residential mortgages

Total accruing loans greater than 90 days past due

Non-performing loans

Other real estate owned

Non-performing assets

The following table summarizes the allocation of the allowance for loan losses by loan type

of

Loans

In Each

Allowance Category

of

Loans Loans

In Each in Each

Allowance Category Allowance Category Allowance

Commercial $9248 75.69% $5672 89.58% $3917 91.52% $2044 94.8 1% $358 89.53%

Consumer 129 7.5 1% 289 9.52% 205 4.65%

Residential

Mortgages 318 16.80% 56 0.90% 26 3.83% 112 5.19% 42 10.47%

Total $9695 100.00% $6017 100.00% $4148 100.00% $2156 100.00% $400 100.00%

The accounting estimates for loan losses are subject to changing economic conditions At December 31 2009

the non-accrual loans totaled $4.7 million compared to $1.4 million at December 31 2008 Excluding the

non-accrual loans purchased through the Merger of $2.2 million non-accrual loans equaled $2.5 million at

December 31 2009 compared to $1.4 million at December 31 2008 When analyzing the non-accrual loans on

an individual basis there are no individual non-accrual loans with an outstanding balance of greater than $450

thousand Of the $4.7 million of non-accrual loans at December 31 2009 $3.4 million or 72.2% related to

commercial loans $320 thousand or 6.8% to consumer loans and $990 thousand or 21.0% to mortgage loans As

of December 31 2009 we had total impaired loans of $10.9 million Included in impaired loans are loans on

which management has stopped accruing interest in accordance with our loan accounting policy and impaired

loans purchased as result of the merger Management discontinues the accrual of interest on loan when the

contractual payment of principal or interest has become 90 days past due or management has serious doubts

about further collectability of principal or interest even though the loan is currently performing The impaired

loan balance includes $6.2 million of impaired loans acquired as part of the merger which were recorded at their

For the Year Ended

December 31

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

$3408 $1127

320 236

990

$4718

634

87

$1366 87

48 104

1424

2106 104

6824 1470 87

927

$7751 $1470 87

December 31

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

dollars in thousands

%of %of %of
Loans

in Each

Category

Loans

in Each

Allowance Category
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individual fair values as determined based on managements estimate of future cash flows In order to reflect

these purchased loans at fair value we reduced their carrying value by $3.5 million at the time of the merger For

the remaining impaired loans management performed an evaluation of expected future cash flows including the

anticipated cash flow from the sale of collateral Based on these evaluations management has determined that

reserve of $451 thousand is required against the impaired loans at December 31 2009

Management has performed detailed review of the non-performing loans and of their related collateral and

believes the allowance for loan losses remains adequate for the level of risk inherent in the loan portfolio During

2009 the banking industry experienced increasing defaults in mortgage loans coupled with decreasing values of

residential real estate values as result of an economic downturn In addition the prolonged economic recession

present throughout 2009 has resulted in increased delinquencies in our loan portfolio Through our loan approval

process and diligent loan monitoring we have experienced relatively low percentage of non-performing loans

when compared to the total amount of loans

Other real estate owned consists of four properties totaling $927 thousand at December 31 2009 These

properties have been through the foreclosure process and are currently in the process of being sold These

properties are recorded at their lower of cost or market value Market value is based on the anticipated sales price

less costs to sell for each respective property

Other income and Expenses

2009 vs 2008

In addition to our focus on increasing net interest income through growth of interest-earning assets and expansion

in our net interest spread we remain committed to increasing non-interest income as way to improve

profitability and diversify our sources of revenue Net interest income as percentage of net interest income plus

noninterest income was 80.3% for the year
ended December 31 2009 compared to 83.5% for the year ended

December 31 2008

Other income

The following table presents the components of other income for the past two years
All dollar amounts are in

thousands

December 31 December 31
Increase Decrease

2009 2008

Service charges on deposit accounts $2156 809 $1347 166.5%

Other service charges commissions and fees 2131 792 1339 169.1%

Gain on sale of mortgage loans originated for

sale 1521 528 993 188.1%

Gain on sale of other interest earnings assets 364 240 124 51.7%

Income from bank owned life insurance 1034 305 729 239.0%

Other income 1622 415 1207 290.8%

Total non-interest income $8828 $3089 $5739 185.8%

As result of the merger service charges on deposit accounts directly related to the Tower Bank divisions

branches contributed $1.3 million to the overall change in service charges on deposit accounts The majority of

the increase in the other service charges commissions and fees relates to debit card fees and trust services

income which grew by $736 thousand and $424 thousand respectively during 2009 when compared to 2008

The increase in gains on sale of mortgage loans is the direct result of increased volume of loans sold into the

secondary market at our Graystone Mortgage LLC subsidiary which has benefited from the increased residential

refinancing that occurred during 2009 We have also experienced increases in residential mortgages for new

home purchases during 2009 compared to the same year ago period The increase in income from bank owned
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life insurance BOLl is partially due to the addition of bank owned life insurance as result of the Merger

which added $377 thousand The remaining increase in BOLT income can be attributed to the fact that we only

held BOLT contracts for two full quarters in 2008 compared to 2009 when the BOLT contracts were outstanding

for the entire year Finally the increase in other income of $1.2 million relates to gains recognized in connection

with the satisfaction of purchased impaired loans of approximately $681 thousand and other miscellaneous items

At the time of the Merger management had discounted the carrying value of loans considered impaired to fair

value based on anticipated future cash flow projections During the fourth quarter of 2009 management realized

nearly the full carrying value of two purchased impaired loans due to refinancing with third party institution

and sale of collateral by the borrower in an amount to satisfy their obligation with the Bank

Other Expenses

The following table presents the components of other expenses for each of the past two years All dollar amounts

are in thousands

December 31 December 31
Increase Decrease

2009 2008

Salaries and employee benefits $15841 8100 7741 95.6%

Occupancy and equipment 5479 2356 3123 132.6%

Amortization of intangible assets 532 532 n/a%

FDIC insurance premiums 1747 278 1469 528.4%

Advertising and promotion 972 369 603 163.4%

Data processing 2050 654 1396 213.5%

Professional service fees 1155 518 637 123.0%

Other operating expenses 4173 1525 2648 173.6%

Merger related expenses 2080 2080 nla%

Total non-interest expenses $34029 $13800 $20229 146.6%

Salary and employee benefits increased $7.7 million or 95.6% Salaries increased by $6.4 million while

employee benefits increased by $1.3 million As result of the merger salaries and employee benefits directly

related to Tower Bank branches for 2009 contributed approximately $2.8 million to the increase in salary and

benefit expenses The remaining increased level of salary expense was driven by personnel costs in connection

with the opening of branches throughout Central Pennsylvania during the second half of 2008 and 2009 In

addition we continued to add experienced commercial lending personnel and deepen the back office operations

staffing to support growth We also incurred general merit increases for all eligible employees during March

2009

Occupancy and equipment expense increased $3.1 million or 132.6% The increase was partially related to the

additional expense attributable to the Tower Bank divisions branches which contributed $1.3 million to

occupancy and equipment expense The remaining building and equipment expense increase related to the

additional branch offices opened and the lease of the corporate operations center office space during the third

quarter of 2009

The amortization of intangible assets relates to the amortization of the core deposit intangible asset recognized as

result of the Merger

The FDIC imposed special assessment on all FDIC-insured banks based on total assets and Tier capital as of

June 30 2009 As such FDIC-insured institutions subject to the special assessment accrued the liability in their

second quarter results i.e the quarter ending June 30 2009 for calendar year end companies Furthermore the

FDIC has the authority after June 30 2009 to impose additional emergency assessments on all FDIC-insured

banks if it estimates the reserve ratio of the Deposit Insurance Fund will fall to level that is believes would

adversely affect public confidence or level which would be close to zero or negative at the end of calendar
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quarter At this time we cannot estimate the probability of this event however any additional FDIC assessment

and/or premium would be adverse to our future earnings We expensed and paid $580 thousand for the special

FDIC assessment during 2009 This special assessment accounts for portion of the change in the FDIC

insurance premiums expense for 2009 compared to 2008 with the remaining increase due to increases in regular

quarterly premiums On February 27 2009 the FDIC announced that it was increasing federal deposit insurance

premiums beginning the second quarter of 2009 for all well managed well capitalized banks to range
between

12 and 16 cents per $100 of insured deposits on an annual basis At December 31 2009 we had approximately

$936.9 million in FDIC-insured deposits

Data processing expense
increased $1.4 million or 213.5% These increases are directly related to increased data

processing costs given the rapid growth in the Bank including the Merger between December 31 2008 and

December 31 2009

Other operating expenses increased $2.6 million or 173.6% The portion of the increase that can be attributed

directly to the Tower Bank branches equaled $359 thousand for 2009 The remaining increase was primarily due

to increases in telephone and postage expense supplies directors fees travel expenses other state taxes and

fees and debt extinguishment charges of $460 thousand $290 thousand $288 thousand $237 thousand $252

thousand and $119 thousand respectively The debt extinguishment charge relates to the debt fair value discount

recognized on the FHLB borrowings obtained through the Merger that had subsequently been paid-off during the

second quarter of 2009 Additionally we recognized $158 thousand of expenses and losses related to the

maintenance and sales of properties classified as other real estate owned compared to no such related expenses in

2008

The merger related expenses recognized during 2009 consist of $1.8 million associated with the merger with

Graystone Financial Corp and $244 thousand associated with the pending acquisition of First Chester County

Corporation We recognized no merger related expenses during 2008 as the prevailing accounting literature

permitted the deferral and capitalization of these expenses During 2009 the authoritative accounting literature

changed requiring that all expenses incurred in association with merger and acquisition related activities be

expensed as incurred

2008 vs 2007

Other Income

The following table presents the components of other income for the years
ended December 31 2008 and 2007

All dollar amounts are in thousands

December 31 December 31
Increase Decrease

2008 2007

Service charges on deposit accounts 809 498 311 62.4%

Other service charges commissions and fees 792 539 253 46.9%

Gain on sale of mortgage loans originated for

sale 528 358 170 47.5%

Gain on sale of other interest earnings assets 240 100 140 140.0%

Income from bank owned life insurance 305 305

Other income 415 97 318 327.8%

Total non-interest income $3089 $1592 $1497 94.0%

The $1.5 million or 94.0% increase in total non-interest income is mostly attributable to increases in service

charges on deposit accounts other service charges and fees and income recognized on the cash surrender value

of bank owned life insurance which increased $311 thousand $253 thousand and $305 thousand respectively

The increase in service charges on deposits relates to the increase in the deposit balance from $359.1 million at
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December 31 2007 to $525.5 million at December 31 2008 The majority of the increase in the other service

charges and fees relates to commercial banking fees and debit card fees which grew by $124 thousand and $72

thousand during 2008 when compared to 2007 During 2008 the Company purchased bank owned life insurance

BOLl policy for $12 million as means to offset compensation and benefits costs with tax free income

generated from increases in the cash surrender value of the BOLl policies

Other Expenses

The following table presents the components of other expenses for each of the past two years
All dollar amounts

are in thousands

December 31 December 31
Increase Decrease

2008 2007

Salaries and employee benefits 8100 6874 $1226 17.8%

Occupancy and equipment 2356 1473 883 60.0%

FDIC insurance premiums 278 160 118 73.8%

Advertising and promotion 369 253 116 45.8%

Data processing 654 436 218 50.0%

Professional service fees 518 432 86 19.9%

Other operating expenses 1525 1046 479 45.8%

Total non-interest expenses $13800 $10674 $3126 29.3%

Salary and employee benefits increased $1.2 million or 17.8% Salaries increased by $1.5 million while

employee benefits decreased $300 thousand The increase of level of salary expense was driven by personnel

costs in connection with our branch expansion into York Pennsylvania in May 2008 Ephrata Pennsylvania in

July 2008 and State College Pennsylvania in October 2008 In addition we continued to deepen the back office

staffing to support growth

Occupancy and equipment expense increased $833 thousand or 60.0% The building and equipment expense

increase related to the addition of three branch offices during 2008 and increases in administrative office space

Data processing expense
increased $218 thousand or 50.0% These increases are directly related to system

upgrades required given the rapid growth in the Bank between December 31 2007 and December 31 2008

Other operating expenses increased $479 thousand or 45.8% The increase was primarily due to increases in

telephone and postage expense supplies and travel expenses in connection with our branch expansion in 2008

Income Taxes

Income tax expense was $1.8 million and $333 thousand for the year ended December 31 2009 and 2008

respectively and $6 thousand income tax benefit for year ended December 31 2007 Our effective tax rate for

the year ended December 31 2009 was 33.0% The effective tax rate was positively impacted by tax free income

generated by increases in the cash surrender value of bank owned life insurance policies and earnings from

tax-exempt securities offset by non-deductible merger related expenses Our effective tax rate was 13.8% for the

year ended December 31 2008 as result of the release of valuation allowance of $434 thousand established

during 2007 related to the estimated ability to recover net operating loss benefits in future periods The statutory

tax rate for both periods was 34.0%

At the time of the Merger we established full valuation allowance against the deferred tax asset related to

unrealized losses within the equity securities portfolio since it is more likely than not that we will not recognize

sufficient capital gains to offset the unrealized losses Therefore if we realize additional losses in future periods

on sales of equity securities there may be no tax benefit recognized which will cause an increase in the our
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effective tax rate To the extent that we can realize capital gains in future periods tax benefit due to the release

of the valuation allowance might be recognized

Effective June 2007 we ceased to qualify as small business corporation as defined in Internal Revenue Code

IRC 136 1b and thus our corporation election under IRC 1362a was terminated As result we were

taxed directly on our taxable income due to our status change from an corporation to corporation beginning

June 2007

For periods prior to June 2007 we operated as an corporation under the Internal Revenue Code

Accordingly we incurred no federal or state corporate income tax expense Any taxable income or loss generated

was passed directly to our shareholders and taxed at the shareholder level The effective tax rate for the period

from June 2007 to December 31 2007 was 1.7% which was primarily the result of the release of valuation

allowance of $336 thousand established during 2007 related to the estimated ability to recover net operating loss

benefits in future periods The statutory tax rate for 2007 was 34.0%

For additional information regarding income taxes see Note 13 Income Taxes in the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Total Assets

Total assets increased by $829.3 million or 129.3% to $1.5 billion at December 31 2009 as compared to

$641.3 million at December 31 2008 The increase includes $532.1 million of assets received in connection with

the merger on March 31 2009 Excluding the assets received in the merger our total assets grew by

approximately $297.1 million or 46.3% between December 31 2008 and December 31 2009

Loans net

Our gross loan balance grew by $566.9 million or 100.9% to $1.1 billion during 2009 The increase includes

$418.7 million of loans purchased in the merger on March 31 2009 Excluding the fair value of loans purchased

in the merger gross loans grew by approximately $148.1 million or 26.4% since December 31 2008 This

increase in gross loans includes new commercial and consumer loan originations totaling $218.3 million

purchased loans of $55.3 million and lending facility to First Chester County Corporation of $26 million These

increases were partially offset by net decrease in existing loan balances of $167.3 million Management

believes that there continues to be strong demand for commercial and consumer loans to credit qualified

businesses and individuals within our market areas which management anticipates will result in continued loan

growth during 2010

The table below is the detail of the loan balances net of unearned income and allowance for loan losses for the

past five years

For the Year Ended

December 31

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

dollars in thousands

Commercial 861673 $508744 $356880 $163564 $22978

Consumer other 85510 54084 18142

Residential mortgage 191277 5123 14930 8950 2687

Total Loans 1138460 567951 389952 172514 25665

Deferred costs fees 189 229 24 26
Allowance for loan losses 9695 6017 4148 2156 400

Net Loans $1128576 $561705 $385780 $170363 $25239
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The increase in mortgage loans of $186.2 million between December 31 2008 and December 31 2009 is

predominately mortgage loans acquired in the Merger The commercial loan portfolio continues to be the largest

component of our loan portfolio representing 75.7% and 89.6% of total loans at December 31 2009 and

December 31 2008 respectively In addition we have $111.6 million in loan participations without recourse

sold to unaffiliated banks through December 31 2009 where we maintain the servicing rights with these

relationships During 2009 we purchased 22 loans from other unaffiliated banks totaling $55.3 million The net

increase in purchased participations is primarily due to the purchase of 16 loans from First National Bank of

Chester County for 98.5% of par resulting in net purchase price of $51.7 million The Bank is participating in

25 loans purchased from unaffiliated banks that have total outstanding balance of $60.1 million at

December 31 2009 The borrowers on these loans are in-market customers and we have not experienced any

losses due to nonperformance Additionally we have not participated in any shared national credit programs and

we do not have any shared national credits in our loan portfolio We expect continued loan growth as we focus on

serving the credit needs of our market areas while exercising prudent underwriting standards considering the

economic uncertainties that are expected to continue However due to continued uncertain economic conditions

resulting in lower levels of loan demand we expect that loan growth may be slower than historically

experienced

Securities Available for Sale

The following table presents the amortized cost and fair value of investment securities for the past three years

December 31 2009 December 31 2008 December 31 2007

dollars in thousands

Amortized Amortized Fair Amortized Fair

Cost Fair Value Cost Value Cost Value

Equity securities 1.156 1132

U.S Government sponsored agency

securities 56437 56384 18402 18605 26493 26518

U.S Government sponsored agency

mortgage-backed securities 9109 9116

Collateralized mortgage obligations 93058 92485

Municipal bonds 7093 7188 1279 1299 1399 1413

Municipal bonds taxable 12917 12910

SBA Pool Loan Investments 10710 10638

$190480 $189853 $19681 $19904 $27892 $27931

At December 31 2009 total available for sale securities were $189.9 million an increase of $170.0 million from

total available for sale securities of $19.9 million at December 31 2008 The securities available for sale

portfolio at December 31 2008 consisted entirely of U.S Government agency securities and municipal bonds of

$19.9 million of which $18.5 million matured or were called during 2009 As result of the Merger we acquired

available for sale securities with fair value balance of $58.3 million These securities included $47.0 million of

debt securities and $11.3 million of equities with the equities consisting mostly of investments in banks bank

holding companies and financial institutions Since March 31 2009 we have purchased debt securities and sold

various debt and equity securities to realign the holdings within the equity investment portfolio obtained through

the Merger with our overall investment strategy by shifting the investments in higher-risk equity securities to

fixed income debt securities with less exposure to market volatility

Subsequent to the Merger we have sold securities valued at approximately $10.2 million from the equity

portfolio resulting in net gain on sale of securities of $88 thousand for the year ended December 31 2009 At

December 31 2009 management had identified equity securities with unrealized losses that were deemed to be

other than temporary in nature and as result recognized an impairment charge of $156 thousand The fair value

of the remaining equity portfolio totaled $1.1 million at December 31 2009 Many of the equity securities held in
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the portfolio at December 31 2009 are financial institutions that management considers to be highly illiquid due

to the nature of the institution and the manner in which shares are offered into the market Certain positions held

in the equity securities are in excess of the average daily trading volume These securities if determined to be

traded in an active market shall be measured within Level as the product of the quoted price for the individual

instrument times the quantity held The quoted price shall not be adjusted because of the size of the position

relative to trading volume blockage factor The use of blockage factor is prohibited even if markets normal

daily trading volume is not sufficient to absorb the quantity held and placing orders to sell the position in single

transaction might affect the quoted price We will continue to focus the composition of the portfolio to consist

primarily of fixed income securities in an attempt to minimize volatility to future earnings Considering the

current volatility in the financial services industry and the fair value determinations we continue to expect to

recognize gains and losses through the statement of operations as result of the difference between the fair value

of these securities and the proceeds recognized upon the sale of these securities

Bank-owned Life Insurance

In July 2008 we purchased bank-owned life insurance BOLl policy for $12 million as means to offset

portion of current and future compensation and benefits costs through the recognition of tax-free income

resulting from increases in the cash surrender value of the BOLl policies The Banks deposits and proceeds from

the sale of investment securities funded the BOLl Earnings from the BOLl are recognized within non-interest

income In connection with the merger we acquired an additional $11.3 million in cash surrender value of BOLl

At December 31 2009 the total cash surrender value of the BOLl was $24.6 million

Deposits

Total deposits at December 31 2009 were $1.2 billion an increase of $691.0 million from total deposits of

$525.5 million at December 31 2008 The increase includes $410.2 million of deposits assumed in connection

with the merger on March 31 2009 Excluding the deposits assumed in the merger our total deposits grew by

approximately $280.8 million or 53.4% between December 31 2008 and December 31 2009

The table below displays the increases in deposits by type at December 31 2009 as compared to December 31

2008 All dollar amounts are in thousands

December 31 2009 December 31 2008 Increase/Decrease

Amount Amount

Non-interest bearing transaction accounts 119116 9.8% 42466 8.1% 76650 180.50%

Interest checking accounts 110356 9.0% 19060 3.6% 91296 478.99%

Money market accounts 477292 39.2% 120625 23.0% 356667 295.68%

Savings accounts 87117 7.2% 49310 9.4% 37807 76.67%

Time deposits of $100000 or greater
130938 10.8% 207935 39.6% 76997 37.03%

Time deposits other 291650 24.0% 86074 16A% 205576 238.84%

Total deposits
$1216469 100% $525470 100%

The most significant increases in deposit type were in money market accounts and transaction accounts which

represented 39.2% and 18.8% respectively of total deposits at December 31 2009 compared to 23.0% and

11.7% of total deposits at December 31 2008 The increase in money market deposits is the result of

managements sales and marketing efforts to grow more stable deposits at lower cost than higher-cost time

deposits The money market accounts include $23.1 million and $11.4 million of brokered money market

deposits at December 31 2009 and December 31 2008 respectively Adding to the growth in money market

deposit accounts is the effect of money market deposits at Tower Bank division branch locations which totaled

approximately $105.1 million at December 31 2009 accounting for approximately 29% of the yearly growth in

money market deposits The increase in transaction accounts relates mostly to the transaction account balances

held with Tower Bank division branches which equaled $120.3 million at December 31 2009 representing
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71.6% of the total increase Time deposits represent 34.8% of total deposits at December 31 2009 compared to

56% of total deposits at December 31 2008 The time deposits include $38.0 and $52.2 million of brokered

certificates of deposit at December 31 2009 and December 31 2008 respectively Overall total brokered

deposits decreased to $61.1 million or approximately 3.7% of our total deposits at December 31 2009 as

compared to $63.6 million or 12.1% of total deposits at December 31 2008

The following table presents the maturity of time deposits in denominations of $100 thousand or greater as of

December 31 2009 in thousands

December 31 2009

Less than three months 29825

Over three months to six months 27994

Over six months to twelve months 14053

Over twelve months 59066

Total $130938

The average balances and weighted average rates paid on deposits for 2009 2008 and 2007 are presented in the

table below

December 31 2009 December 31 2008 December 31 2007

dollars in thousands

Average Average Average Average Average Average
Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate

Non-interest bearing transaction accounts 83362 N/A 32610 N/A 22403 N/A

Interest checking accounts 71722 0.55% 23415 1.31% 37646 4.36%

Money market accounts 341585 1.73% 77364 2.63% 46033 4.02%

Savings accounts 90691 1.50% 29259 2.82% 2854 2.45%

Time deposits other 365623 2.82% 276821 4.31% 171941 5.11%

Total $952983 1.88% $439469 3.44% $280877 4.40%

As reflected above we have decreased the average rate on our total deposits by 156 basis points between the

2008 and 2009 Although we operate in very competitive environment for deposits we have been able to grow

our deposits from an average of $439.5 million to $953.0 million between December 31 2008 and December 31

2009 as result of both organic and acquisition-related growth
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Short-Term Borrowings and Long-Term Debt

At or for the year ended

December 31

dollars in thousands

2009 2008 2007

Period-end balance

FHLB Borrowings $59251 $39000

Securities sold under agreement of repurchase
6892 8384 26340

Lines of credit
4614 4430

Subordinated notes 9000

Fed Funds Purchased

Capital lease obligation
2729

Total borrowings
$77872 $51998 $30770

Maximum balance at any month end

FHLB Borrowings
$60914 $39000

Securities sold under agreement of repurchase
9698 33575 26340

Lines of credit
11064 4614 6630

Subordinated notes 9000

Fed Funds Purchased
10612

Capital lease obligation
2729

Average balance

FHLB Borrowings $52823 $26075

Securities sold under agreement of repurchase
7486 20123 20213

Lines of credit
2879 4507 6314

Subordinated notes
4875

Fed Funds Purchased 120 451 232

Capital lease obligation
227

Period-end weighted average interest rate

FHLB Borrowings
3.80% 3.17%

Securities sold under agreement of repurchase
0.52% 1.70% 3.83%

Lines of credit
7.61% 4.62% 7.21%

Subordinated notes
9.52%

Fed Funds Purchased 1.66% 2.35% 5.34%

Capital lease obligation
4.84%

Short-term borrowings decreased $9.3 million from December 31 2008 to December 31 2009 and securities

sold under agreement to repurchase decreased $1.5 million from December 31 2008 to December 31 2009 At

December 31 2008 short-term borrowings included $10 million advance from the Federal Home Loan Bank of

Pittsburgh that was retired in the first quarter of 2009 As result of the merger we assumed $6.4 million of

short-term outstanding borrowings all of which was retired during 2009 At year-end short-term borrowings

consisted of $5.3 million in advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh and $42 thousand in

obligations under capital leases During the year three lines of credit with unaffiliated banks with total

outstanding balance of $7.2 million were fully repaid with net proceeds received from the common stock offering

that occurred during the third quarter of 2009 These lines of credit with unaffihiated banks were payable on

demand or had short-term maturities

Long-term debt increased by $36.7 million from December 31 2008 to December 31 2009 At December 31

2009 long-term debt consisted of $54.0 million in advances from the FHLB that had maturity of greater than

one year $9.0 million of subordinated debt issued in June 2009 and $2.7 million in obligations under capital

leases As result of the merger we assumed $31.9 million of long-term debt of which $5.3 million has since
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been reclassified as short-term borrowings and $1.5 million has been retired The total average rate incurred on

borrowings and securities sold under agreement to repurchase during 2009 was 3.62% compared to an average

rate of 2.98% during 2008

Contractual Obligations and Other Commitments

The following table indicates certain of our funding obligations by time remaining until maturity as of

December 31 2009 as follows in thousands

Less than Over to Over to Over

year years years years Total

Certificates of deposit $210308 $109868 $102334 78 $422588

Borrowings 12142 10000 53095 75237
Commitments to grant loans 12350 12350

Unfunded commitments on lines of credit 267683 267683

Letters of credit 25524 25524

Operating leases 1690 3449 3316 15788 24243

Capital Leases 276 563 607 4137 5583

Total contractual obligations $529973 $123880 $106257 $73098 $833208

Borrowing includes FHLB borrowings and securities sold under agreement of repurchase

We do not expect all of our commitments and letters of credit to be fully funded The total commitment

amount related to these contractual obligations does not necessarily represent to future cash requirements for the

Bank

Stockholders Equity

Total stockholders equity increased $109.1 million or 199.1% from $54.8 million at December 31 2008 to

$163.9 million at December 31 2009 The increase of $109.1 million was due to equity received in the merger on

March 31 2009 of $57.9 million and common stock offering in which Tower received net proceeds of $51.6

million The increase of $57.9 million related to the merger included the addition of approximately $45.9 million

in net assets and $11.9 million of goodwill Tower made capital contribution to its wholly owned bank

subsidiary Graystone Tower Bank in the amount of $43.5 million of the net proceeds received in the common
stock offering The remaining net proceeds were used to pay down short-term borrowings long-term debt and

other operating expenses The increase in accumulated comprehensive income is attributed to the unrealized

gains on available for sales securities The increase in our accumulated deficit is due to the declaration of

dividends of $4.8 million to our stockholders offset by the net income of $3.7 million

Regulatory Capital

We are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by banking regulators Failure to meet

minimum capital requirements can initiate certain actions by regulators that could have material effect on our

consolidated financial statements The regulations require that banks maintain minimum amounts and ratios of

total and Tier capital as defined in the regulations to risk weighted assets as defined and Tier capital to

average assets as defined As of December 31 2009 Tower and the Bank met the minimum requirements In

addition capital ratios of Tower and the Bank exceeded the amounts required to be considered well capitalized

as defined in the regulations

On June 12 2009 Tower issued to private investors $9 million of subordinated notes bearing an annual interest

rate of 9.00% Each note may be redeemed at the our discretion and contains maturity date of July 2014

Tower has contributed the net proceeds from the sale of the notes to the Bank as Tier capital to support the

Banks continued growth including ongoing lending activities in its local markets The Notes are intended to
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qualify as Tier capital at Tower Bancorp mc for regulatory purposes to the extent permitted In accordance

with applicable regulatory treatment one-fifth of the original principal amount of the Notes will be excluded each

year from Tier capital during the last five years prior to maturity The following table summarizes Graystone

Tower Bank and Tower Bancorp Inc.s regulatory capital ratios in comparison to regulatory requirements

December 31 December 31 Minimum Capital

2009 2008 Adequacy

Graystone Tower Bank

Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets 14.43% 10.80% 8.00%

Tier Capital to Risk Weighted Assets 13.58% 9.80% 4.00%

Tier Capital to Average Assets 11.13% 9.20% 4.00%

December 31 December 31 Minimum Capital

2009 2008 Adequacy

Tower Bancorp Inc

Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets 14.53% 10.10% 8.00%

Tier Capital to Risk Weighted Assets 13.05% 9.10% 4.00%

Tier Capital to Average Assets 10.70% 8.50% 4.00%

Management believes as of December 31 2009 that the Company and the Bank met all capital adequacy

requirements to which it is subject

The Bank is subject to certain restrictions on the amount of dividends that it may declare due to regulatory

considerations The Pennsylvania Banking Code provides that cash dividends may be declared and paid only out

of accumulated net earnings As result of the Merger $24.4 million of accumulated earnings related to the

pre-merger retained earnings of First National Bank of Greencastle were transferred and reclassified into

additional paid-in capital of Graystone Tower Bank Based on approval received from the Pennsylvania

Department of Banking this amount is available for cash dividends and may be declared and paid in future

periods During the year we declared dividends of $0.84 per
share which totaled $4.8 million

During the second quarter of 2009 the Board of Directors approved Dividend Reinvestment and Stock

Purchase Plan Plan to provide our shareholders with the opportunity to use cash dividends as well as

optional cash payments up to $50 thousand per quarter to purchase additional shares of our common stock We

have reserved 1000000 shares of common stock no par value for issuance under the Plan At our discretion

shares may be purchased under the Plan directly from Tower or in open market purchases from others by the plan

agent The purchase price for shares purchased from us with reinvested dividends is 95% of the fair market value

of our common stock on the investment date The purchase price for shares purchased with voluntary cash

payments or any open market purchases is 100% of the fair market value of the our common stock on the

investment date During 2009 approximately $404 thousand in capital has been raised under the Plan

Also during the second quarter of 2009 our Board of Directors and shareholders approved an Employee Stock

Purchase Plan Employee Plan to provide our employees with the opportunity to purchase shares of our

common stock directly from us The purchase price for shares purchased under the Employee Plan is 95% of the

fair market value of our common stock on the purchase date During the 2009 approximately $65 thousand in

capital has been raised under the Employee Plan

In connection with the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2009 and the Troubled Asset Recovery

Program TARP the U.S Department of the Treasury UST has initiated Capital Purchase Program Through

this program qualifying financial institutions are eligible to participate in the sale of senior preferred stock to the

UST in an amount not less than 1% of total risk-weighted assets and not more than 3% of total risk-weighted

assets The senior preferred stock will pay cumulative dividends at rate of 5% per year for the first five years

and 9% thereafter The UST would also receive warrants to purchase number of shares of common stock of the

financial institution having an aggregate market value equal to 15% of the senior preferred stock on the date of

the investment subject to certain reductions
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In January 2009 Graystone received preliminary approval from the U.S Treasury Department for the placement

of up to $17.3 million in senior preferred stock In March 2009 Graystone announced that it would not be

participating in the U.S Treasury Departments Troubled Asset Relief Program Capital Purchase Program

Tower Bancorp Inc did not apply to participate in the Capital Purchase Program
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QUARTERLY CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS UNAUDITED
in thousands except per-share data

Three Months Ended

Dec 31 Sept 30 30-Jun 31-Mar

FOR THE YEAR 2009

Interest income 16576 15724 15660 8423

Interest expense
5312 5520 5547 4049

Net interest income 11264 10204 10113 4374

Provision for loan losses 1400 800 650 2366

Other income 3353 1810 2746 948

Other expenses
9909 8694 9681 5774

Income loss before income taxes 3308 2520 2528 2818

Income tax expense benefit 1252 820 690 933

Net income loss 2056 1700 1838 1885

Net Income Per Common Share

Basic 0.29 0.30 0.36 0.68

Diluted 0.29 0.30 0.36 0.68

Dividends declared 0.28 0.28 0.28

Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding

Basic 7114900 5638851 5058119 2765717

Diluted 7115386 5652292 5065180 2765717

FOR THE YEAR 2008

Interest income 8635 8390 7725 7407

Interest expense
4315 4159 4039 3968

Net interest income 4320 4231 3686 3439

Provision for loan losses
650 675 475 750

Other income 795 1044 609 640

Otherexpenses
3697 3543 3362 3197

Income before income taxes
768 1057 458 132

Income taxes
223 346 155 391

Net income 545 711 303 523

Net Income Per Common Share

Basic 0.20 0.26 0.11 0.19

Diluted 0.20 0.26 0.11 0.19

Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding

Basic 2733227 2734206 2734984 2733487

Diluted 2733227 2734206 2734984 2733487
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is summary of those accounting policies that we consider to be most important to the portrayal

of its financial condition and results of operations as they require managements most difficult judgments as

result of the need to make estimates about the effects of matters that are inherently uncertain

Allowance for Credit Losses The Company accounts for the credit risk associated with its lending activities

through the allowance for credit losses The allowance for credit losses consists of the allowance for loan losses

and the credit risk fair value adjustment The allowance for loan losses represents managements estimate of

losses inherent in the existing loan portfolio The credit risk fair value adjustment represents the estimated fair

value of cash flows for loan purchased as part of merger and acquisitions The provision for loan losses is the

periodic charge to earnings which is necessary to adjust the allowance for loan losses to its
proper

balance The

Company assesses the adequacy of its allowance through methodology that consists of the following

Identifying loans that require individual review In general these consist of large balance commercial

loans and commercial mortgages that are rated less than satisfactory based upon the Companys
internal credit-rating process

Assessing whether the loans identified for review are impaired That is whether it is probable that all

amounts will not be collected according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement

For loans reviewed calculating the estimated fair value using observable market prices discounted

cash flows or the value of the underlying collateral

Classifying all non-impaired large balance loans based on credit risk ratings and allocating an

allowance for loan losses based on appropriate factors including recent loss history for similar loans

Identifying all smaller balance homogeneous loans for evaluation collectively In general these loans

include residential mortgages consumer loans installment loans commercial loans and commercial

mortgages rated satisfactory or better smaller balance commercial loans and mortgages and lease

receivables

Homogeneous loans are segmented into
groups with similar characteristics and an allowance for loan

losses is allocated to each segment based on recent loss history and other relevant information

Reviewing the results to determine the appropriate balance of the allowance for credit losses This

review gives additional consideration to factors such as the mix of loans in the portfolio the balance of

the allowance relative to total loans and non-performing assets trends in the overall risk profile of the

portfolio trends in delinquencies and non-accrual loans and local and national economic conditions

An unallocated allowance is maintained to recognize the inherent imprecision in estimating and

measuring loss exposure

Documenting the results of its review

The allowance review methodology is based on information known at the time of the review Changes in factors

underlying the assessment could have material impact on the amount of the allowance that is necessary and the

amount of provision to be charged against earnings Such changes could impact future results

Accounting for Business Combinations The Company accounts for all business acquisitions using the purchase

method of accounting as required by U.S GAAP FASB guidance establishes principles and requirements for

how an acquirer recognizes and measures in its financial statement the identifiable assets acquired the liabilities

assumed and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree recognizes and measures the goodwill acquired in the

business combination or gain from bargain purchase and determines what information to disclose to enable

users of the financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination

The purchase price is established as the value of securities issued for the acquisition and cash consideration paid

The fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed are typically established through appraisals observable
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market values or discounted cash flows Management has engaged independent third-party valuation experts to

assist in valuing certain assets particularly intangibles Other assets and liabilities are generally valued using the

Companys internal asset/liability modeling system The assumptions used and the final valuations whether

prepared internally or by third-party are reviewed by management Due to the complexity of purchase

accounting final determinations of values can be time consuming and occasionally amounts included in the

Companys consolidated balance sheets and consolidated statements of operations are based on preliminary

estimates of value

On April 2009 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued guidance that clarifies that assets

acquired and liabilities assumed in business combination arising from contingencies be initially measured and

recognized at its acquisition date fair value so long as the fair value can be determined during the measurement

period For any asset or liability whose acquisition date fair value cannot be determined an asset or liability shall

be recognized at its estimated fair value provided that there is both evidence that either the asset or liability

existed as of the acquisition date and the amount can be reasonably estimated This guidance is effective for

assets or liabilities arising from contingencies in business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or

after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15 2008 The Company

has adopted this guidance effective for the interim period ending March 31 2009 and utilized the guidance to

recognize liabilities assumed in relation to the merger with Graystone

Goodwill and Intangible Assets Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated lives Some intangible

assets have indefinite lives and are therefore not amortized All intangible assets must be evaluated for

impairment if certain events occur Any impairment write-downs are recognized as expense on the consolidated

statements of operations

Goodwill is not amortized to expense but is evaluated at least annually for impairment The Company tests for

impairment by first allocating its goodwill and other assets and liabilities as necessary to defined reporting

units fair value is then determined for each reporting unit If the fair values of the reporting units exceed their

book values no write-down of the recorded goodwill is necessary If the fair values are less than the book values

an additional valuation procedure is necessary to assess the proper carrying value of the goodwill

Business unit valuation is inherently subjective with number of factors based on assumptions and management

judgments Among these are future growth rates for the reporting units selection of comparable market

transactions discount rates and earnings capitalization rates Changes in assumptions and results due to economic

conditions industry factors and reporting unit performance and cash flow projections could result in different

assessments of the fair values of reporting units and could result in impairment charges If an event occurs or

circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of reporting unit below its carrying

amount an impairment test between annual tests is necessary Such events may include adverse changes in legal

factors or in the business climate adverse actions by regulator unauthorized competition the loss of key

employees or similarevents

Income Taxes The provision for income taxes is based upon net income before income taxes adjusted for the

effect of certain tax-exempt income and non-deductible expenses In addition certain items of income and

expense are reported in different periods for financial reporting and tax return purposes The tax effects of these

temporary
differences are recognized currently in the deferred income tax provision or benefit Deferred tax

assets or liabilities are computed based on the difference between the financial statement and income tax bases of

assets and liabilities using the applicable enacted marginal tax rate

The Company must also evaluate the likelihood that deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable

income If any such assets are more likely than not to not be recovered valuation allowance must be

recognized The assessment of the carrying value of deferred tax assets is based on certain assumptions changes

in which could have material impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

45



The Company also adopted FASB guidance that clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes

recognized in an enterprises financial statements Specifically the interpretation prescribes recognition

threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of tax position

taken or expected to be taken in tax return

See also Note 13 Income Taxes in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Fair Value Measurements On January 2008 the Company adopted the FASB issued statement of fair value

measurement as required by U.S GAAP for all assets and liabilities required to be measured at fair value on

recurring basis and all financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis The

statement establishes fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair

value into the following three categories from highest to lowest priority

Level Inputs that represent quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets

Level Inputs that represent quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices

for identical instruments in non-active markets Also includes valuation techniques whose inputs are

derived principally from observable market data other than quoted prices such as interest rates or other

market-corroborated means

Level Inputs that are largely unobservable as little or no market data exists for the instrument being

valued

As required by the statement the Company has categorized all financial assets and liabilities and all nonfinancial

assets and liabilities required to be measured at fair value on recurring basis into the above three levels In

addition the Company has categorized all financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on nonrecurring

basis into the above three levels See Note 17 Fair Value Measurements in the Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements for the disclosures required by statement

The determination of fair value for assets and liabilities categorized as Level assets requires great deal of

subjectivity due to the use of unobservable inputs In addition determining when market is no longer active and

placing little or no reliance on distressed market prices requires the use of managements judgment The need for

greater management judgment in determining fair values for Level assets and liabilities has further been

heightened by the current challenging economic conditions which have resulted in great deal of volatility in the

fair values of investment securities

The Company engages third-party valuation experts to assist in valuing most of the assets and liabilities

measured at fair value on recurring basis which are classified as Level or Level items

On April 2009 the FASB issued guidance that assists in determining the fair value of financial instruments

when the volume of market based transactions has significantly decreased Additionally it assists in determining

whether or not current market transactions of financial instruments were conducted in an orderly fashion This

guidance does not change the fact that fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to

transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market participants We have adopted this guidance effective

April 2009 and the adoption expanded certain disclosure requirements however it did not have an impact on

the Companys financial condition results of operation or liquidity

On April 2009 the FASB issued guidance that amends the other-than-temporary impairment guidance in U.S

GAAP for debt but does not amend the existing recognition and measurement guidance related to other-than

temporary impairments of equity securities We have adopted this statement effective April 2009 There was

no cumulative effect adjustment as there were no securities that were previously determined to be other than

temporarily impaired Beginning on April 2009 we began analyzing debt securities for other-than-temporary

impairment adjustments using this new guidance
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On April 2009 the FASB issued guidance that requires disclosures about fair value of financial instruments for

interim reporting periods of publicly traded companies as well as in annual financial statements This statement is

effective for interim reporting periods ending after June 15 2009 with early adoption permitted for periods

ending after March 15 2009 We have adopted this guidance effective for the interim period ending June 30

2009

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

For information regarding recent accounting pronouncements refer to Note Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies of this Form 10-K

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Our exposure to market risk principally includes liquidity risk interest rate risk and market price risk which are

discussed below

Liquidity Risk

We manage our liquidity position on daily basis as part of the daily settlement function and continuously as

part of the formal asset liability management process Our liquidity is maintained by managing several variables

including but not limited to

Pricing and dollar amount of core deposit products

Pricing and dollar amount of in-market time deposits

Growth rate of the loan portfolio including the sale of loans on participation basis

Purchase and sale of federal funds

Purchase and sale of investment securities

Use of wholesale funding such as brokered deposits and

Use of borrowing capacity at the FHLB

Management maintains detailed liquidity contingency plan designed to respond to an overall decline in the

condition of the banking industry or problem specific to the Company On quarterly basis the Asset Liability

Committee ALCO of the board of directors reviews comprehensive liquidity analysis along with any

changes to the liquidity contingency plan

As of December 31 2009 we had maximum borrowing capacity at the Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh

FHLB of approximately $482.0 million of which approximately $59.3 million was used in the form of

borrowings Accordingly we had unused borrowing capacity of $422.7 million at the FHLB Based on the FHLB

capital stock owned by the Bank as of December 31 2009 we can access approximately $19.2 million of funding

without the need to purchase additional FHLB stock As of December 31 2009 we had federal funds lines

availability at three correspondent banks totaling $27.5 million There were no funds drawn upon these facilities

as of December 31 2009

We participate in obtaining wholesale funding sources in addition to core demand deposits As of December 31

2009 we had Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Service CDARS reciprocal deposits as an alternative

source of funds in the amount of $15.3 million We participate in brokerage sweep program that provides for

the deposit of funds with the benefit of insurance from the FDIC The balance of this funding as of December 31

2009 was approximately $23.1 million We also issue brokered time deposits from time to time As of

December 31 2009 the dollar amount of brokered time deposits other than CDARS was $22.8 million

Brokered deposits exclusive of CDARS reciprocal deposits accounted for approximately 3.8% and 8.5% of total

deposits as of December 31 2009 and December 31 2008 respectively Time deposits comprise approximately
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$422.6 million or 34.8% of our deposit liabilities At December 31 2009 liquid assets defined as cash and cash

equivalents loans held for sale and securities available for sale exclusive of securities pledged as collateral or

used in connection with customer repurchase agreements totaled approximately $204.3 million or 16.8% of total

deposits This compares to $42.5 million or 8.1% of total deposits at December 31 2008

Management is of the opinion that its liquidity position at December 31 2009 is adequate to respond to

fluctuations on and off balance sheet In addition management knows of no trends demands commitments

events or uncertainties that may result in or that are reasonably likely to result in our inability to meet anticipated

or unexpected liquidity needs

Interest Rate Risk

We actively manage our interest rate sensitivity position Interest rate sensitivity is the matching or mismatching

of the repricing and rate structure of the interest-bearing assets and liabilities Our primary objectives of interest

rate risk management are to neutralize adverse impacts to net interest income arising from interest rate

movements and to attain sustainable growth in net interest income The Management Asset Liability Committee

MALCO is primarily responsible for developing and implementing asset liability management strategies in

accordance with the Asset and Liability Management Policy and Procedures the ALCO Policy approved by

the board of directors The MALCO generally meets on monthly basis and is comprised of members of our

senior management team The ALCO of the board of directors meets on quarterly basis to review the guidelines

established by MALCO and the results of our interest rate risk analysis

We manage interest rate sensitivity by changing the volume mix pricing and repricing characteristics of our

assets and liabilities We have not entered into separate derivative contracts such as interest rate swaps caps and

floors

The interest rate characteristics and interest repricing characteristics of the loan portfolio at December 31 2009

are set forth in the tables below Adjustable-rate loans represent loans that are currently in fixed-rate but are

subject to repricing to either fixed or variable rate at the related next repricing date

Percentage

Interest Rate Characteristic of Portfolio

Fixed-rate loans 25.0%

Adjustable-rate loans 40.4%

Variable-rate loans 34.6%

Total 100.0%

Percentage

Maturity Structure of Portfolio

One month or less 33.6%

Two to six months 4.8%

Six to twelve months 9.2%

Onetotwoyears 8.1%

Two to three years 8.5%

Three to five years 23.5%

Greater than five years 12.3%

100.0%

As of December 31 2009 the loan portfolio contained $397.0 million of loans in the variable-rate interest mode

Of these loans 86.3% had interest rate floors The majority of these loans are indexed to prime 1-Month LIBOR
and 3-Month LIBOR i.e the index plus spread While the interest rate floors provide the Company with

interest rate protection given that the prime rate and LIBOR rates plus the applicable spread are substantially

below these floors these loans will not generate incremental income in an upward rising environment until the
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floors have been pierced The compression on net interest margin related to these relationships will be influenced

by number of variables including but not limited to the volatility of the respective indices the speed at which

rates rise and the interest rate sensitivity of deposit costs To date we have elected to manage this risk without

the use of separate derivative contracts

As of December 31 2009 the mortgage loan portfolio contained $191.2 million of mortgages of which $64.6

million will reprice over the next twelve months The mortgage loans that will reprice over the next twelve

months have current weighted average interest rate of approximately 4.45% The majority of these mortgage

loans are indexed to the one-year Treasury rate In the current rate environment these loans will reprice to new

rates that are below the current contractual rates thereby putting pressure on net interest margin In the event that

the one-year Treasury rate rises the loss of interest income from repricing will be lessened We have been

actively encouraging customers to refinance these loans into fixed-rate loans through our mortgage company

subsidiary as means of locking in historically low interest rates Since June 30 2009 the mortgage loan

portfolio has been reduced by $21.6 million We expect to continue this strategy and other initiatives to manage

this interest rate risk Furthermore we expect that newly originated mortgage loan volume will principally be

underwritten and sold into the secondary market through our mortgage subsidiary To date we have elected to

manage this risk without the use of separate derivative contracts

As of December 31 2009 we reported deposit liabilities of approximately $1.2 billion and securities sold under

agreements to repurchase of approximately $6.9 million Comparatively we reported deposit liabilities of

approximately $525.5 million and securities sold under repurchase agreements
of approximately $8.4 million at

December 31 2008 Approximately $410.2 million of deposit growth during calendar year 2009 was attributed to

the Merger We increased brokered deposits exclusive of reciprocal in-market deposits by $1.5 million between

December 31 2008 and December 31 2009 The remaining $279.2 million of growth was attributed to deposit

origination within markets we serve

The maturity structure of the time deposit portfolio as of December 31 2009 is summarized below

Dollars

Certificates of Deposit Maturity Structure millions Percentage

One months or less 17.7 4.2%

Over one month through one year
192.7 45.6%

Over one year through two years
47.5 11.2%

Over two years
164.7 39.0%

Total $422.6 100.0%

During the fourth quarter of 2009 we increased the dollar amount of time deposits maturing beyond two years by

$61.0 million as we seek to extend the maturity structure of the time deposit portfolio considering the current

low interest rate environment As noted above approximately $211 million of time deposits will mature over the

next year Given existing market conditions we expect to retain significant portion of the maturing time deposit

portfolio in the form of new time deposits or money market accounts at interest rates that are generally lower

than current rates of the time deposits maturing over the next year However we are actively seeking to extend

the weighted average life of the time deposit portfolio which may result in renewing portion of the time deposit

portfolio at rates that are higher than the rates of time deposits maturing over the next year

We use several tools to assess and measure its interest rate risk including interest rate simulation analysis that is

prepared on quarterly basis Each analysis is largely dependent on many assumptions and variables with past

behaviors that may not prove to be effective predictors of future outcomes These assumptions are reviewed on at

least quarterly basis

Gap Analysis We use gap analysis to compare the relationship of assets that are expected to reprice during

specific time frame Rate Sensitive Assets or RSA as compared to liabilities that are scheduled to reprice
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during an identical time period Rate Sensitive Liabilities or RSL When the ratio is greater than one RSA
exceed RSL and potentially exposes the bank to risk of decline in interest rates by virtue of larger amount of

assets repricing at lower interest rates than rate sensitive liabilities The converse would be true of RSAJRSL

ratio less than 1.0 While gap analysis can be useful in evaluating the relationship of RSA to RSL it does not

capture other critical interest rate risk variables such as the extent of change that will take place when RSA or

RSL reprices prepayment considerations and other factors Under the ALCO Policy the interest rate simulation

report measures the ratio of rate sensitive assets to rate sensitive liabilities at one-year time frame The ALCO

Policy has established an acceptable relationship of RSA to RSL to range of 80% to 120%

During the third quarter of 2009 we modified the methodology used in computing repricing gap in the current

economic environment in two ways First we modified the treatment of variable-rate loans with current interest

rates below loan floors by classifying them as rate sensitive assets As of December 31 2009 we have $342

million of loans that are currently in the variable rate mode with interest rates indexed to the prime rate the

one-month LIBOR and the three-month with current interest rates determined by floors To the extent that these

loans will not reprice until the floor have been pierced approximately 175 basis points these loans are

technically not rate sensitive However for purposes of computing repricing gap we have treated these loans as

rate-sensitive to capture their behavior in more traditional interest rate environments Second we have classified

all interest-bearing non-maturity deposits as repricing immediately In the past we time-weighted interest-

bearing non-maturity deposits as means of giving consideration to the extent to which such deposits were less

interest rate sensitive than the rate shocks applied to the balance sheet We believe that the new methodology is

more conservative albeit this methodology has the potential to highlight the inherent weaknesses of repricing

gap analysis as explained above

At December 31 2009 our balance sheet was liability sensitive with gap ratio of approximately 82.5% The

gap ratio is within policy guidelines In large part the liability sensitive position of the balance sheet is due to the

increase in transaction money market and savings accounts in the deposit portfolio This is an intentional

strategy designed to strengthen on-balance sheet liquidity acquire lower cost in-market deposits and address

consumer demand for FDIC-insured liquid deposits Management believes the interest rate sensitivity of the

Companys non-maturity deposit portfolio is less than that of the general market Accordingly the lower level of

interest rate sensitivity will partially mitigate the general effects of liability sensitivity As of December 31 2009

96.2% of deposits were originated within markets we serve The table below summarizes the repricing gap of the

Company as of December 31 2009

Repricing Gap Report as of December 31 2009 in thousands

Greater

than 60

Months
ito to to 12 12-24 24 to 36 36 to 60 non-rate

Months Months Months Months Months Months sensitive Total

Assets

Cash due from banks and

Federal funds sold 16645 33955 50600

Securities available for sale

28314 16826 18269 42548 26423 32587 23754 188721

Loans 455889 71670 141874 160302 110902 168597 27376 1136610

Other Assets 94652 94652

Total Assets $500848 $88496 $160143 $202850 $137325 $201184 $179737 $1470583
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Repricing Gap Report as of December 312009 in thousands

Liabilities

Non-interest bearing

deposits

Interest-bearing transaction

and savings deposits

Time deposits

Total deposits

Borrowings including

repurchase

agreements

Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities

14945

12364

$145504

674765

422588

1216469

77873

12364

$1306706

Equity
163877 163877

Excludes equity investments available for sale and restricted investments

Net Interest Income at Risk We assess the percentage change in net interest income assuming interest rate

shocks upward and downward of 100 200 and 300 basis points Given the current rate environment we

limited the downward shock to 100 basis points but included an upward shock of 400 basis points This analysis

captures the timing of the repricing of RSA and RSL as well as the degree of change beta in the interest rates

of particular asset and liability products that occurs as interest rates move upward or downward Under the Asset

and Liability Management Policy and Procedures the interest rate simulation report measures the percentage

change in net interest income for one year assuming interest rate shocks of 100 200 and 300 basis points The

ALCO Policy has established an acceptable negative percentage change in net interest income under 100 200

and 300 basis point shocks of 20%

The table below summarizes the Net Interest Income at Risk modeling results as of December 31 2009

Net Interest Income Up 100 Bps

Net Interest Income Up 200 Bps

Net Interest Income Up 300 Bps

Net Interest Income Up 400 Bps

ito to to 12 12-24 24 to 36 36 to 60

Months Months Months Months Months Months

Greater

than 60

Months

non-rate

sensitive Total

674765

79916 83047

754681 83047

$119116 119116

58644

58644

50363 66145

50363 66145

84394

84394

6895

79

119195

761576 $83049

5255 5010 15011 30755

63899 55373 81156 $115149

Total Liabilities and

Equity

Repricing Assets

Repricing Liabilities

Period Repricing Gap

Period Repricing Gap

Percentage

Cumulative Repricing Gap

Percentage

761576 $83049 63899 55373 81156 $115149 $310381 $1470583

500848 88496 160143 202850 137325 201184 85085 1375931

761576 83049 63899 55373 81156 115149 15024 1175226

260728 5447 96244 147477 56169 86035 70061 200705

65.8% 106.6% 250.6% 366.3% 169.2% 174.7% 566.3%

65.8% 69.8% 82.5% 98.8% 104.3% 111.3% 117.1%

117.1%

117.1%

Actual Policy

-2.12% 20.0%

-1.30% 20.0%

1.19% 20.0%

3.84% N/A

Net Interest Income Down 100 Bps 0.72% 20.0%
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Economic Value of Equity at Risk We assess the present value of cash inflows of cash investments loans

bank-owned life insurance policies when applicable netted against the present value of cash outflows from

deposits repurchase agreements borrowings and other interest-bearing liabilities all discounted to

measurement date This measure is expressed as the percentage change in the present value of such cash flows

when interest rates are shocked upward and downward at 100 200 and 300 basis points Under the Asset and

Liability Management Policy and Procedures the interest rate simulation reports measures the percentage change

in economic value of equity at risk assuming interest rate shocks of 100 200 and 300 basis points Given the

current rate environment we limited the downward shock to 100 basis points but included an upward shock of

400 basis points The ALCO Policy has established an acceptable negative percentage change in economic value

of equity at risk under 100 200 and 300 basis point shocks of 20%

The table below summarizes the Economic Value of Equity at Risk as of December 31 2009

Actual Policy

Economic Value of Equity Up 100 Bps -5.10% 20.0%

Economic Value of Equity Up 200 Bps -7.75% 20.0%

Economic Value of Equity Up 300 Bps -8.08% 20.0%

Economic Value of Equity Up 400 Bps -7.25% N/A

Economic Value of Equity Down 100 Bps 8.68% 20.0%

Market Price Risk

As of December 31 2009 our investment portfolio had market value of approximately $196.1 million The

investment portfolio is comprised of two separate components each of which is managed pursuant to board

approved investment policy At the holding company level we have portfolio of equity securities of financial

institutions the Equity Portfolio with market value of approximately $1.1 million At the bank level the

Bank has portfolio with market value of approximately $195.0 million comprised of debt securities

summarized below and certain restricted investments related to business relationships with the Federal Home

Loan Bank of Pittsburgh and correspondent bank As of December 31 2008 we had portfolio with market

value of approximately $22.0 million that was held at the bank level This portfolio was comprised of

government agency obligations municipal obligations and certain restricted short-term investments related to

business relationships with the Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh and correspondent bank

The investment portfolio increased $174 million during the calendar year 2009 Of this increase $43.5 million

was attributed to the infusion of cash from the public offering of our common stock net of the repayment of

short-term debt The remaining increase was result of the Merger increased deposits and net sales and

purchases of securities related to maintaining higher levels of on-balance sheet liquidity The maturities and cash

flows from these investments have been structured to coincide with the lending activities of the bank For

example the weighted average life of the bank investment portfolio is 2.7 years We believe that the off balance

sheet liquidity sources of the bank and the ability to raise in-market deposits at reasonable prices adequately

mitigates the cash flow variability of the investment portfolio

During the calendar
year 2009 we added four new security classes to the bank investment portfolio Government

National Mortgage Association collateralized mortgage obligations Small Business Administration loan pools

agency mortgage-backed securities and taxable municipal securities The Government National Mortgage

Association collateralized mortgage obligations and Small Business Administration loan pool securities are

secured by the full faith credit and taxing power of the United States of America and carry zero risk weighting

for regulatory capital purposes
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Debt security market price risk is the risk that changes in the values of debt security investments could have

material impact on our financial position or results of operations
The table below summarizes the maturity

structure of the portfolio as of December 31 2009

After year but After years but

Within year within years within 10 years After 10 years Total

dollars in thousands

Fair Fair Fair Fair Fair

Value W/A yield Value W/A yield Value W/A yield Value W/A yield Value W/A yield

U.S Government

agency

obligations $20043 0.32% $28857 1.57% 7485 2.00% 56385 1.18%

State and municipal

obligations
677 3.80% 4731 3.24% 9207 4.11% 5484 4.86% 20099 4.10%

Asset-backed

securities
112239 2.42%

Other securities
6254

Graystone Tower

Bank Portfolio ... $20720 $33588 $16692 $5484 $194977 2.28%

Investment portfolio

of equity securities

held at the holding

company
1132

Total investment

securities
$196109

Mortgage-backed securities include agency mortgage-backed securities Government National Mortgage

Association collateralized mortgage obligations and Small Business Administration loan poo1s

Equity investments in business relationship banks such as the Federal Home Loan Bank and correspondent

banks

Equity market price risk is the risk that changes in the values of equity investments could have material impact

on our financial position or results of operations The Equity Portfolio was acquired as result of the merger As

of December 31 2009 the equity portfolio was comprised of 16 different equity securities of financial

institutions The total asset sizes of the financial institutions ranged from less than $50 million to financial

institutions with assets of approximately $900 million The financial institutions are geographically diverse with

concentrations in the mid-Atlantic and south-eastern states

Management notes that U.S GAAP precludes the consideration of the relationship of shares owned to the

average daily trading volume If the reporting entity holds position in single financial instrument including

block and the instrument is traded in an active market the fair value of the position shall be measured within

Level as the product of the quoted price for the individual instrument times the quantity held The quoted price

shall not be adjusted because of the size of the position relative to trading volume blockage factor The use of

blockage factor is prohibited even if markets normal daily trading volume is not sufficient to absorb the

quantity held and placing orders to sell the position in single transaction might affect the quoted price U.S

GAAP also places heavy reliance on quoted prices and places burden of proof on management to demonstrate

that market is not active Generally quoted price is treated as Level input even if the stock is thinly traded

as is the case for many of the positions in the Equity Portfolio
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The Equity Portfolio is comprised of several positions for which the number of shares held significantly exceeds

the average daily trading volume Management believes that the valuation methodology to determine fair value

under U.S GAAP along with the volatility of the financial institutions market may result in gains or losses over

time as securities within the portfolio are sold
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Tower Bancorp Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Tower Bancorp Inc and subsidiary as of

December 31 2009 and the related consolidated statements of operations changes in stockholders equity and

comprehensive income and cash flows for the year
ended December 31 2009 These consolidated financial

statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on

these consolidated financial statements based on our audit The accompanying consolidated financial statements

of Tower Bancorp Inc and subsidiary as of December 31 2008 and for the two-year period ended December 31

2008 were audited by other auditors whose report
thereon dated February 20 2009 expressed an unqualified

opinion on those statements

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation We believe that our audit provide
reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

financial position of Tower Bancorp Inc and subsidiary as of December 31 2009 and the results of their

operations
and their cash flows for the period ended December 31 2009 in conformity with U.S generally

accepted accounting principles

signed KPMG LLP

Harrisburg Pennsylvania

March 16 2010
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders

Tower Bancorp Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Graystone Financial Corp and subsidiary as of

December 31 2008 and the related consolidated statements of operations stockholders equity and cash flows

for each of the
years

in the two-year period ended December 31 2008 The Companys management is

responsible for these financial statements Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement The company is not required to have nor

were we engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over financial reporting Our audit included

consideration of internal control over financial reporting as basis for designing audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

companys internal control over financial reporting Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit also

includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating

the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of Graystone Financial Corp and subsidiary as of December 31 2008 and the results of their operations

and their cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31 2008 in conformity with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

Is ParenteBeard LLC

Lancaster Pennsylvania

May 29 2009
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Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Tower Bancorp Inc and Subsidiary

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31 2009 and 2008

Amounts in thousands except share data

December 31 December 31
2009 2008

Assets

Cash and due from banks 33955 24765

Federal funds sold 16645 7257

Cash and cash equivalents
50600 32022

Securities available for sale 189853 19904

Restricted investments in bank stocks 6254 2068

Loans held for sale 8034 3324

Loans net of allowance for loan losses of $9695 and $6017 1128576 561705

Premises and equipment net 29810 4546

Accrued interest receivable 4974 2402

Deferred tax asset net 1742 1764

Bank owned life insurance 24606 12252

Goodwill 11935

Other intangible assets net 3367

Other assets 10832 1331

Total Assets
$1470583 $641318

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

Liabilities

Deposits

Non-interest bearing
119116 42466

Interest bearing
1097353 483004

Total deposits
1216469 525470

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 6892 8384

Short-term borrowings
5292 14614

Long-term debt 65689 29000

Accrued interest payable
1090 888

Other liabilities 11274 8177

Total Liabilities 1306706 586533

Stockholders Equity

Common stock no par value 50000000 shares authorized 7226041 shares

issued and 7122683 outstanding at December 31 2009 and 2740325

shares issued and outstanding at December 31 2008

Additional paid-in capital
172409 57547

Accumulated deficit 4025 2909

Accumulated other comprehensive loss income 414 147

Less cost of treasury stock 103358 shares at December 31 2009 and zero shares at

December 31 2008 4093
________

Total Stockholders Equity 163877 54785

Total Liabilities and Stockholders Equity $1470583 $641318

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Tower Bancorp Inc and Subsidiary

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years Ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Amounts in thousands except share data

For the Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Interest Income

Loans including fees 54304 31026 21512
Securities 1956 916 1651

Federal funds sold and other 123 215 1150

Total Interest Income 56383 32157 24313

Interest Expense

Deposits 17963 15106 12356

Short-term borrowings 398 559 775

Long-term debt 2067 816 455

Total Interest Expense 20428 16481 13586

Net Interest Income 35955 15676 10727

Provision for Loan Losses 5216 2550 1997

Net Interest Income after Provision for Loan Losses 30739 13126 8730
Non-Interest Income

Service charges on deposit accounts 2156 809 498

Other service charges commissions and fees 2131 792 539

Gain on sale of mortgage loans originated for sale 1521 528 358

Gain on sale of other interest earnings assets 364 240 100

Income from bank owned life insurance 1034 305

Other income 1622 415 97

Total Non-Interest Income 8828 3089 1592

Non-Interest Expenses

Salaries and employee benefits 15841 8100 6874

Occupancy and equipment 5479 2356 1473

Amortization of intangible assets 532

FDIC insurance premiums 1747 278 160

Advertising and promotion 972 369 253

Data processing 2050 654 436

Professional service fees 1155 518 432

Other operating expenses 4173 1525 1046

Merger related expenses 2080

Total Non-Interest Expenses 34029 13800 10674

Net Income Loss Before Income Tax Benefit 5538 2415 352

Income Tax Expense Benefit 1829 333

Net Income Loss 3709 2082 346

Net Income Loss Per Common Share

Basic 0.72 0.76 0.19
Diluted 0.72 0.76 0.19
Dividends declared 0.84

Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding

Basic 5156078 2734027 1867767
Diluted 5161325 2734027 1867767

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Tower Bancorp Inc and Subsidiary

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders Equity and Comprehensive Income

Years Ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Amounts in thousands except share data

Accumulated

Additional Other

Common Paid-in Accumulated Comprehensive Treasury

Stock Capital Deficit Income Loss Stock Total

BalanceDecember 31 2006 18650 $4645 34 13971

Proceeds from sale of common stock 37315 37315

Restricted common stock awards

earned 1021 1021

Stock option expense
51 51

Comprehensive Income

Net income 346 346
Unrealized gain on securities

available for sale 73 73

Total Comprehensive Income
________ ______ _____ ______

273

BalanceDecember 31 2007 57037 $4991 39 52085

Restricted common stock awards

earned 333 333

Stock option expense
177 177

Comprehensive Income

Net income 2082 2082

Unrealized gain on securities

available for sale net of taxes

of$76 108 108

Total Comprehensive Income ... 2190

BalanceDecember 31 2008 57547 $2909 $147 54785

Restricted common stock awards

earned 295 295

Stock option expense
569 569

Fair value of consideration exchanged in

merger 61946 4093 57853

Cash dividends declared $0.84 per

share 4825 4825
Proceeds from the dividend reinvestment

plan and the employee stock purchase

plan 469 469

Proceeds from common stock offering

net of
expenses

51583 51583

Comprehensive Income

Net income 3709 3709

Unrealized loss on securities

available for sale net of

taxes of $228 444 444
Reclassification of realized gain

on sale of securities net of

taxes of $61 117 117

Total Comprehensive Income ... 3148

BalanceDecember 31 2009 $172409 $4025 $414 $4093 $163877

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Tower Bancorp Inc and Subsidiary

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Amounts in thousands except share data

2009 2008 2007

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net income loss 3709 2082 346
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in provided by

operating activities

Provision for loan losses 5216 2550 1997

Net accretion and amortization on securities and loans 218 49 428

Depreciation and amortization 1751 761 507

Amortization of intangible assets 532

Amortization of unearned compensation on restricted stock 295 333 1021

Stock compensation expense 569 177 51

Deferred income tax expense benefit 417 1040 800
Increase in accrued interest receivable 786 341 801
Decrease increase in accrued interest payable 496 323 296

Net increase in the cash surrender value of life insurance 1034 305
Increase in other assets 8327 536 471

Decrease increase in other liabilities 2640 4236 2908

Gain on sale of deposits 250
Gain loss on sale of interest earning assets 1729 768 458

Loans originated for sale 136710 96182 54782

Sale of loans 138520 93732 53978

Net Cash Used in Provided by Operating Activities 931 4723 3588

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Proceeds from sales and maturities of securities available for sale 110028 53134 98355

Purchases of securities available for sale 221419 44875 62167

Purchases of bank owned life insurance 12000

Net increase in loans 111182 183638 217414

Loans purchased from unaffiliated banks 55283 4827
Decrease increase of investment in restricted investments 1024 1762
Purchases of premises and equipment 4382 1143 3937
Net proceeds from sale of premises and equipment 11 1470

Net cash received in merger 9017

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 272186 193641 185163
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2009 2008 2007

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net proceeds from advances on long-term debt 4875 29000 2000

Net decrease increase in short-term borrowings 39709 10184 230

Net decrease in securities sold under agreements to repurchase 1492 17956 1570

Net increase in deposits
280794 176572 163339

Proceeds from the issuance of common stock 52052 37315

Dividends paid on common stock 4825

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 291695 197800 197314

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 18578 8882 15739

Cash and Cash Equivalents Beginning 32022 23140 7401

Cash and Cash Equivalents Ending 50600 32022 23140

Supplemental disclosure of information

Interest paid
20924 16139 13290

Income taxes paid
1335 1597 650

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and financing activities

Common stock issued for acquisition of bank 57853

Other real estate acquired in settlement of loan 927

Unrealized loss gain on investments securities available for sale net of tax

effects
561 108 73

Other-than-temporary impairment of investments 156

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
amounts in thousands except for share and per share data

Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization and Nature of Operations

Tower Bancorp Inc the Company is registered bank holding company that was incorporated in 1983 under

the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 as amended On March 31 2009 the Company merged with Graystone

Financial Corp Graystone privately held non-reporting corporation and registered bank holding

company under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 as amended the Merger Pursuant to an Agreement

and Plan of Merger between the Company and Graystone the Merger Agreement the Company remains the

surviving bank holding company and the First National Bank of Greencastle has merged with and into Graystone

Bank the wholly-owned subsidiary of Graystone with Graystone Bank as the surviving institution under the

name Graystone Tower Bank the Bank Merger Graystone Tower Bank the Bank operates as the sole

subsidiary of the Company through two divisions Graystone Bank division of Graystone Tower Bank
consisting of the former Graystone Bank branches and Tower Bank division of Graystone Tower Bank
consisting of the former branches of The First National Bank of Greencastle

The Companys activities consist of owning and supervising the Bank which is engaged in providing banking

and banking related services through its twenty-seven full service offices in Centre Cumberland Dauphin

Lebanon York Fulton Franklin and Lancaster Counties of Pennsylvania and Washington County of Maryland

The Bank was originally incorporated on September 2005 as Pennsylvania-chartered bank and commenced

operations on November 10 2005 As state chartered bank the Bank is subject to regulation by the Federal

Deposit Insurance Corporation FDIC and the Pennsylvania Department of Banking and undergoes periodic

examinations by these regulatory authorities The Company as bank holding company is subject to regulation

and supervision by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System

In January 2007 Graystone Mortgage LLC commenced business as mortgage banking subsidiary of the Bank

which holds ninety percent 90% interest in the mortgage subsidiary Graystone Mortgage LLC offers

residential mortgage banking services within the Banks market areas

In February 2007 the Bank entered into purchase agreement with Dellinger Dolan McCurdy and Phillips

Investment Advisors LLC DDMP DDMP is limited liability company that provides investment advisory

and asset management services to individuals businesses and nonprofit entities In connection with the purchase

agreement the Bank purchased an aggregate of twenty percent 20% of the issued and outstanding units of

membership interests in DDMP The investment is being accounted for using the equity method of accounting

The investment in DDMP is accounted for within the Other Assets line on the Balance Sheet The income

earned from the investment in DDMP is accounted for within the Other Non-Interest Income line on the

Statement of Operations

On December 27 2009 Tower Bancorp Inc and First Chester County Corporation First Chester entered into

an Agreement and Plan of Merger the FCEC Merger Agreement pursuant to which Tower will acquire First

Chester in an all-stock transaction valued at approximately $65 million or $10.22 per share based on the closing

price of Tower common stock at the announcement of this merger In the merger First Chester shareholders will

receive 0.45 shares of Tower common stock for each share of First Chester common stock they hold on the

effective date of the merger As described in the definitive merger agreement the exchange ratio is subject to

upward or downward adjustment if loan delinquencies at First Chester increase or decrease beyond specified

amounts

As part of the definitive agreement Towers subsidiary bank Graystone Tower Bank agreed to increase its

lending facility with First Chester to up to $26 million as well as to purchase up to $100 million of residential

mortgage and commercial loans from First National Bank of Chester County in order for the bank to satisfy the

62



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

amounts in thousands except for share and per share data

regulatory capital requirements of the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency the 0CC As of

December 31 2009 the Bank has loaned $26 million to First Chester The Bank has also purchased

approximately $52 million in loans from First National Bank of Chester County

Following the transaction based on the 0.453 exchange ratio current Tower shareholders will own

approximately 71% and First Chester shareholders will own approximately 29% of the combined companys

common stock Pending regulatory approvals and approvals of shareholder of both entities the merger is

expected to be completed during the second quarter of 2010

Basis of Presentation

The aforementioned merger between the Company and Graystone was considered merger of equals and is

accounted for as reverse merger using the acquisition method of accounting with Graystone as the accounting

acquirer As result the historical financial information included in the Companys financial statements and

related footnotes as reported in this Form 10-K is that of Graystone

The financial statements information at December 31 2008 has been derived from the audited financial

statements of Graystone at that date The Graystone audited financial statements and footnotes for the year
ended

December 31 2008 have been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC within Form 8-K/A

on June 12009

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tower Bancorp Inc and its wholly-

owned subsidiary Graystone Tower Bank and the Banks 90% owned mortgage subsidiary Graystone Mortgage

LLC All intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated from the consolidated financial statements

Our accounting and reporting policies conform to general practices within the banking industry and to U.S

generally accepted accounting principles GAAP Reclassifications of prior years amounts are made

whenever necessary to conform to the current years presentation

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S GAAP requires management to make estimates

and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and

liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the

reporting period Actual results could differ from those estimates Material estimates that are particularly

susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses the

potential other-than-temporary impairment of investments and the valuation of deferred tax assets

Segment Information

The Company does not have any operating segments which require disclosure of additional information While

the Bank operates as two divisions each engages in similar activities provides similar products and services and

operates
in the same general geographical area The Corporations non-banking activities are immaterial and

therefore separate
information has not been disclosed

Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk

Most of the Companys activities are with customers located within central Pennsylvania and Washington

County Maryland Note discusses the types of securities in which the Company invests Note discusses the

types of lending in which the Company engages The Company does not have any significant concentrations to

any one industry or customer
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand amounts due from banks

and federal funds sold all of which mature within 90 days Federal funds are purchased and sold for one-day

periods

The Company is required under Federal Reserve Board regulations to maintain reserves against its transaction

accounts These reserves are generally held in the form of cash or noninterest earning accounts at the Companys

correspondent bank Based on the nature of the Companys transaction account deposits and the amount of vault

cash on hand the Company was not required to maintain reserve balance with the Federal Reserve Board at

December 31 2009 or December 31 2008

Securities Available for Sale

Management determines the appropriate classification of debt and equity securities at the time of purchase and

re-evaluates such designation as of each balance sheet date Purchases and sales of investment securities are

accounted for on trade date basis

All investment securities are classified as available for sale as the Company intends to hold such securities for an

indefinite period of time but not necessarily to maturity Securities available for sale are carried at fair value Any
decision to sell security classified as available for sale would be based on various factors including movement

in interest rates changes in maturity mix of the Companys assets and liabilities liquidity needs regulatory

capital considerations and other similar factors Unrealized gains and losses are excluded from earnings and

reported as increases or decreases in other comprehensive income or loss Realized gains or losses determined

on the basis of the cost of the specific securities sold are included in earnings Premiums and discounts are

recognized in interest income using the interest method over the terms of the securities

Declines in the fair value of available for sale equity securities below their cost that are deemed to be other than

temporary are reflected in earnings as realized losses In estimating other-than-temporary impairment losses

management considers the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost the

financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer and the intent and ability of the Company to retain

its investment in the issuer for period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value

In regard to debt securities if the Company does not intend to sell the securities and it is more likely than not that

the Company will not be required to sell the debt security prior to recovery the Company will then evaluate

whether credit loss has occurred To determine whether credit loss has occurred the Company compares the

amortized cost of the debt security to the present value of the cash flows the Company expects to be collected If

the Company expects cash flow shortfall the Company will consider credit loss to have occurred and will

then consider the impairment to be other than temporary The Company will recognize the amount of the

impairment loss related to the credit loss in our results of operation with the remaining portion of the loss

recorded through comprehensive income net of applicable taxes

Restricted Investment in Bank Stocks

Restricted investment in bank stocks includes Atlantic Central Bankers Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank

FHLB stocks The stocks are carried at cost as these stocks are not actively traded and have no readily

determinable market value

As of December 31 2009 and December 31 2008 the Company had restricted investment in the Federal Home

Loan Bank of Pittsburgh FHLB of $6124 and $2018 respectively In December 2008 the FHLB notified

member banks that it was suspending dividend payments and the repurchase of capital stock
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Management determines whether these investments are impaired based on an assessment of the ultimate

recoverability of their cost rather than by recognizing temporary declines in value The determination of whether

decline affects the ultimate recoverability of their cost is influenced by criteria such as the significance of

the decline in net assets of the FHLB as compared to the capital stock amount for the FHLB and the length of

time this situation has persisted commitments by the FHLB to make payments required by law or regulation

and the level of such payments in relation to the operating performance of the FHLB and the impact of

legislative and regulatory changes on institutions and accordingly on the customer base of the FHLB

Management believes no impairment charge is necessary related to the investment in FHLB stock as of

December 31 2009

Loans Held for Sale

Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or fair

value as determined by aggregate outstanding commitments from investors or current investor yield

requirements Net unrealized losses are recognized through valuation allowance by charges to income

Mortgage loans held for sale are sold with the mortgage servicing rights released to another financial institution

through correspondent relationship The correspondent financial institution absorbs all of the risk related to rate

lock commitments Gains or losses on sales of mortgage loans are recognized based on the difference between

the selling price and the carrying value of the related mortgage loans sold

Loans Receivable

Loans receivable that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or

payoff are stated at their outstanding unpaid principal balances net of an allowance for loan losses and any

deferred fees or costs Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance Loan origination fees net of

certain direct origination costs are deferred and recognized as an adjustment of the yield interest income of the

related loans The Company is amortizing these amounts over the contractual life of the loan

The accrual of interest is discontinued when the contractual payment of principal or interest has become 90 days

past due or management has serious doubts about further collectability of principal or interest even though the

loan is currently performing loan may remain on accrual status if it is in the process of collection and is either

guaranteed or well secured When loan is placed on nonaccrual status unpaid interest credited to income in the

current year
is reversed and unpaid interest accrued in prior years is charged against the allowance for loan

losses Interest received on nonaccrual loans generally is either applied against principal or reported as interest

income according to managements judgment as to the collectability of principal Generally loans are restored to

accrual status when the obligation is brought current has performed in accordance with the contractual terms for

reasonable period of time and the ultimate collectability of the total contractual principal and interest is no

longer in doubt

Acquired Loans

Loans that we acquire in connection with acquisitions subsequent to January 2009 are recorded at fair value

with no carryover of the related allowance for credit losses Fair value of the loans involves estimating the

amount and timing of principal and interest cash flows expected to be collected on the loans and discounting

those cash flows at market rate of interest

The excess of cash flows expected at acquisition over the estimated fair value is referred to as the accretable

discount and is recognized into interest income over the remaining life of the loan The difference between
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contractually required payments at acquisition and the cash flows expected to be collected at acquisition is

referred to as the nonaccretable discount The nonaccretable discount includes estimated future credit losses

expected to be incurred over the life of the loan Subsequent decreases to the expected cash flows will require us

to evaluate the need for an additional allowance for credit losses Subsequent improvement in expected cash

flows will result in the reversal of corresponding amount of the nonaccretable discount which we will then

reclassify as accretable discount that will be recognized into interest income over the remaining life of the loan

Acquired loans that met the criteria for nonaccrual of interest prior to the acquisition may be considered

performing upon acquisition regardless of whether the customer is contractually delinquent We expect to fully

collect the new carrying value i.e fair value of the loans As such we may no longer consider the loan to be

nonaccrual or nonperforming and may accrue interest on these loans including the impact of any accretable

discount In addition charge-offs on such loans would be first applied to the nonaccretable difference portion of

the fair value adjustment

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established through provisions for loan losses charged against income as losses

are estimated to have occurred Loans deemed to be uncollectible are charged against the allowance for loan

losses and subsequent recoveries if any are credited to the allowance

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at level considered adequate to provide for losses that can be

reasonably estimated Managements periodic evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance is based on known

and inherent risks in the portfolio adverse situations that may affect the borrowers ability to repay the estimated

value of any underlying collateral composition of the loan portfolio current economic conditions and other

relevant factors This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires material estimates that may be susceptible

to significant change

The allowance consists of specific and general components The specific component relates to loans that are

classified as doubtful substandard or special mention For such loans that are also classified as impaired an

allowance is established when the discounted cash flows or collateral value or observable market price of the

impaired loan is lower than the carrying value of that loan The general component covers non-classified loans

that have been segmented into groups with similar characteristics and is based on historical loss experience

adjusted for qualitative factors

loan is considered impaired when based on current information and events it is probable that the Company
will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual

terms of the loan agreement Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment

status collateral value and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due

Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as

impaired Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on case-by-case

basis taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower including the

length of the delay the reasons for the delay the borrowers prior payment record and the amount of the shortfall

in relation to the principal and interest owed Impairment is evaluated on loan by loan basis for commercial and

construction loans and is measured as the difference between loans carried value on the balance sheet and its

fair market value Based on the nature of the loan its fair value reflects one of the following three measures

the fair market value of collateral ii the present value of the expected future cash flows or iiithe loans

value as observable in the secondary market

Large groups
of smaller balance homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment Accordingly the

Company does not separately identify individual consumer and home equity loans for impairment disclosures
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Other Real Estate Owned

Foreclosed properties are those properties for which the Company has taken physical possession in connection

with loan foreclosure proceedings

At the time of foreclosure foreclosed real estate is recorded at lower of cost or fair value less cost to sell which

becomes the propertys new basis Any write-downs based on the assets fair value at date of acquisition are

charged to the allowance for loan losses After foreclosure these assets are carried as other assets at the new

basis Improvements to the property are added to the basis of the assets Costs incurred in maintaining foreclosed

real estate and subsequent adjustments to the carrying amount of the property are classified as other expenses

Business Combinations and Intangible Assets

The Company accounts for its acquisitions using the purchase accounting method Purchase accounting requires

the total purchase price to be allocated to the estimated fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed

including certain intangible assets that must be recognized Typically
this allocation results in the purchase price

exceeding the fair value of net assets acquired which is recorded as goodwill Core deposit intangibles are

measure of the value of checking money market and savings deposits acquired in business combinations

accounted for under the purchase method Core deposit intangibles and other identified intangibles with finite

useful lives are amortized using the sum of the years digits over their estimated useful lives of up to fifteen

years
The Corporation completes annual impairment tests for goodwill and other intangible assets Identifiable

intangible assets are evaluated for impairment if events and circumstances indicate possible impairment There

can be no assurance that future goodwill impairment tests will not result in charge to earnings Core deposit

intangibles are being amortized over their average
estimated useful lives of ten years

Mortgage servicing rights MSR5 are recognized as separate assets when mortgage loans are sold and the

servicing rights are retained Capitalized residential MSRs are reported in other assets and are amortized into

noninterest income in proportion to and over the period of the estimated future net servicing period of the

underlying mortgage loans Capitalized commercial MSRs are reported in other assets and are remeasured at fair

value each reporting period MSRs are evaluated for impairment based upon the fair value of the rights as

compared to amortized cost The Company engages
third party service provider who estimates the fair value of

MSRs using discounted cash flow models that calculate the present value of estimated future net servicing

income The model uses readily available prepayment speed assumptions for the current interest rates of the

portfolios serviced MSRs are carried at the lower of amortized cost or estimated fair value Impairment is

recognized through valuation allowance to the extent that fair value is less than the unamortized capitalized

amount

Goodwill

Goodwill represents
the excess of the purchase price over the underlying fair value of merged entities The

Company assesses goodwill for impairment annually as of October 31St of each year If certain events occur

which indicate goodwill might be impaired between annual tests goodwill must be tested when such events

occur In making this assessment management considers number of factors including operating results

business plans economic projections anticipated futures cash flows current market data etc There are inherent

uncertainties related to these factors and managements judgment in applying them to the analysis of goodwill

impairment Changes in economic and operating conditions could result in goodwill impairment in future

periods The Company tested goodwill for impairment as of October 31 2009 and determined that no impairment

had occurred
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Transfers of Financial Assets

The Company sells interests in loans receivable through loan participation sales The Company accounts for

these transactions as sales when control over the assets is surrendered Control over transferred assets is deemed

to be surrendered when the assets are isolated from the Company the transferee obtains the right free of

conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right to pledge or exchange the transferred assets and

the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement to

repurchase them before their maturity

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Depreciation is computed on the

straight-line method over the shorter of the remaining lease term if applicable or the economic life which is

reflected in the following average
lives

Years

Automobiles

Building and leasehold improvements 10 39

Furniture fixtures and equipment 10

Software and computer equipment

Bank Owned Lfe Insurance

The Company has purchased bank owned life insurance BOLl policies on certain employees as means to

generate tax-free income which is used to offset portion of current and future employee benefit costs The

BOLl profits from the appreciation of the cash surrender value of the pool of insurance and is recorded as part of

Non-interest Income

Net Income Per Share

The Companys basic net income per share is calculated as net income divided by the weighted average number

of shares outstanding For diluted net income per share net income is divided by the weighted average number of

shares outstanding plus the incremental number of shares added as result of converting common stock

equivalents calculated using the treasury stock method The Companys common stock equivalents consist

solely of outstanding stock options and restricted stock The effects of options to issue common stock are

excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share in periods in which the effect would be antidilutive

reconciliation of the weighted average shares outstanding used to calculate basic net income per share and

diluted net income per share follows

For the Year Ended

December 31 2009 December 31 2008 December 31 2007

Weighted average shares outstanding

basic 5156078 2734027 1867767
Impact of common stock

equivalents 5247

Weighted average shares outstanding

diluted 5161325 2734027 1867767

Common stock equivalents excluded

from earnings per share as their

effect would have been anti-dilutive 68150 83895
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Stock-Based Compensation

The Company recognizes all share-based payments to employees in the consolidated statement of operations

based on their fair values The fair value of such equity instruments is recognized as an expense
in the historical

financial statements as services are performed The Company uses the Black-Scholes Model to estimate the fair

value of each option on the date of grant The Black-Scholes Model estimates the fair value of employee stock

options using pricing model which takes into consideration the exercise price of the option the expected life of

the option the current market price and its expected volatility the expected dividends on the stock and the

current risk-free interest rate for the expected life of the option The Company typically grants stock options to

employees with an exercise price equal to the fair value of the shares at the date of grant The fair value of

restricted stock is equivalent to the fair value on the date of grant and is amortized over the vesting period

Dividend Reinvestment and Employee Stock Purchase Plans

The Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan the Reinvestment Plan was adopted in June 2009 and

allows for the issuance of 1000000 shares of common stock During 2009 18559 were issued under the

Reinvestment Plan with 981441 shares available for future purchase as of December 31 2009

The Employee Stock Purchase Plan the Purchase Plan was adopted by shareholders in May 2009 and allows

for the issuance of 250000 shares of common stock Employees may elect to make contributions to the Purchase

Plan in an aggregate amount not less than 1% nor more than 10% of such employees total compensation These

contributions are then used to purchase stock during an offering period as defined by the Purchase Plan The

purchase price of the stock is based solely on the market price of the shares at the date of purchase No

compensation expense
is recognized since the Purchase Plan qualifies as non-compensatory plan During 2009

2788 shares were issued under the Purchase Plan with 247212 shares available for future purchase as of

December 31 2009

Advertising Costs

The Company charges advertising costs to expense as incurred

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are provided on the liability method whereby deferred tax assets are recognized for

deductible temporary differences and deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences

Temporary differences are the differences between the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax

basis Deferred tax assets are reduced by valuation allowance when in the opinion of management it is more

likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized Deferred tax assets and liabilities

are adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates on the date of enactment

The Company adopted the provisions of ASC 740 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes on January

2008 Previously the Company had accounted for tax contingencies in accordance with ASC 450 Accounting

for Contingencies As required by ASC 740 the Company recognizes the financial statement benefit of tax

position only after determining that the relevant tax authority would more likely than not sustain the position

following an audit For tax positions meeting the more-likely-than-not threshold the amount recognized in the

financial statements is the largest benefit that has greater than 50 percent likelihood of being realized upon

ultimate settlement with the relevant tax authority At the adoption date the Company applied ASC 740 to all tax

positions for which the statute of limitations remained open As result of the adoption of ASC 740 there was no

material effect on the Companys consolidated financial position or results of operations and no adjustment to

retained earnings
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Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is defined as the change in equity from transactions and other events from nonowner

sources It includes all changes in equity except those resulting from investments by stockholders and

distributions to stockholders Comprehensive income includes net income and accounting for certain investments

in debt and equity securities

The Company has elected to report its comprehensive income in the statement of changes in stockholders

equity The only element of other comprehensive income that the Company has is the unrealized gains or

losses on available for sale securities

The components of the change in net unrealized gains losses on securities are as follows

2009 2008 2007

Gross unrealized holding gains losses arising during the year $672 $184 73

Reclassification adjustment for impairment losses recognized in net

income 156

Reclassification adjustment for losses gains realized in net

income 334

Net unrealized holding gains losses before taxes 850 84 73

Tax effect 289 76

Net change $56 $108 $73

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk

In the ordinary course of business the Company has entered into off-balance sheet financial instruments

consisting of commitments to extend credit and letters of credit Such financial instruments are recorded in the

consolidated balance sheet when they are funded See Note 14 for further discussion

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2010 the FASB issued an Accounting Standard Codification Update for improving disclosures about

fair value measurements This update requires companies to disclose and provide the reasons for all transfers of

assets and liabilities between the Level and fair value categories It also clarifies that companies should

provide fair value measurement disclosures for classes of assets and liabilities which are subsets of line items

within the balance sheet if
necessary

In addition the update clarifies that companies provide disclosures about

the fair value techniques and inputs for assets and liabilities classified within Level or categories The

disclosure requirements prescribed by this update are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15

2009 and for interim periods within those fiscal
years or March 31 2010 for the Company This update also

requires companies to reconcile changes in Level assets and liabilities by separately providing information

about Level purchases sales issuances and settlements on gross basis This provision of this update is

effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2010 and for interim periods within those fiscal years or

March 31 2011 for the Company The adoption of this update is not expected to materially impact the

Companys fair value measurement disclosures

In September 2009 the FASB issued an Accounting Standard Codification Update for fair value measurements

and disclosures related to investments in certain entities that calculate net asset value per share or its equivalent

The update permits as practical expedient reporting entity to measure the fair value of an investment that is
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within the scope of the amendments in this update on the basis of the net asset value per share of the investment

or its equivalent if the net asset value of the investment or its equivalent is calculated in manner consistent

with the measurement principles of this update as of the reporting entitys measurement date The update also

requires disclosures by major category of investment about the attributes of investments within the scope of the

update The update is effective for interim and annual periods ending after December 15 2009 The adoption of

this update did not have material impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements as of

December 31 2009

In August 2009 the FASB issued standards which amends fair value guidance by allowing companies to

determine the fair value of liabilities using the perspective of an investor that holds the related obligation as an

asset as opposed to measuring liabilities based on the price that would be paid to transfer liability to new

obligor These standards were effective September 30 2009 and did not have material impact on the

Companys consolidated financial statements

In June 2009 the FASB issued pronouncement that established the FASB Accounting Standards CodificationTM

as the source of authoritative accounting principles recognized by the FASB to be applied by nongovernmental

entities in the preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP The pronouncement is effective for

our consolidated financial statements for the interim and annual financial period after September 15 2009 We

have adopted this Statement effective for the interim period ending September 30 2009 The adoption of this

pronouncement did not have material impact on our consolidated financial statements

In June 2009 the FASB issued pronouncement that amends the derecognition guidance in U.S GAAP and

eliminates the concept of qualifying special-purpose entities QSPEs This pronouncement is effective for

fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15 2009 and early adoption is prohibited
We will

adopt this pronouncement on January
2010 and have not yet determined the effect of the adoption on its

consolidated financial statements

In June 2009 the FASB issued pronouncement which amends the consolidation guidance applicable to

variable interest entities VIEs An entity would consolidate VIE as the primary beneficiary when the entity

has both of the following characteristics the power to direct the activities of VIE that most significantly

impact the entitys economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses of the entity that could

potentially be significant to the VIE or the right to receive benefits from the entity that could potentially be

significant to the VIE Ongoing reassessment of whether an enterprise is the primary beneficiary of VIE is

required This pronouncement eliminates the quantitative approach previously required for determining the

primary beneficiary of VIE The pronouncement is effective for fiscal years
and interim periods beginning after

November 15 2009 We will adopt this pronouncement on January 2010 and have not yet
determined the

effect of the adoption on its consolidated financial statements

In May 2009 the FASB issued pronouncement that establishes accounting principles to be applied to the

accounting for and disclosure of subsequent events not addressed in other U.S GAAP This pronouncement is

effective for interim or annual financial periods ending after June 15 2009 and shall be applied prospectively

We have adopted this Statement effective for the interim period ending June 30 2009 We have evaluated

subsequent events for potential recognition or disclosure within the Annual report on Form 10-K in accordance

with this guidance

In April 2009 the FASB issued standards for recognition and presentation of other-than-temporary impairments

The standards change existing guidance for determining whether an impairment is other- than-temporary for

debt securities and ii replace the existing requirement that the entitys management assert it has both the intent

and ability to hold an impaired security until recovery
with requirement that management assert it does not
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have the intent to sell the security and it is more likely than not it will not have to sell the security before

recovery of its cost basis Declines in the fair value of held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities below

their cost that are deemed to be other-than-temporary are reflected in earnings as realized losses to the extent the

impairment is related to credit losses The amount of impairment related to other factors is recognized in other

comprehensive income These standards were effective for interim and annual periods ending after June 15

2009 The application of the provisions of these standards did not have material impact on the Companys
consolidated financial statements as of December 31 2009

In April 2009 the FASB issued standards for determining fair value when the volume and level of activity for the

asset or liability have significantly decreased and identifying transactions that are not orderly The standards were

effective prospectively for interim periods and annual
years ending after June 15 2009 The application of the

provisions of these standards did not have material impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

as of December 31 2009

In April 2009 the FASB issued standards for accounting for assets acquired and liabilities assumed in business

combination that arise from contingencies The standards provide guidance in respect of initial recognition and

measurement subsequent measurement and disclosures concerning assets and liabilities arising from

pre-acquisition contingencies in business combination The standards were effective for business combinations

for which the acquisition date was on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or

after December 15 2008 The application of the provisions of these standards did not have material impact on

the Companys consolidated financial statements as of December 31 2009

In June 2008 the FASB issued guidance that clarifies that all outstanding unvested share-based payment awards

that contain rights to nonforfeitable dividends participate in undistributed earnings with common shareholders

Awards of this nature are considered participating securities and the two-class method of computing basic and

diluted earnings per share must be applied This guidance was effective for the Company on January 2009 The

adoption of this guidance did not have material impact on our consolidated financial statements

In December 2007 the FASB issued pronouncement that establishes accounting and reporting standards for the

noncontrolling interest in subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of subsidiary The guidance became effective

as of January 2009 The adoption of this pronouncement did not have material impact to our consolidated

financial statements In January 2010 the FASB issued updated guidance relating to the decrease in ownership of

subsidiary The updated guidance is effective at the beginning of the first interim or annual reporting period

ending on or after December 15 2009 and should be applied retrospectively The updated guidance is not

expected to have material impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

Note Merger Accounting

On November 13 2008 Graystone and the Company announced the execution of an agreement of merger

providing for the merger of Graystone with and into the Company This merger became effective prior to the

start of business on March 31 2009 The Merger has been accounted for as reverse merger using the acquisition

method of accounting For accounting purposes Graystone is considered to be acquiring Tower in this

transaction with the surviving legal entity operating under Tower Bancorp Inc.s articles of incorporation

Immediately following the holding company merger the Companys wholly-owned subsidiary The First

National Bank of Greencastle merged with and into Graystone Bank the wholly-owned subsidiary of Graystone
under the name Graystone Tower Bank Graystone Tower Bank is therefore the wholly owned subsidiary of

Tower Bancorp Inc and operates under the prior Graystone Bank charter
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To determine the accounting treatment of the Merger management utilized the following facts in concluding that

the transaction would be treated as reverse merger with Graystone as the accounting acquirer

The roles of Chief Executive Officer Chief Operating Officer Chief Financial Officer Chief Credit

Officer and General Counsel of the post-combination entity have been assumed by the executives of

Graystone

Upon the effective date of the Merger the Tower Board of Directors consists of twenty members of

which half of the members have been appointed from the historical Tower Board of Directors with the

remaining ten directors having been appointed from the Graystone Board of Directors

After the closing of the Merger and as result of the fixed share exchange ratio of .42 shares of Tower

common stock for each Graystone common share the former Graystone shareholders as group held

approximately fifty-four percent of the outstanding shares of Tower stock

Graystone contributed greater than fifty percent of the total assets and tangible equity to the combined

entity while Tower contributed greater than fifty percent of the net income to the combined entity

The acquisition-date fair value of the consideration transferred by the accounting acquirer Graystone for its

interest in Tower is based on the number of equity interests Graystone would have to issue measured on the

transaction closing date to give the owners of Tower the same percentage equity interest in the combined Tower

entity that results from the reverse acquisition The Company has utilized the closing price of Towers common

stock on March 30 2009 since the merger was effective prior to the open of business on March 31 2009 to

determine the fair value of Tower stock to be utilized in the purchase price calculation which was determined to

be $24.97 The table below illustrates the calculation of the consideration effectively transferred

Purchase Price Calculation

Graystone shares outstanding at March 30 2009 6523584

Exchange ratio
0.42

Tower shares issued to Graystone owners excludes fractional shares 2739811

Tower shares outstanding at March 30 2009 2316823

Total Tower shares at March 30 2009 5056634

Ownership held by Graystone stockholders
54.18%

Ownership held by legacy Tower stockholders 45.82%

Theoretical Graystone Share to be Issued as Consideration

Graystone shares outstanding at March 30 2009 6523584

Ownership held by Gray stone stockholders 54.18%

Theoretical total Graystone shares after consideration paid 12040019

Ownership held by legacy Tower stockholders 45.82%

Theoretical Graystone shares to be issued to Tower as consideration 5516435

Fair value of Graystone shares at March 30 2009 Tower share price .42 10.49

Fair value of theoretical Graystone shares issued as consideration 57853

Cash paid for fractional shares

Total consideration paid
57855
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As result of the Merger the Company recognized assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their acquisition

date fair value as presented below

Total Purchase Price $57855

Net Assets Acquired

Cash 9017

Securities available for sale 58256

Restricted Investments 5210

Loans 418747

Accrued interest receivable 1786

Premises and Equipment 22644

Core deposit intangible 3899

Deferred tax asset 143

Other assets 12457

Time deposits 160806

Deposits other than time deposits 249397

Borrowings 69601
Accrued interest payable 698
Other liabilities 5737

45920

Goodwill resulting from merger $11935

The following table explains the changes in fair value of the net assets acquired and goodwill recognized from

the original reported amounts in the Form lO-Q for the period ended March 31 2009

Goodwill balance at March 31 2009 8689

Effect of adjustments to

Loans 120
Premises and equipment 2191

Deferred tax asset 247

Other asset 737

Other liabilities 191

Goodwill balance at December 31 2009 $1 1935

The goodwill generated by the Merger consists of synergies and increased economies of scale such as the ability

to offer more diverse and more profitable products added diversity to the branch system to achieve lower cost

deposits an increased legal lending limit etc Management expects that no goodwill recognized as result of the

Merger will be deductible for income tax purposes Since the combined entity will operate as single business

unit there is no segment impact of the Merger
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The fair value of the financial assets acquired included loans receivable with gross
amortized cost basis of

$426177 The table below illustrates the fair value adjustments
made to the amortized costs basis in order to

present fair value of the loans acquired

Gross amortized costs basis at March 30 2009 $426177

Market rate adjustment
1323

Credit fair value adjustment on pools of homogeneous

loans 4044
Credit fair value adjustment on distressed loans 4709

Fair value of purchased loans at March 30 2009 $418747

The market rate adjustment represents the movement in market interest rates irrespective of credit adjustments

compared to the stated rates of the acquired loans The credit adjustment made on pools of homogeneous loans

represents the changes in credit quality of the underlying borrowers from the loan inception to the acquisition

date The credit adjustment on distressed loans is derived in accordance with Accounting Standard Codification

310-30-30 previously known as Statement of Position SOP 03-3 Accounting for Certain Loans Acquired in

Transfer and represents the portion of the loan balance that has been deemed uncollectible based on the

managements expectations of future cash flows for each respective loan

The following table shows the pro
forma financial results for the Company and Graystone for the year ended

December 31 2009 and 2008 assuming that the Merger occurred on January 2009 and 2008 respectively

Pro-forma Pro-forma

December 31 2009 December 31 2008

unaudited unaudited

Net interest income $41268 $37448

Pre-tax net income 5131 4503

Income tax expense
1615 307

Net income 3516 4195

Pro-forma earnings per share

Basic 0.68 1.21

Diluted 0.68 1.21
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Note Securities Available for Sale

The amortized cost of securities and their approximate fair values at December 31 2009 and 2008 are as follows

December 31 2009

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

Equity securities 1156 20 44 1132

U.S Government sponsored agency securities 56437 12 65 56384

U.S Government sponsored agency mortgage-

backed securities 9109 37 30 9116

Collateralized mortgage obligations 93058 81 654 92485

Municipal bonds 7093 95 7188

Municipal bonds taxable 12917 64 71 12910

SBA Pool Loan Investments 10710 72 10638

$190480 $309 $936 $189853

December 31 2008

Municipal bonds 1279 20 1299

U.S Government sponsored agency securities ... 18402 203 18605

19681 $223 19904

Included with the Companys securities available for sale are pledged securities with fair market value of

$130614 and $19904 at December 31 2009 and December 31 2008 respectively The securities were pledged

to secure public deposits and securities sold under agreements to repurchase

The amortized cost and fair value of available for sale securities as of December 31 2009 and 2008 by

contractual maturity are shown below Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities due to the

issuers rights to call or prepay the obligation without penalty

December 31 2009

Amortized Cost Fair Value

Due in one year or less 20715 20719

Due after one year through five years 34290 34333

Due after five years through ten years 15996 15946

Due after ten years 5446 5484

76447 76482

Mortgage-backed securities 112877 112239

Equity securities 1156 1132

$190480 $189853

Mortgage-backed securities include agency mortgage-backed securities Government National Mortgage

Association collateralized mortgage and Small Business Agency Loan Pools obligations
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The following table presents information related to the Companys gains and losses on the sales of equity and

debt securities and losses recognized for other-than-temporary impairment of investments

Equity securities

Debt securities

Total

2008

Equity securities

Debt securities

Total

Year Ended December 31

Other-than-

Gross temporary
Realized Impairment

Losses Losses

Less Than 12 Months

Fair Unrealized

Value Losses

417 44

12 Months or More

Fair Unrealized

Value Losses

Total

Unrealized

Losses

44

The previous table represents 36 investment securities at December 31 2009 where the current fair value is less

than the related amortized cost No investment securities at December 31 2008 had current fair value less than

the related amortized cost Management believes the impairments to be temporary in all cases Management

evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on monthly basis but managements intent is

to hold all investments until maturity unless market economic or specific investment concerns warrant sale of

securities Consideration is given to the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less

than cost the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer and the intent and ability of the

Company to retain its investment in the issuer for period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery

in fair value

2009

Gross

Realized

Gains

814 $726

254

$1068 $734

Net Losses
Gains

$68
246

$178

15

$15

$156

$156

15

$15

During the year ending 2009 the Company recognized other than temporary impairment charge of $156

representing equity securities Equity securities obtained during the merger at March 31 2009 were valued

based on current market factors Due to the increasing severity and continuing decline in the fair value of the

securities during the year and the near term prospects of the issuers the Company determined than the other than

temporary impairment was necessary

The following table shows gross unrealized losses and fair value aggregated by investment category and length

of time that individual securities have been in continuous unrealized loss position at December 31 2009

Equity securities

U.S Government sponsored agency

securities

U.S Government sponsored agency mortgage-

backed securities

Collateralized mortgage obligations

Municipal bonds

Municipal bonds taxable

SBA Pool Loan Investments

47101 65

Fair

Value

417

7275

70991

6955

10710

$143449

30

654

71

72

$936

47101

7275

70991

6955

10710

$143449

65

30

654

71

72

$936
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Note Loans

The following table presents summary of the loan portfolio at December 31 2009 and 2008

December 31 December 31
2009 2008

Commercial 861673 $508744

Consumer other 85510 54084

Residential mortgage 191277 5123

Total Loans 1138460 567951

Deferred fees net 189 229
Allowance for loan losses 9695 6017

Net Loans $1128576 $561705

The Bank grants the majority of its loans to borrowers throughout central Pennsylvania and northern Maryland

Although the Bank has diversified loan portfolio significant portion of its borrowers ability to honor their

contracts is influenced by the regions economy

Overdraft deposits are reclassified as loans and are included in the total loans on the Consolidated Balance

Sheets For the year ended December 31 2009 and 2008 total overdraft deposits were $397 and $399

respectively

The Company had total net purchased loans from unaffiliated banks of $59268 and $4237 at December 31

2009 and 2008 respectively The net increase in purchased loans is primarily due to the purchase of 16 loans

from First National Bank of Chester County as part of the FCEC Merger Agreement The net purchase price of

these loan participations was $51713

The Company serviced $111649 and $112871 of participation loans for unrelated parties at December 31 2009

and 2008 respectively

The Company sold $133521 and $42283 of residential mortgage loans into the secondary market during the

years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively gain of $1521 $528 and 358 was recognized on the

sale of these loans for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

Note Allowance for Loan Losses

The following table presents the components of the allowance for credit losses as of December 31 2009 2008

and 2007

December 31 December 31 December 31
2009 2008 2007

Allowance for loan losses 9695 $6017 $4148

Credit quality adjustment on loans

purchased 2942

Allowance for credit losses $12637 $6017 $4148
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Changes in the allowance for loan losses were as follows for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

2009 2008 2007

Balance at beginning of period 6017 $4148 $2156

Provision for loan losses 5216 2550 1997

Charge-offs

Commercial 1398 633
Consumer 193
Residential mortgages 47

Total Charge-offs 1598 681

Recoveries

Commercial 47

Consumer 13

Residential mortgages

Total Recoveries 60

Net charge-offs 1538 681

Balance at end of period 9695 $6017 $4148

Changes in the credit quality adjustment on loans purchased were as follows for the year ended December 31

2009

2009

Balance at beginning of period $4044

Amortization 756
Charge-offs

Commercial 61
Consumer 259
Residential mortgages 236

Total Charge-offs 556

Recoveries

Commercial

Consumer 123

Residential mortgages

Total Recoveries 210

Net charge-offs 346

Balance at end of period $2942

As part of the Merger an adjustment was made to reflect the elimination of the allowance for loan losses

related to the Tower Bank loan portfolio as required by purchase accounting standards As result the acquired

loan portfolio was evaluated based on risk characteristics and other credit and market criteria to determine

credit quality adjustment to the fair value of the loan acquired The acquired loan balance was reduced by the

aggregate amount of the credit quality adjustment in determining the fair value of the loans The credit quality

adjustment does not account for acquired loans deemed to be impaired accordance with Accounting Standard

Codification 310-30-30 previously known as Statement of Position SOP 03-3 Accounting for Certain Loans

Acquired in Transfer These impaired loans are accounted for in the credit adjustment on distressed loans

which represents the portion of the loan balance that has been deemed uncollectible based on the managements

expectations of future cash flows for each respective loan Based on managements evaluation of the acquired
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loan portfolio 39 loans were deemed impaired resulting in credit adjustment on distressed loans of $4709 As

of December 31 2009 there were total of 20 loans remaining with credit adjustment of distressed loans of

$3407

The following table presents non-performing assets as of December 31 2009 and 2008

December 31 2009 December 31 2008

Non-accrual loans

Commercial $3408 $1127

Consumer 320 236

Residential mortgages
990

Total non-accrual loans 4718 1366

Accruing loans greater than 90 days past due

Commercial 634

Consumer 48 104

Residential mortgages 1424
______

Total accruing loans greater than 90 days past due 2106 104

Non-performing loans 6824 1470

Other real estate owned 927

Non-performing assets $7751 $1470

As of December 31 2009 the Company had total impaired loans of $10917 The impaired loan balance includes

$6199 of impaired loans acquired as part of the merger which includes remaining fair value adjustment of

$3407 Management performed an evaluation of expected future cash flows including the anticipated cash flow

from the sale of collateral and compared that to the carrying amount of the impaired loans Based on these

evaluations the Company has determined that reserve of $451 is required against the impaired loans at

December 31 2009

Note Premises and Equipment

December 31 2009 December 31 2008

Land 5394

Building 13684

Leasehold improvements 3703 3028

Furniture fixtures and equipment 6918 2493

Other 3435 496

33134 6017

Accumulated depreciation 3324 1471

$29810 4546

As of December 31 2009 the Company leases branch offices that qualify for capital leases and as such have

net carrying amount of $2734 which is included in the balance of premise and equipment

Depreciation expenses amounted to $1751 during 2009 $761 during 2008 and $507 during 2007
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Note Other Intangibles

Information concerning total amortizable other intangible assets at December 31 2009 is as follows

Gross Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization

Balance at December 31 2008

2009 Activity

Core deposit intangibles 3899 532

Balance at December 31 2009 $3899 $532

The other intangible asset amortization expense has been recorded as Other operating expenses within the

Consolidated Statement of Operations The Company did not recognize any amortization expense
related to

intangible assets during 2008

The estimated amortization for the next five years and thereafter is as follows

2010 656

2011 585

2012 513

2013 444

2014 372

Thereafter 797

$3367

Note Other Assets

The following is detail of items that comprise other assets at December 31 2009 and 2008

December 31 December 31
2009 2008

Other real estate owned 927

Investment in subsidiary 790 593

Income tax receivable 760

Prepaid FDIC insurance assessment 6290

Other prepaid expenses
908 368

Mortgage servicing rights 637

Other 520 317

Total $10832 $1278
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Note Deposits

The following is summary of deposits at December 31 2009 and 2008

December 31 December 31
2009 2008

Non-interest bearing transaction accounts 119116 42466

Interest checking accounts 110356 19060

Money market accounts 477292 120625

Savings accounts 87117 49310

Time deposits of $100000 or greater 130938 207935

Time deposits other 291650 86074

Total $1216469 $525470

Brokered deposits totaled $61114 and $63603 at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively Brokered deposits

exclusive of in-market reciprocal brokered deposits totaled $46018 and $44587 at December 31 2009 and

2008 respectively

At December 31 2009 the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows

2010 $210308

2011 47623

2012 62245

2013 8276

2014 94058

thereafter 78

$422588

Note 10 Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase generally mature within one to four days from the transition date

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are reflected at the amount of cash received in connection with

the transaction The Company may be required to provide additional collateral based on the fair value of the

underlying securities The Company had securities sold under agreements to repurchase of $6892 and $8384 at

December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively The blended rate on these borrowings was 0.52% and 1.70% at

December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively and the borrowings mature in one-day periods The borrowings are

secured by U.S Government securities and municipal bonds

Note 11 Borrowings

Federal Home Loan Bank

The Bank has maximum borrowing capacity under an agreement with the Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB
of approximately $482024 and 72093 at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively The available amount of

borrowing capacity for December 31 2009 and 2008 was approximately $422679 and $33093 respectively

The total outstanding borrowings at December 31 2009 equaled $59346 of which $5250 has maturity of less

than one year and is classified as short-term borrowing The remaining borrowings of $54096 have maturity

greater than one year and are therefore classified as long-term debt at December 31 2009 The average interest
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rate on FHLB borrowings at December 31 2009 equaled 3.94% At December 31 2009 the unamortized fair

value adjustment to FHLB borrowings assumed in the merger totaled $94 The total outstanding borrowings at

December 31 2008 equaled $39000 of which $29000 have stated maturity greater than one year and are

therefore classified as long-term debt at December 31 2008 The remaining $10000 in FHLB borrowings are

classified as short-term borrowings at December 31 2008 as they matured within one year

The following table summarizes the scheduled maturities of Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings as of

December 31 2009

2010 5250

2011 5000

2012 5000

2013

2014

Thereafter 44096

Total $59346

Lines of Credit

The Company has lines of credit with other financial institutions with the following terms

Balance at Balance at Maximum Interest

December 31 2009 December 31 2008 Capacity Rate Maturity

$4614 LIBOR plus 275bps On Demand

Prime minus 100bps

1900 Floor of 4% On Demand

3000 Prime minus 50bps On Demand

$4614 $4900

This line of credit was closed during the third quarter
of 2009 by the lending financial institution upon full

repayment of the outstanding balance

Other Borrowings

On June 12 2009 the Company issued to private investors $9000 of subordinated notes bearing an annual

interest rate of 9.00% Each note may be redeemed at the Companys discretion and contains maturity date of

July 2014 Interest only payments are due on quarterly basis with the unpaid principal balance due at

maturity

Federal funds are reported on gross
basis Federal funds sold are stated as assets and federal funds purchased

are stated as liabilities Federal funds purchased are considered short-term borrowings and are subject to

restrictions limiting the frequency and terms of advances Generally federal funds are purchased or sold for one

day periods and bear interest based upon the daily federal funds rate The Company did not have any federal

funds purchased at December 31 2009 or 2008
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Capital Lease Obligations

Included in short-term borrowings and long-term debt are two capital lease agreements which relate to the

Lebanon and York branches The following is schedule by years of future minimum lease payments under

capital leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of December 31 2009

2010 276

2011 279

2012 284

2013 301

2014 306

Thereafter 4137

Total minimum lease payment $5583

Less Amount representing interest 2854

Present value of net minimum lease payment $2729

Note 12 Related Party Transactions

The Company has had and may be expected to have in the future transactions in the ordinary course of business

with executive officers and directors and their immediate families and affiliated companies commonly referred

to as related parties on the same terms including interest rates and collateral as those prevailing at the time for

comparable transactions with others All loans to executive officers and directors or their related interests are

submitted to the Banks Board of Directors for approval The aggregate dollar amount of these loans was $51946

at December 31 2009 and $37129 at December 31 2008

Deposits from related parties held at the Bank as of December 31 2009 and 2008 amounted to $9948 and

$11045 respectively

In December 2007 the Bank entered into lease agreement with related party consisting of branch and

regional administrative office under fifteen-year renewable lease The lease was negotiated on an arms-length

basis and an independent valuation was performed confirming that the terms in the lease are reflective of market

terms As of December 31 2009 total cash payments to date made to the related party under this lease agreement

totaled $396

On June 12 2009 the Company issued to private investors $9000 of subordinated notes bearing an annual

interest rate of 9.00% The investors included director of the Company who invested $500 in principal amount

of the notes This transaction has been reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee of the Company

The Company has entered into employment or change of control agreements with several executive officers The

agreements include minimum annual salary commitments andlor change of control provisions Upon termination

resignation or change in control of the Company these individuals may receive monetary compensation as set

forth in the agreements

84



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

amounts in thousands except for share and per share data

Note 13 Income Taxes

The provision for income tax expense benefit for the year ended December 31 2009 and 2008 and the period

from June 2007 to December 31 2007 consisted of the following components

2009 2008 2007

Federal

Current $1390 1353 782

Deferred
417 1040 800

1807 313 18
State

Current
22 20 12

Deferred

22 20 12

Totals $1829 333

reconciliation of the statutory income tax at rate of 34% to the income tax expense benefit included in the

statements of operations is as follows for the year ended December 31 2009 and 2008 and the period from

June 2007 to December 31 2007 There was no provision for income taxes for the period from January

2007 to May 31 2007 since the Company operated as an corporation

2009 2008 2007

Federal income tax at statutory rate 34.0% 34.0% 34.0%

Incentive Stock Options
0.5 1.7 2.0

Bank Owned Life Insurance 4.9 4.6

State tax expense net of federal benefit 0.3 0.5 0.9

Valuation allowance 0.4 18.0 39.9

Tax exempt interest 1.1

Merger expenses
2.7

Other
Ll 01 L3

Effective income tax rate 33.0% 13.8% l.7%
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The components of the net deferred tax asset at December 31 2009 and 2008 are as follows

December 31 December 31
2009 2008

Deferred tax assets

Allowance for loan losses 3296 $2046

Organization and start-up costs 142 155

Restricted stock plan 144

Nonqualified stock options 231 20

Other than temporary impairments 53

Capital loss carryover 3166

Deferred compensation 806

Nonaccrual interest 212

Straight-line rents 145

Unrealized loss on available for sale securities 213

Other 431 143

8695 2508

Valuation Allowance 3644
______

Total Deferred Tax Assets Net of Valuation Allowance 5051 2508

Deferred tax liabilities

Premises and equipment 1016 121
Deferred loan costs 404 289
Cash basis conversion 51 87
Prepaid expenses 283 117
Partnership income 42 54
Unrealized gain on available for sale securities 76
Purchase accounting fair value adjustments 1513

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 3309 744

Net Deferred Tax Asset $1742 $1764

tax expense
of $23 and tax benefit of $434 were recognized in the Statement of Operations in 2009 and 2008

respectively related to changes in the valuation allowance

The valuation allowance as of December 31 2009 relates to capital loss carryforwards and other than temporary

impairments for which it is more likely than not that the Company will not be able to realize the tax benefit of

these items prior to legal expiration The Company has capital loss carryovers of $9310 which will expire in

2014 In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets management considers whether it is more likely than

not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized The ultimate realization of deferred tax

assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during periods in which those temporary

differences become deductible Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities projected

future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment Based on the level of historical

taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are

deductible management believes it is more likely than not that the Company will realize the benefits of these

deferred tax assets net of the valuation allowance at December 31 2009

As of December 31 2009 the Company had no material unrecognized tax benefits or accrued interest and

penalties It is the Companys policy to account for interest and penalties accrued relative to unrecognized tax
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benefits as component of income tax expense Federal and state tax returns for the years
2006 through 2009

were open for examination as of December 31 2009

Note 14 Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk

The Company is party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to

meet the financing needs of its customers These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and

letters of credit Such commitments involve to varying degrees elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess

of the amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheet

The Companys exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial

instrument for commitments to extend credit is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments The

Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for

on-balance sheet instruments

The outstanding financial instruments represent credit risk in the following amounts at December 31 2009 and

2008

December 31 December 31
2009 2008

Commitments to grant loans 12350 13274

Unfunded commitments under lines of credit 267683 163288

Letters of credit 25524 17577

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to customer as long as there is no violation of any

condition established in the contract Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn

upon the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements Commitments

generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of fee The

Company evaluates each customers credit worthiness on case-by-case basis The amount of collateral

obtained if deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit is based on managements credit

evaluation Collateral held varies but may include personal or commercial real estate accounts receivable

inventory and equipment

Outstanding letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of

customer to third party
The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that

involved in extending loan facilities to customers The Bank typically requires collateral supporting these letters

of credit Management believes that the proceeds obtained through liquidation of such collateral would be

sufficient to cover the maximum potential amount of future payments required under the corresponding

guarantees The amount of the liability as of December 31 2009 and 2008 for guarantees under standby letters of

credit issued is not material to the consolidated financial statements

Note 15 Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has purchased bank owned life insurance BOLl policies on certain employees as means to

generate tax-free income which is used to offset portion of current and future employee benefit costs

Additionally the Company acquired BOLl policies as result of the Merger The BOLT profits from the

appreciation of the cash surrender value of the pool of insurance and is recorded as part of Non-interest

Income For the years
ended 2009 and 2008 the Company recorded income of $1034 and $305 respectively

related to the appreciation in the cash surrender value of the insurance policies The service costs associated with
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post retirement benefits of the insurance policies vested at the time of the Merger with the ongoing costs relating

to interest
expense

incurred The Company recorded expenses related to the cost of maintaining post retirement

insurance of $368 and $29 for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively As of December 31
2009 and 2008 the estimated present value of the cost of post retirement insurance totaled $1623 and $9

respectively

As part of the Merger the Company acquired the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan implemented during

2002 by Tower which calls for defined annual benefit to be paid to the former Chief Executive Officer of

Tower In connection with the Merger all service related vesting was accelerated with the ongoing costs relating

to interest expense During 2009 the Company recorded $18 of
expense resulting in post retirement benefit

liability of $452 at December 31 2009

As part of the Merger the Company acquired Supplemental Insurance Plan which provides certain current and

former executives and directors of the Company with post retirement benefit equal to annual deferred

compensation amounts including annual interest earned on these amounts compounded monthly at 10% annual

interest rate The Company holds life insurance contracts on the participating individuals as means to offset the

cost of the post retirement benefit During the
year

ended December 31 2009 the Company recorded $51 in

expense related to the cost of the post retirement benefit which had balance of $674 at December 2009

Note 16 Stock-Based Compensation

At December 31 2009 the Company had four equity compensation plans the 2006 Restricted Stock Plan the

2006 Plan the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan the 2007 Plan the 1995 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan the

1995 Plan and the Stock Option Plan for Outside Directors the Director Plan

During 2006 the shareholders of Graystone approved the 2006 Restricted Stock Plan the 2006 Plan as

amended that provides for the issuance of up to 375000 shares of restricted stock awards subject to three year

vesting period to key employees and directors The recipient shall receive all dividends or other distributions and

shall have the right to vote with respect to issued but unvested shares On March 31 2009 as result of the

Merger the Company has adopted the provisions of this plan As of March 31 2009 the Company had issued all

of the available awards under the plan and all of the awards are completely vested as result of the vesting

acceleration in association with the Merger The Company recognized $295 $333 and $1021 of compensation

expense during the year ending December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively related to the vesting of the

restricted stock awards

In May 2007 the shareholders of the Graystone approved the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan the 2007 Plan
Under the Plan Graystone may grant incentive stock options nonqualified stock options stock appreciation

rights restricted stock and deferred stock for up to 600000 shares shares reflect the 3-for-2 stock split paid

September 30 2007 of Graystones common stock to key employees and directors On March 31 2009 as

result of the Merger the Company has adopted the provisions of this plan Subsequent to the Merger and as

result of the conversion factor the total options authorized to be issued under the 2007 Plan equaled 252000 At

December 31 2009 the Company had 77705 options available to grant
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The following table summarizes the outstanding stock options under the Companys 2007 Plan at December 31

2009 and 2008

Unearned Compensation

Options Vested in 000s

Options Exercise Expiration December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31

Date of Issuance Issued Price Date 2009 2008 2009 2008

June 262007 26145 $22.22 June 262017 26145 8715 42

January 22 January 22

2008 1050 $30.96 2018 1050 350

July 17 2008 56700 $30.96 July 17 2018 56700 416

September 22 September 22

2009 52400 $26.77 2019 318

November 24 November 24

2009 38000 $19.80 2019 182

174295 83895 9065 $500 $461

The stock options normally vest over three to five year vesting period and are expensed over the vesting period

As result of the Merger all of the outstanding options at March 30 2009 became fully vested and exercisable

No options issued under this plan have been exercised during 2009 The aggregate
intrinsic value of outstanding

unvested stock options at December 31 2009 and 2008 was $116 and $0 respectively Options granted resulted

in compensation expense of $22 $177 and $51 during 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively As of December 31

2009 and in conjunction with the vesting acceleration due to the Merger total of 83895 options have vested

with an intrinsic value of $16 These vested options can be exercised at an average price of $28.24 and have an

average remaining life of approximately 8.2 years The fair values of the options awarded under the Plan are

estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes valuation methodology

Upon the closing of the Merger all of the issued and outstanding stock options originally issued by Graystone

converted to options exercisable for Tower common stock Additionally all options became fully vested at the

time of conversion As result and in accordance with U.S GAAP the Company revalued the converted options

as of the conversion date The re-valuation of the converted options did not result in
any

incremental costs to the

Company The table below shows the assumptions utilized by Management to value all stock options

Dividend Expected Risk Free Estimated Expected Issue-Date

Date of Issuance Yield Volatility Interest Rate Forfeitures Life Fair Value

June 26 2007 4.49% 32.17% 2.3 1% 0.00% years $5.75

January 22 2008 4.49% 32.17% 2.3 1% 0.00% years $3.70

July 17 2008 4.49% 32.17% 2.31% 1%3% 6.5 years $3.80

September 22 2009 4.00% 1.84% 3.50% $6.63

November 24 2009 4.00% 32.63% 3.39% 2% years $5.00

Estimated forfeitures for stock options issued to executives are 2.00% while the estimated forfeiture for stock

options issued to employees is 5.00%
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Expected life for stock options issued to executives is
years

while estimated expected life for stock options

issued to employees is
years

The dividend yield assumption is based on dividend history and the expectation of future dividend yields The

expected volatility is based on historical volatility using the Companys own stock price The risk-free rate is the

U.S Treasury zero-coupon rate commensurate with the expected life of the options on the date of the grant

At December 31 2009 there were 5700 options outstanding under the 1995 Plan and the Company recognized

$2 in compensation expense related to the 1995 Plan during 2009 There are total of 27719 options available to

be issued under this plan at December 31 2009

The following table summarizes the outstanding non-qualified stock options under the Companys 1995 Plan at

December 31 2009 and 2008

Unearned Compensation

Options Vested in 000s

Options Exercise Expiration December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31
Date of Issuance Issued Price Date 2009 2008 2009 2008

September 22 September 22

2009 5700 $26.77 2019 $34

The assumptions utilized by management to calculate the issue date fair value of $6.63 are the same as the

assumptions used for shares issued under the 2007 Plan

At December 31 2009 there were total of 32908 options outstanding under the Director Plan The options

outstanding are all fully vested have weighted average exercise price of $35.12 per share and have weighted

average life to maturity of 5.3 years The Company recognized $0 in compensation expense related to the

Director Plan during 2009 There are total of 50170 options available to be issued under this plan at

December 31 2009

During the second quarter of 2009 the Companys Board of Directors and shareholders approved an Employee

Stock Purchase Plan Employee Plan to provide our employees with the opportunity to purchase shares of

Company common stock directly from the Company The purchase price for shares purchased under the

Employee Plan is 95% of the fair market value of the Companys common stock on the purchase date During

2009 approximately $65 thousand in capital has been raised under the Employee Plan The structure of the

Employee Plan meets all of the criteria to be considered non-compensatory employee stock purchase plan and

as result the Company recognized no expense related to the shares purchased at discount through the

Employee Plan

Note 17 Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability an exit price in an

orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date The Company determines the fair

value of its financial instruments based on the fair value hierarchy The Company maximizes the use of

observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value Observable inputs

are inputs that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on market data

obtained from sources independent of the Company Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the Companys
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assumptions that the market participants
would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best information

available in the circumstances Three levels of inputs are used to measure fair value financial instruments

level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input significant to the fair value

measurement

Level Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for

identical unrestricted assets or liabilities

Level Quoted prices in markets that are not active or inputs that are observable either directly or

indirectly for substantially the full term of the asset or liability

Level Prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value

measurement and unobservable i.e supported with little or no market activity

An assets or liabilitys level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is

significant to the fair value measurement

For financial assets measured at fair value on recurring basis the fair value measurements by level within the

fair value hierarchy used at December 31 2009 are as follows

Significant

Other Significant

Quoted Observable Unobservable

December 31 Prices Inputs Inputs

2009 Level Level Level

Securities available for sale $189853 $300 $189504 49

Commercial mortgage servicing rights 473 473

Total $190326 $300 $189977 $49

Securities available for sale carried at fair value

As quoted market prices for the investments in securities available for sale held at the Bank such as

government agency bonds corporate bonds municipal bonds etc are not readily available matrix pricing

model is used to value these investments The matrix pricing model takes into consideration yields/prices of

securities with similarcharacteristics including credit quality industry and maturity to determine fair

value measure

For equity securities held by the Company management has determined which securities are traded in

active markets versus inactive markets For those securities traded in active markets management has

recorded the securities at quoted market prices In cases where the securities are deemed to trade in inactive

markets management has adjusted quoted market prices for factors such as indicative bids received from

brokers

The following table presents reconciliations of the Companys assets measured at fair value on recurring basis

using unobservable inputs Level for the year ended December 31 2009

Equity Securities

Balance December 31 2008

Purchased through the Merger 230

Transfers In from Level 44

Transfers Out to Level

Sale of Securities in Level 177
Other-than-temporary Impairment Adjustment 45

Balance December 31 2009 $49
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For financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis the fair value measurements by

level within the fair value hierarchy used at December 31 2009 are as follows

Significant Other Significant

Observable Unobservable

December 31 Quoted Prices Inputs Inputs

2009 Level Level Level

Loans held for sale 8034 8034

Impaired loans 10917 10917

Loans purchased 418747 418747

Core deposit intangible asset 3899 3899

Premises and equipment 22644
________

22644

Total assets $464241 $464241

Time deposits $160806 $160806

Borrowings 69601 69601

Total Liabilities $230407 $230407

Assets and liabilities are presented at fair value as of the date of the Merger

Loans held for sale

Loan held for sale include residential mortgage loans which are measured at the lower of aggregate cost or

fair value The fair value is measured as the price that secondary market investors were offering for loans

with similarcharacteristics

Impaired loans

Impaired loans included in the preceding table are those for which the Company has measured impairment

generally based on the fair value of the loans collateral Fair value is generally determined based upon

independent third party appraisals of the properties The fair value consists of loan balances less valuation

allowances The Company has 57 impaired loans valued at $10917 at December 31 2009 During 2009 the

Company charged off $2741 of loans

Loans purchased

In conjunction with the Merger the loans purchased were recorded at their acquisition date fair value In

order to record the loans at fair value management made three different types of fair value adjustments

market rate adjustment was made to adjust for the movement in market interest rates irrespective of credit

adjustments compared to the stated rates of the acquired loans credit adjustment was made on pools of

homogeneous loans representing the changes in credit quality of the underlying borrowers from the loan

inception to the acquisition date The credit adjustment on distressed loans represents the portion of the loan

balance that has been deemed uncollectible based on the managements expectations of future cash flows for

each respective loan
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Core deposit intangible assets

The fair value assigned to the core deposit intangible asset represents the future economic benefit of the

potential cost savings from acquiring core deposits in the Merger compared to the cost of obtaining

alternative funding such as brokered deposits from market sources Management utilized an income

valuation approach to present value the estimated future cash savings in order to determine the fair value of

the intangible asset

Premises and equipment

Premises and equipment acquired through the Merger has been assigned an acquisition date fair value

through the use of independent appraisals and internal discounted cash flow models Both approaches

utilized an income based valuation approach to determine the fair value for the premises and equipment

based on the highest and best use concept

Time deposits

Time deposits acquired through the Merger have been recorded at their acquisition date fair value In order

to derive the fair value management adjusted the amortized cost basis of the deposits to reflect the current

interest rates paid on time deposits at the time of acquisition The fair value adjustment reflects the

movement in interest rates from inception of the deposit to the acquisition date

Borrowings

Borrowings assumed through the Merger have been recorded at their acquisition date fair value The fair

value adjustment to the carrying value of the borrowings represents the movement in interest rates from the

inception of the individual borrowings to the acquisition date

The following information should not be interpreted as an estimate of the fair value of the entire Company since

fair value calculation is only provided for limited portion of the Companys assets and liabilities Due to

wide range of valuation techniques and the degree of subjectivity used in making the estimates comparisons

between the Companys disclosures and those of other companies may not be meaningful
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The estimated fair values of the Companys financial instruments were as follows as of December 31 2009 and

2008

December 31 2009 December 31 2008

Carrying Carrying

Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

Financial assets

Cash due from banks and federal funds sold 50600 50600 32022 32022

Securities available for sale 189853 189853 19904 19904

Restricted investment in bank stock 6254 6254 2068 2068

Loans held for sale 8034 8034 3324 3324

Loans 1128576 1151368 561705 551987

Accrued interest receivable 4974 4974 2402 2402

Financial liabilities

Deposits
1216469 1191126 525470 527571

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 6892 6892 8384 8384

Short-term borrowings
5292 5292 14614 14614

Long-term debt 65689 69184 29000 29013

Accrued interest payable
1090 1090 888 888

Nominal Nominal

Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

Off-balance sheet financial instruments

Commitments to grant loans 12350 13274

Unfunded commitments under lines of credit 267683 163288

Letters of credit 25524 17577

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values of the Companys financial

instruments at December 31 2009 and 2008

Cash and cash equivalents carried at cost

The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for cash and short-term instruments approximate those

assets fair values

Restricted investment in bank stock carried at cost

The carrying amount of restricted investment in bank stock approximates fair value and considers the

limited marketability of such securities

Loans held for sale carried at lower of cost or fair value

The carrying amounts of loans held for sale approximate their fair value

Loans carried at cost

The fair values of loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses using market rates at the balance

sheet date that reflect the credit and interest rate-risk inherent in the loans Projected future cash flows are

calculated based upon contractual maturity or call dates projected repayments
and prepayments of

principal Generally for variable rate loans that reprice frequently and with no significant change in credit
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risk fair values are based on carrying values This method of estimating fair value does not incorporate the

exit price concept of fair value but is permitted methodology for purposes
of this disclosure

Accrued interest receivable and payable carried at cost

The carrying amount of accrued interest receivable and accrued interest payable approximates its fair value

Deposits carried at cost

The fair values disclosed for demand deposits e.g interest and noninterest checking passbook savings and

money market accounts are by definition equal to the amount payable on demand at the reporting date

i.e their carrying amounts Fair values for fixed-rate certificates of deposit are estimated using

discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered in the market on

certificates to schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities on time deposits

Short-term borrowings carried at cost

The carrying amounts of short-term borrowings approximate their fair values

Long-term debt carried at cost

Fair values of FHLB advances are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis based on quoted prices for

new FHLB advances with similar credit risk characteristics terms and remaining maturity These prices

obtained from this active market represent market value that is deemed to represent the transfer price if the

liability were assumed by third party

Off-balance sheet financial instruments disclosed at cost

Fair values for the Banks off-balance sheet financial instruments lending commitments and letters of

credit are based on fees currently charged in the market to enter into similar agreements taking into

account the remaining terms of the agreements and the counterparties credit standing

Note 18 Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Operating Leases

The Company is obligated under operating leases for most of its banking offices as well as its administrative

office space For the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 rental expense under operating leases was

$1858 $1016 and $633 respectively which is included in the occupancy and equipment expenses The

Companys office leases generally include renewal options for various additional terms after the expiration of the

initial term of each lease which are not included in the future minimum lease payments below At December 31

2009 future minimum lease payments for the fixed non-cancelable terms of operating leases are as follows

2010 1690

2011 1729

2012 1720

2013 1738

2014 1578

Thereafter 15788

$24243
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Contingent Liabilities

The Company from time to time may be involved in legal proceedings relating to the conduct of its banking

business Such legal proceedings are normal part of the banking business and in managements opinion the

consolidated financial condition and results of operations of the Company would not be materially affected by

the outcome of such legal proceedings

Note 19 Regulatory Matters

Dividends paid by the Company are generally provided from the subsidiary banks dividends The Federal

Reserve Board which regulates bank holding companies establishes guidelines which indicate that cash

dividends should be covered by current year earnings and the debt to equity ratio of the holding company must be

below thirty percent The Bank is subject to the dividend restrictions set forth by the Pennsylvania Banking

Code Dividends that the Bank could declare without approval of the Pennsylvania Department of Banking

amounted to approximately $19577 and $0 at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

The Company and the Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by federal banking

agencies Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional

discretionary actions by regulators that if undertaken could have direct material effect on the Banks financial

statements Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action the

Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their assets liabilities and

certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices The capital amounts and

classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components risk weightings and

other factors

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain

minimum amounts and ratios set forth below of total and Tier capital as defined in the regulations to risk-

weighted assets and of Tier capital to average assets Management believes as of December 31 2009 and

2008 that the Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject comparison of the Companys

and the Banks capital ratios to regulatory minimums at December31 is as follows

To be Well

Capitalized under

For Capital Prompt Corrective

Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount

As of December 312009

Total capital to risk-weighted assets

Tower Bancorp Inc $165860 14.5% 91305 8.0% N/A N/A

Graystone Tower Bank 164506 14.4 91212 8.0 114014 10.0%

Tier capital to risk-weighted assets

Tower Bancorp Inc 148965 13.1 45653 4.0 N/A N/A

Graystone Tower Bank 154811 13.6 45606 4.0 68409 6.0%

Tier capital to total assets

Tower Bancorp Inc 148965 10.7 55702 4.0 N/A N/A

Graystone Tower Bank 154811 11.1 55613 4.0 69502 5.0%

96



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

amounts in thousands except for share and per share data

To be Well

Capitalized under

For Capital Prompt Corrective

Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

As of December 31 2008

Total capital to risk-weighted assets

Tower Bancorp Inc $60655 10.1% 48091 8.0% N/A N/A

Graystone Tower Bank 65040 10.8 48091 8.0 60113 10.0%

Tier capital to risk-weighted assets

Tower Bancorp Inc 54638 9.1 24045 4.0 N/A N/A

Graystone Tower Bank 59023 9.8 24045 4.0 36068 6.0%

Tier capital to total assets

Tower Bancorp Inc 54638 8.5 25653 4.0 N/A N/A

Graystone Tower Bank 59023 9.2 25652 4.0 32064 5.0%

Note 20 Tower Bancorp Inc Parent Company Only Financial Information

Condensed Balance Sheet Parent Only

December 31

2009 2008

ASSETS

Cash and due from banks
637 30

Securities available for sale 1132

Investment in subsidiary
169715 59170

Other assets
1660 199

Total Assets $173144 $59399

LIABILITIES

Borrowings
9000 4614

Other Liabilities
267

Total Liabilities 9267 4614

Stockholders equity
163877 54785

Total Liabilities and Stockholders Equity $173144 $59399
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Condensed Income Statement Parent Only

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Income

Equity in undistributed earnings loss of subsidiary $4356 $2204 38

Gain on sale of securities 88

Expenses

Interest expense 683 208 455
Other noninterest expenses 385 19 20

Income before taxes 3376 1977 437
Income tax benefit 333 105 91

Net Income $3709 $2082 $346

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows Parent Only

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Net Income Loss 3709 2082 346
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income Loss to Cash Used in Operating Activities

Equity in undistributed earnings loss of subsidiary 4356 2204 38
Net gain on sale of equity securities 88
Other than temporary impairment losses 156
Stock Option expense 569

Restricted Stock expense 295

Other net 899 211 13

Cash used in operating activities 872 333 371
Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Investment in subsidiary 48680 35004
Sale of equity investment 10338

Cash Received from merger 214

Cash used in investing activities 38128 35.004

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Proceeds from sale of common stock net 52052 37315

Net increase decrease in borrowings 9364 184 1770
Dividends Paid 4825

_______ ________

Cash provided by financing activities 37863 184 35545

Net Increase in Cash 607 149 170

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year 30 179

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 637 30 179

Cash paid during the year for interest 683 208 436
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Note 21 Subsequent Events

On February 2010 the Company accepted subscriptions for and sold at 100% of their principal amount an

aggregate of $12000 of subordinated notes the Notes on private placement basis to accredited investors

The investors included director of the Company and his spouse who purchased an aggregate of $1000 in

principal amount of the Notes This transaction has been reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee of the

Company The Notes bear interest payable on the 15th of January April July and October of each year at

fixed interest rate of 9.0% per year The Notes have maturity date of July 2015 The Notes may be redeemed

at the option of the Company in whole or in part at any time without penalty or premium subject to any

required regulatory approvals

The Notes are intended to qualify as Tier capital for regulatory purposes to the extent permitted It is expected

that in accordance with applicable regulatory treatment one-fifth of the original principal amount of the Notes

will be excluded each year from Tier capital during the last five years prior to maturity

The Company expects to use the net proceeds from the sale of the Notes for general corporate purposes

including without limitation contribution as equity capital to the Companys wholly-owned subsidiary

Graystone Tower Bank to support the Banks continued growth
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Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of Tower Bancorp Inc and its wholly-owned subsidiary the Company has the responsibility for

establishing and maintaining an adequate internal control structure and procedures for financial reporting The Companys

internal control system is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also

projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

This annual report does not include report of managements assessment regarding the effectiveness of internal control over

financial reporting or an attestation report of the Companys registered public accounting firm due to the nature and timing of

changes to the internal control structure as result of the reverse merger with Graystone Financial Corp As result of the

reverse merger with Graystone Financial Corp the Companys internal control structure was converted to the former control

structure of Graystone Financial Corp during the year During June of 2009 the Company converted the information

technology system of the former operations of The First National Bank of Greencastle operating as the Tower Bank Division

of Graystone Tower Bank to that of the Graystone Bank Division and implemented complete change in the control structure

at the Tower Bank Division implemented over the remainder of 2009 The Company engaged service provider to complete

an internal audit program under the direction of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors the Audit Committee

however because of the timing of the new internal control implementation it was not practical for management to assess

internal control over financial reporting in manner that would prove useful to the readers of this annual report The

Company is continuing to execute its internal audit program under the direction of the Audit Committee of the Board of

Directors and will be in position to report on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting within the annual

report for 2010 Management will assess the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting using the Internal

Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

COSO as of December 31 2010

As stated above management and the Audit Committee engaged third party service provider to complete an internal audit

program During the second quarter of 2009 the Companys service provider completed comprehensive risk assessment and

proposed internal audit testing schedule that was formally approved by the Audit Committee The internal audit plan and

schedule were designed to meet the safety and soundness standards of our banking regulators focusing mostly on process level

operating compliance and reputational risks to Graystone Tower Bank As such the results of the internal audit testing

completed throughout 2009 did not provide sufficient support for management to properly assess the effectiveness of internal

controls over financial reporting in accordance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

As of December 31 2008 the Company had reported material weakness related improper risk identification and monitoring of

loans resulting in managements ability to administer the loan portfolio and determine the adequacy of the allowance for loan

losses As result of the merger with Graystone Financial Corp and Graystone Bank the internal controls surrounding the loan

administration loan documentation and credit administration functions became the internal controls historically utilized by

Graystone Financial Corp and Graystone Bank Historically due to the fact that Graystone Financial Corp was privately held

corporation its internal controls were not subject to an annual audit or annual evaluation by management in accordance with

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 However based on the results of historic bank regulatory examinations and the

internal audit testing performed during 2009 nothing has come to the attention of the Companys management that would indicate

that there is material weakness related in internal controls surrounding the loan administration loan documentation and credit

administration functions at December 31 2009

Is ANDREW SAMUEL

Andrew Samuel

President and Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer

Is MARK MERRILL

Mark Merrill

Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer
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Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company carried out an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of the Companys

management including the Companys Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the effectiveness

of its disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e Based upon

the evaluation the Companys Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that as of

December 31 2009 the Companys disclosure controls and procedures are effective Disclosure controls and

procedures are controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in

the Companys reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and

reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commissions rules and forms

Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

Managements report on internal control over financial reporting is included in Item of this Report on

Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference

Changes in Internal Controls

For an explanation of changes in internal controls during 2009 please see Managements Report on Internal

Control Over Financial Reporting included in Item of this Report on Form 10-K and incorporated herein by

reference

Item 9B Other Information

The Company had no other events that should have been disclosed on Form 8-K that were not already disclosed

on such form
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PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The Company has adopted Code of Ethics Policy that applies to all directors and senior managers including its

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer The Companys Code of Ethics Policy is available on

Tower Bancorp Inc website at http//www.towerbancorp.com under the Governance Documents tab

All other information required by Item 10 is incorporated by reference to the sections captioned Election of

Directors of Tower Bancorp Inc Executive Officers Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting

Compliance Code of Ethics Policy Consideration of Director Nominees and Meetings and Committees

of the Board of Directors of Towers definitive proxy statement for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to

be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 11 is incorporated by reference to the sections captioned Executive

Compensation Compensation of Directors and Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider

Participation of Towers definitive
proxy statement for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed

pursuant to Regulation l4A

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

Information required by Item 12 is incorporated by reference to the sections captioned Beneficial Ownership of

Towers definitive proxy statement for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed pursuant to

Regulation l4A and the information appearing under the heading Securities Authorized for Issuance under

Equity Compensation Plans within Item of this Report

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by Item 13 is incorporated by reference to the sections captioned Related Person

Transactions and Policies and Director Independence of Towers definitive proxy statement for the 2009

Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed pursuant to Regulation l4A

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by Item 14 is incorporated by reference to the section captioned Audit Committee

Report of Towers definitive proxy statement for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders filed pursuant to

Regulation 14A
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

The following documents are filed as part of this report

Financial Statements The following consolidated financial statements of Tower Bancorp Inc and

subsidiaries are incorporated herein by reference in response to Item above

Consolidated Balance SheetsDecember 31 2009 and 2008

ii Consolidated Statements of OperationsYears ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

iii Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity and Comprehensive Income LossYears

ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

iv Consolidated Statements of Cash FlowsYears ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

vi Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Financial Statement Schedules All financial statement schedules for which provision is made in the

applicable accounting regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission are not required under

the related instructions or are inapplicable and have therefore been omitted

Exhibits list of the Exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K and filed as part
of this report

is provided in subsection below

Exhibit

No Description

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger by and between First Chester County Corporation and Tower

Bancorp Inc dated as of December 27 2009 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 28 2009

2.2 First Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Merger by and between Tower Bancorp Inc and First

Chester County Corporation dated March 2010 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 2010

2.3 Form of Bank Plan of Merger by and between Graystone Tower Bank and First National Bank of

Chester County Incorporated by reference to Exhibit to the First Amendment to Agreement and

Plan of Merger filed as Exhibit 10.1 of Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 2010

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 24 2009

3.2 Bylaws of Tower Bancorp Inc Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K filed on March 31 2009

4.1 Form of Subordinated Note due July 2014 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 12 2009

4.2 Form of Form of Subordinated Note Due July 2015 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 2010

10.1 Tower Bancorp Inc Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to

Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-8 File No 3334066l

10.2 Tower Bancorp Inc.s Stock Option Plan for Outside Directors Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 99.2 to Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-8 File No 3334066l
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10.3 Change of Control Agreement of Franklin Klink III dated as of November 26 2001 Incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2001

10.4 Change of Control Agreement of John McDowell Sr dated as of December 23 1998 Incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1998

10.5 Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement of Jeffrey Shank dated as of September 25 2002

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 of Registrants Form l0-Q for the quarter ended

September 30 2002

10.6 Form of Amendment and Restatement of the First National Bank of Greencastle Group Term

Replacement Plan Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of Registrants Registration Statement

on Form S-4 File No 333130485

10.7 Form of Amendment and Restatement of the First National Bank of Greencastle Group Term

Replacement Plan Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of Registrants Registration Statement on

Form S-4 File No 333l30485

10.8 Form of Amendment and Restatement of the First National Bank of Greencastle Executive Bonus

Agreement Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of Registrants Registration Statement on

Form S-4 File No 333l30485

10.9 First National Bank of Greencastle Employees Stock Ownership Plan Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 99.3 to Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-8 File No 3334066l

10.10 Amendment Number Seven to First National Bank of Greencastle Employees Stock Ownership Plan

and Trust effective August 2009 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Registrants

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2009

10.11 Graystone Financial Corp 401k/Employee Stock Ownership Plan Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.9 to Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2009

10.12 Employment Agreement and amendment with Andrew Samuel Incorporated by reference to Exhibit

3.1 to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 31 2009 filed on March 31 2009

10.13 Employment Agreement and amendment with Jeffrey Renninger Incorporated by reference to Exhibit

3.1 to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 31 2009 filed on March 31 2009

10.14 Employment Agreement with Jeffrey Shank Incorporated by reference to Exhibit to Annex of

Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-4 No 333l56535

10.15 Employment Agreement and amendment with Janak Amin Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4

of Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2009

10.16 Employment Agreement with Mark Merrill Incorporated by reference to Exhibit to Annex of

Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-4 File No 333l56535

10.17 Employment Agreement with Carl Lundblad Incorporated by reference to Exhibit to Annex of

Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-4 File No 333l56535

10.18 Employment Agreement with Jane Tompkins Incorporated by reference to Exhibit to Annex of

Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-4 File No 333156535

10.19 Graystone Financial Corp 2007 Stock Incentive Plan Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 31 2009 filed on March 31 2009

10.20 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the 1995 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

September 24 2009

10.21 Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement under the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan Incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 24 2009

104



10.22 Tower Bancorp Inc Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 99.1 to Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-3 File No 333-159647

10.23 Tower Bancorp Inc Employee Stock Purchase Plan Incorporated by reference to Appendix of

Registrants
definitive proxy statement filed on April 22 2009

10.24 Schedule of Tower Bancorp Inc./Graystone Tower Bank 2009 Director Fees Incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Registrants Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q for the quarter ended June 30

2009

10.25 Tower Bancorp Inc 2009 Executive Incentive Plan Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to

Registrants Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2009

10.26 Form of Loan Modification Agreement by and between First Chester County Corporation and

Graystone Tower Bank Incorporated by reference to Exhibit to the Agreement and Plan of Merger

filed as Exhibit 2.1 of Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 28 2009

10.27 Loan Agreement dated as of November 20 2009 by and between First Chester County Corporation

and Graystone Tower Bank Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form

8-K filed by First Chester County Corporation on November 25 2009

10.28 Promissory Note dated as of November 20 2009 by First Chester County Corporation in favor of

Graystone Tower Bank Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Current Report on Form 8-K

filed by First Chester County Corporation on November 25 2009

10.29 Stock Pledge Agreement dated as of November 20 2009 by and between First Chester County

Corporation and Graystone Tower Bank Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Current

Report on Form 8-K filed by First Chester County Corporation on November 25 2009

10.30 Form of Loan Participation Agreement by and between First National Bank of Chester County and

Graystone Tower Bank Incorporated by reference to Exhibit to the Agreement and Plan of Merger

filed as Exhibit 2.1 of Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 28 2009

10.31 Form of Loan Agreement by and between Tower Bancorp Inc and First Chester County Corporation

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit to the First Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Merger

filed as Exhibit 10.1 of Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 2010

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23.1 Consent of KPMG LLP

23.2 Consent of ParenteBeard LLC

31.1 Certification of President and Chief Executive Officer of Tower Bancorp Inc Pursuant to Securities

and Exchange Commission Rule 13a-14a 15d-14a

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Tower Bancorp Inc Pursuant to Securities and Exchange

Commission Rule 13a-14a 15d-14a

32.1 Certification of President and Chief Executive Officer of Tower Bancorp Inc Pursuant to Section 906

of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Furnished not filed

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Tower Bancorp Inc Pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Furnished not filed

Denotes compensatory plan or arrangement
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant has

duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

TOWER BANCORP INC

Registrant

Date March 16 2010 Is ANDREW SAMUEL

Andrew Samuel

President and Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer

Date March 16 2010 Is MARK MERRILL

Mark Merrill

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer

Date March 16 2010 Is KRIST0FER PAtJL

Kristofer Paul

Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer

Principal Accounting Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this Report has been executed below by the

following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature Title Date

Is ANDREW SAMuEL President Chief Executive Officer March 16 2010

Andrew Samuel and Chairman of the Board of

Directors

Is STEPHEN BECK Director March 16 2010

Stephen Beck

Is PATRICIA CARHAuGH Director March 16 2010

Patricia Carbaugh

Is JoHN DISANT0 Director March 16 2010

John DiSanto

Is MARcus FAUsT Director March 16 2010

Marcus Faust

Is FREDERIc FREDERICK Director March 16 2010

Frederic Frederick

Is MARK GAYMAN Director March 16 2010

Mark Gayman

________________________________________
Director March 16 2010

Harry Johnston
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Is JEFFREY LEHMAN

Jeffrey Lehman

Is KENNETH LEHMAN

Kenneth Lehman

Is CHARLES PEARSON JR

Charles Pearson Jr

Is MICHAEL PECK

Michael Peck

Is ROBERT POOLE JR

Robert Poole Jr

Is TERRY RANDALL

Terry Randall

/S H.su SHAH

Hasu Shah

Is JEFFREY SHANK

Jeffrey Shank

/5/ KLARE SuNDERLAND

Klare Sunderland

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

March 16 2010

March 16 2010

March 16 2010

March 16 2009

March 16 2010

March 16 2010

March 16 2010

March 16 2010

March 16 2010
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